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PROSPECTUS

Dated: June 27th, 2017

A copy of this Prospectus was delivered to the Registrar of Companies for
registration pursuant to Section 40(2) of the Companies Act 2004 and was
so registered on June 27th, 2017. The Registrar of Companies accepts no
responsibility whatsoever for the contents of this Prospectus.

A copy of this Prospectus was also delivered to the Financial Services
Commission for registration pursuant to section 26 of the Securities Act and
was so registered on June 30th, 2017. The Financial Services Commission
has not approved the Shares for which subscription is invited nor has the
Commission passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Prospectus.

STATIONERY &
OFFICE SUPPLIES
LTD.

INVITATION FOR SUBSCRIPTION

Up to 50,024,100 Ordinary Shares at the Subscription Price of
$2.00 per Share, subject to any discounts offered to Reserved Share
Applicants Payable in Full on Application

Please note that the Jamaica Central Securities Depository charges
an application fee of approximately $140 plus General Consumption
Tax in respect of each application for Shares
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited
Registered and Head Office: 23 Beechwood Avenue, Kingston 5, Jamaica
Telephone: (876) 926-5688 ¢ Facsimile: (876) 968-8200

Website: www.sosjm.com

The Company has made 27,524,100 Shares available for
subscription by the general public at the Subscription Price, and
additionally, up to another 22,500,000 Shares in the Invitation (“the
Reserved Shares”) are initially reserved for priority application from,
and subscription by, the following persons:

(@) 12,500,000 Shares (“the Employee and Family Shares”) for
all of the employees of the Company, excluding any of the
executive directors of the Company (“the Employees”) and
immediate family members of the executive directors, who
are not deemed to be “Connected Persons’, as defined in
Appendix 1 of the Junior Market Rules (the “Family”). All
Employees will be given an opportunity to purchase Shares
at a discounted price of $1.60 per Share and

(b) 10,000,000 Shares (“the JN Fund Managers’ Client Reserved
Shares”). That is, 10,000,000 Shares shall be made available
for subscription by clients of JN Fund Managers Limited (“JN
Fund Managers’ Clients”) at the Subscription Price.

If any of the Reserved Shares are not subscribed for by the
persons entitled to them they will become available for subscription
by the general public at the Subscription Price. This policy will be
applied absolutely across all categories of Reserved Shares as set out
in paragraphs (a) to (b) above. See Section 6.5 of this Prospectus for

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital 500,000,000
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Fund Managers Ltd.

the terms and conditions of the Invitation.

An Application Form for use by both applicants for Reserved
Shares and the general public in respect of the Shares is provided at
the end of this Prospectus (Appendix 1), together with notes on how
to complete it. The subscription list for the Shares will open at 9:00
a.m.on July 19th, 2017. Applications submitted prior to the Opening
Date will be received, but not processed until the Opening Date.
The subscription list for the Shares will close at 4:30 p.m. on the
Closing Date, July 26th, 2017, subject to the right of the Company
to (a) close the subscription list at any time after it opens on 9:00
a.m. on the Opening Date once the issue is fully subscribed and (b)
extend the Closing Date for any reason, subject to the provisions of
section 48 of the Companies Act.

In the event of an early closing of the subscription list, or an
extension of the Closing Date, notice will be posted on the website
of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (www.jamstockex.com). It is the
intention of the Company to apply to the JSE for admission of the
Shares to the Junior Market. The application to the JSE is dependent
upon the Company’s ability to: (i) raise at least $50,000,000 (as
per Rule 501(2)(b) of the Junior Market rules) as a result of the
Invitation; and (ii) meet the criteria for admission. Please note that
this statement of the Company’s intention is not a guarantee that
the Shares will in fact be admitted to trading on the Junior Market.
If, however, the Invitation is not fully subscribed and the Company
does not raise at least $50,000,000 (as per Rule 501(2)(b) of the
Junior Market rules) as a result of it, the Company will not make an
application for the Shares to be admitted to the Junior Market and
all applications will be returned to the persons making them, along
with any payments made pursuant thereto.

Maximum to be issued fully paid assuming: 50,024,100
i. all 27,524,100 Shares are subscribed by the general public at the Subscription Price $55,048,200
ii. all Reserved Shares are subscribed by all parties stated and set out below:
(a) 12,500,000 of the Employee and Family Shares, at a discounted price of $1.60 per Share $20,000,000
(b) 10,000,000 of the JN Fund Managers’ Client Reserved Shares at the Subscription Price $20,000,000
TOTAL CONSIDERATION $95,048,200

Details of the issued share capital of the Company prior to and after the Invitation, assuming that it is fully subscribed, are set out in Section 7.5 of

this Prospectus.

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | IV



Contents

ITEM SECTION  PAGE
Important Disclaimers 1 2
Summary of Key Information on the Invitation 2 3
Letter to Prospective Investors 3 5
Definitions used in this Prospectus 4 8
Disclaimer - Forward Looking Statements 5 10
The Invitation 6 11
Information about the Company 7 14
Mentor, Directors & Senior Officers and their Interests 8 26
Management Discussion and Analysis 9 31
Financial Highlights 10 34
Auditors’ Report and Historical Financial Data 11 38
Risk Factors 12 110
Professional Advisors to the Company 13 112
Statutory and General Information 14 113
Documents available for Inspection 15 117
Directors’ Signatures 16 118

Appendix 1: Application Form




Section 1

Important
Disclaimers

Fund Managers Ltd.

Responsibility for the Contents
of this Prospectus

This Prospectus has been reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Directors of the Company whose
names appear in Section 8 of this Prospectus are
the persons responsible (both individually and
collectively) for the information contained in it.
To the best of the knowledge and belief of the
Directors, who have taken all reasonable care
to ensure that such is the case, the information
contained in this Prospectus is in accordance with
the facts and no information has been omitted
which is likely to materially affect the import of
information contained herein.

Neither the FSC nor any Government agency
or regulatory authority in Jamaica has made any
determination on the accuracy or adequacy of
the matters contained in the Prospectus.

Contents of the Prospectus

This Prospectus contains important
information for prospective investors in the
Company. All prospective investors should read
the Prospectus carefully in its entirety before
submitting an Application Form.

This Prospectus also contains summaries
of certain documents which the Board of
Directors of the Company believe are accurate.
Prospective investors may wish to inspect the
actual documents that are summarized, copies
of which will be available for inspection as
described in Section 15. Any summaries of such
documents appearing in this Prospectus are
qualified in their entirety by reference to the
complete document.

The publication of this Prospectus shall not
imply that there has been no change in the
business, results of operations, financial condition
or prospects of the Company since the date of
this Prospectus.

No person is authorised to provide
information or to make any representation
whatsoever in connection with this Prospectus,
which is not contained in this Prospectus.

The Invitation is made to Jamaican Residents
in Jamaica Only.

This Prospectus (the “Prospectus”) is intended
for use in Jamaica only and is not to be construed
as making an invitation to persons outside
of Jamaica to subscribe for any Shares. The

distribution or publication of this Prospectus
and the making of the invitation in certain
jurisdictions outside of Jamaica is prohibited by
law.

Application to Subscribe for Shares

This Prospectus is not a recommendation
by the Company that prospective investors
should submit Application Forms to subscribe
for Shares in the Company. Prospective investors
in the Company are expected to make their own
assessment of the Company, and the merits
and risks of subscribing for Shares. Prospective
investors are also expected to seek appropriate
advice on the financial and legal implications of
subscribing for Shares, including but not limited
to any tax implications.

Each Applicant who submits an Application
Form acknowledges and agrees that:

() He/she has been afforded a meaningful
opportunity to review the Prospectus
(including the terms and conditions in
section 6.5), and to gather and review
all additional information considered
by him/her to be necessary to verify the
accuracy of the information contained in
this Prospectus;

(i) He/she has not relied on the Company
or any other persons in connection
with his/her investigation of the
accuracy of such information or his/her
investment decision; and

(iii) no person connected with the Company
has made any representation concerning
the Company or this Prospectus not
contained in this Prospectus, on which
the Applicant has relied in submitting
his/her Application Form.
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Issuer:

Stationery and Office Supplies Limited.

Securities:

Up to 50,024,100 Shares, inclusive of 22,500,000
Reserved Shares*

Subscription Price:

Application Form:

$2.00 per Share payable in full on application, subject to
discounts offered on Reserved Shares, where applicable

See Appendix 1 of the Prospectus

Terms and Conditions:

See Section 6.5 of the Prospectus

Acceptable Payment Method:

Either: (1) Manager’s Cheque payable to“JN Fund
Managers Limited”; (2) cleared funds held in a JN Fund
Managers account; or (3) Transfer or direct deposit to JN
Fund Managers (details set out in the Application Form
attached herein). Absolutely no cash payments will be
accepted.

Timetable of Key Dates:

Registration of Prospectus at the Companies Office:
June 27th, 2017

Registration of Prospectus at the FSC: June 30th, 2017
Publication of Prospectus: July 4th, 2017

Opening Date: 9:00 A.M. July 19th, 2017

Closing Date: 4:30 PM. July 26th, 2017 See ** below

Early Applications:

All Application Forms must be submitted to JN Fund
Managers, along with the requisite payment, in
immediately available funds, at the locations set out in
Section 6.5. Early applications may be submitted to JN
Fund Managers. Any such applications will be received,
but not processed until the Opening Date. All early
applications will be treated as having been received at
the same time, being 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date, and
shall be allotted pro rata. All other applications (that is,
not early applications) will be received and processed on
a first come, first served basis.**

Confirmation of Share Allotments:

All Applicants may refer to the confirmation instructions
that will be posted on the website of the Jamaica Stock
Exchange (www.jamstockex.com) after the Closing Date
(or the extended Closing Date, as the case may be)

Returned Applications / Refunds:

Available for collection where originally submitted (JN
Fund Managers) within ten (10) days of the Closing Date
(or the extended Closing Date, as the case may be)

Final Allotment and
Admission of Shares

Within three (3) to four (4) weeks of the Closing Date. ***
to Junior Market

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 3

Section 2

Summary of Key
Information on
the Invitation

Fund Managers Ltd.



Summary of Key
Information on
the Invitation
(continued)

Fund Managers Ltd.

*Up to 22,500,000 Reserved Shares in the Invitation are reserved for priority application from, and subscription by,

the Reserved Share Applicants at the prices set out on page IV herein. If any of the Reserved Shares are not absolutely
subscribed by the Employees, Family and/or JN Fund Managers’ Clients they will become available for subscription by the
general public at the Subscription Price.

** The subscription list will close at 4:30 p.m. on the Closing Date July 26th, 2017 subject to the right of the Company to (a)
close it at any time after 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date July 19th, 2017 once the issue is fully sold and subscribed and (b)
extend the Closing Date for any reason, subject to the provisions of section 48 of the Companies Act. In either case, notice
will be posted on the website of the JSE (www.jamstockex.com).

*** |t is the intention of the Company to apply to the Board of the JSE for admission of the Shares to trading on the Junior
Market. The application for admission is dependent on the Company’s ability to (i) raise a minimum of $50,000,000 (as per
Rule 501(2)(b) of the Junior Market rules) as a result of the Invitation made in the Prospectus and (ii) meet the criteria for
admission set out in the Junior Market Rules. Please note that this statement of the Company’s intention is not a guarantee
that the Shares will in fact be admitted to trading on the Junior Market. If, however, the Invitation is not fully subscribed
and the Company does not raise at least $50,000,000 (as per Rule 501(2)(b) of the Junior Market rules) as a result of it,

the Company will not make an application for the Shares to be admitted to the Junior Market and all applications will be
returned to the persons who made them, along with any payments made in relation thereto.
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STATIONERY &
OFFICE SUPPLIES
LTD.

Registered and Head Office:

23 Beechwood Avenue, Kingston 5, JAMAICA
Telephone: (876) 926-5688 ¢ Facsimile: (876) 968-8200
Website: www.sosjm.com

Dear Prospective Investors,

The Directors of the Company are pleased to invite you to subscribe and purchase 50,024,100 Shares in the
capital of the Company on the terms and conditions set out in this Prospectus.

The Company

The Company opened its doors on July 23rd, 1965; beginning its fifty (50) year journey under the guidance
of Mr. Richard Hing, Mr. George Hew and Mr. David McDaniel. In 1970, the Company became wholly owned
by the McDaniel family when all of the issued ordinary shares of the Company were acquired by Mr. David
McDaniel and Mrs. Marjorie McDaniel. The Company now operates out of a 35,000 square feet warehouse,
office and showroom on 21-25 Beechwood Avenue in Kingston. The Head Office currently employs eighty-
three (83) team members and also serves as the home base for eleven (11) delivery vehicles, including trucks,
which support quick and efficient service delivery to its customers which is one of the Company’s many
hallmarks.

As the Company’ customer base grew, the Company saw it prudent to expand its physical presence within
the island and in 2010 opened its Montego Bay location in the new Fairview Office Complex. The 3,000 square
feet location houses 1,200 square feet of office and showroom space and a 1,800 square foot warehousing
facility supported by a staff complement of sixteen (16). The Montego Bay team serves customers on the
western side of the island, making deliveries from Trelawny to Westmoreland.

The Company has expanded from its core business of office supplies and stationery items to include
modular office furniture, partitions, metal products, chairs, cabinets and shelving. The Company carries
leading international brands in office furniture - Fursys and Boss - for which they are the sole local distributors.
In 2011, the Company capitalized on the demand for lower priced items of comparable quality, by introducing
the first of two (2) proprietary brands, the first being the “Image” brand and shortly thereafter in 2012, the
Company introduced its second brand “Torch”.

The Company prides itself in offering excellent after sales service to its customers. In line with the
customer-centric approach the Company has always employed, the Company’s team often works after the
normal business hours of its customers and on the weekends to ensure minimal disruption to their customers’
operations and/or in order to accommodate any specific or peculiar security concerns of its customers.

The Company boasts a credit customer base of over 3,180, in addition to thousands of cash customers,
highlighting SOS’ significant market presence within the stationery, office supplies and modular furniture
industry in the island.

Commercial Shredding

During the last six (6) years, the Company added commercial shredding to its suite of services offered to the
general public. The service has become popular among entities which have large volumes of waste paper and
other sensitive material that stores data, but are concerned about improper disposal methods. The Company’s
shredding facility meets international best practice standards and has the capacity to shred up to 5,000
pounds of paper per day as well as the destruction of tapes, hard drives and compact discs (CDs).

The Company's shredding facility offers the customer the ability to view an on-line real-time video stream
of the shredding process being undertaken on-site on their behalf, or if preferred the customer may also be
present when the shredding process is being undertaken. This is particularly appealing to businesses with
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Letter to
Prospective

Investors
(Cont.)

respect to which confidentiality is a priority and/or a necessity. Any waste paper is then exported to various
paper mills for recycling.

See Information About the Company in Section 7 for more details about the Company’s capabilities,
services and customers.

You are invited to review the Management Discussion and Analysis in Section 9, the Financial Highlights in
Section 10, and the Auditor’s Report and Historical Financial Data in Section 11 for more information on the
Company and its performance to date.

The Invitation

In order to provide working capital support to its operations and in order to allow the Company to increase
its stock levels and thereby increase its turnover, to liquidate some of its debt obligations and acquire an
adjoining property to its location in Kingston at 34 Collins Green Avenue for additional warehousing space, the
Company is seeking to raise approximately $95,048,200 by inviting subscriptions for up to 50,024,100 Shares
from the general public and the Reserved Share Applicants. The Company estimates that the expenses in the
Invitation will not exceed $12,000,000 inclusive of General Consumption Tax, broken down as follows:

a. Arranger, financial advisory and brokerage fees: $3,495,000;

b. Legal fees: $4,660,000;

C Auditor’s and Accounting fees: $200,000;

d. Statutory fees including initial listing fees: $752,000;

e Marketing expenses: $2,000,000; and
f. Registrar and Transfer Agent fees: $250,000

The subscription list opens at 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date: July 19th, 2017and closes at 4:30 p.m. on the
Closing Date: July 26th, 2017, subject to the right of the Company to shorten or extend the time for closing of
the subscription list in the circumstances specified in this Prospectus. If the Invitation is fully subscribed and is
successful in raising at least $50,000,000 as per Rule 501(2)(b) of the Junior Market Rules, the Company will make
an application to the JSE for the Shares to be admitted to the Junior Market within three (3) to four (4) weeks
of the Closing Date (or the extended Closing Date, as the case may be). Please note that this statement of the
Company'’s intention is not a guarantee that the Shares will in fact be admitted to trading on the Junior Market.

The Invitation represents an opportunity for prospective investors to partake in the success of the Company.
The Company is also pleased to announce the recent appointments of Mr. Gary “Butch” Hendrickson, Mr. Anthony
Bell and Mr. R. Evan Thwaites to the Board of Directors, as independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant to Rule
503(1)(a) of the Junior Market Rules the Company has appointed Mr. Michael Fraser as its mentor.

If, however, the Invitation is not fully subscribed and the Company does not raise at least $50,000,000 as per
Rule 501(2)(b) of the Junior Market Rules, as a result, the Company will not make an application for the Shares
to be admitted to the Junior Market and all Applications will be returned to the persons who made them,
along with any payments made in relation thereto. Similarly, if after application for listing the Shares are not
admitted to trading all Applications will be returned in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in
Section 6.5.

Benefits of Listing on the Junior Market of the Jamaica Stock Exchange

The Company believes that listing on the Junior Market will raise its profile while allowing it to raise funds
for working capital support to its operations and in order to allow the Company to increase its stock levels and
thereby increase its turnover, to liquidate some of its debt obligations and acquire an adjoining property to its
location in Kingston at 34 Collins Green Avenue for additional warehousing space. This will allow the Company to
augment its revenue stream and thereby its profitability and its ability to pay dividends on a consistent basis.

In addition, the Company believes that the funds raised from the Invitation, if successful, will enable it to
improve both its balance sheet and its capacity to take on debt in future, if required.

The Company further believes that listing will enable it to take advantage of a special concessionary tax
regime for Junior Market companies provided that the Company remains listed for fifteen (15) years. In its first
five (5) years on the Junior Market, the Company will not be liable to pay any corporate income tax and in the
sixth to tenth year on the Junior Market the Company will only be liable to pay corporate income tax at one-
half of the applicable rate. Furthermore, Shareholders who sell their Shares via the JSE will not be liable to pay
transfer tax in respect of such sales. See Section 14.2 of this Prospectus for further details of the concessionary
tax regime for Junior Market Companies.
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Use of Proceeds

It is the Company’s intention to use the proceeds of the public offering for working capital support to its
operations and in order to allow the Company to increase its stock levels and thereby increase its turnover, to
liquidate some of its debt obligations and acquire an adjoining property to its location in Kingston at 34 Collins
Green Avenue for additional warehousing space. The IPO will facilitate capital injection into the Company which
will afford it the opportunity to create sufficient working capital to facilitate it increasing the stock levels of its fast
moving items which will allow it to increase the turnover of its stock and thereby its revenues. With increased
stock levels comes the attendant need for larger warehousing facilities and the Company is already in the process
of purchasing a lot that adjoins its Beechwood Avenue location in Kingston which is located at 34 Collins Green
Avenue. The Company also sees the opportunity to widen its pre-existing footprint within the Caribbean region.
The Company intends to apply the net IPO proceeds (net of IPO expenses) to the above-discussed items as follows:

a. Stock and Working Capital $16,000,000
b. Liquidate Debt $31,000,000
[ Property Acquisition $36,000,000

TOTAL $83,000,000

The Company also intends to pay the expenses associated with the Invitation out of the fundraising
proceeds. The Company estimates that the expenses in the Invitation will not exceed $12,000,000 inclusive of
General Consumption Tax, broken down as follows:

g. Arranger, financial advisory and brokerage fees: $3,495,000;

h. Legal fees: $4,660,000;

i Auditor’s and Accounting fees: $200,000;

j. Statutory fees including initial listing fees: $752,000;

k. Marketing expenses: $2,000,000; and
l. Registrar and Transfer Agent fees: $250,000

Future Prospects

The Directors believe that this capital injection into the Company will afford it the opportunity to create
sufficient working capital to facilitate it increasing the stock levels of its fast moving items which will allow it to
increase the turnover of its stock and thereby its revenues. With increased stock levels, comes the attendant
need for larger warehousing facilities and the Company is already in the process of purchasing a lot that
adjoins its Beechwood Avenue location in Kingston which is located at 34 Collins Green Avenue. The Company
also sees the opportunity to widen its pre-existing footprint within the Caribbean region.

Dividend Policy

If the Company is admitted to the Junior Market, the Directors intend to pursue a liberal dividend policy
that projects an annual dividend of up to twenty-five per cent (25%) net profits available for distribution,
subject to the need for reinvestment in the Company from time to time.

How to Subscribe for Shares

Those investors who are interested in subscribing for Shares should read the Prospectus in its entirety and
the terms and conditions of the Invitation set out in Section 6.5, and then complete the Application Form set
out in Appendix 1 hereof.

The Directors hope that prospective investors will join the Company (and thereby our family) in this exciting
new phase of its development as it readies itself to be the oldest company to list on the Junior Market of the
Jamaica Stock Exchange and the first of its kind to list on the Junior Market.

Yours sincerely,
For and on behalf of the Company,

David McDaniel

Managing Director

S orrice supeiies (28 Fund Managers Ltd.
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Section 4

Definitions
Used in This
Prospectus

Fund Managers Ltd.

Act means the Companies Act, 2004

Allotment means the allotment of the Shares to successful Applicants by Jamaica Central
Securities Depository Limited, in its capacity as registrar and transfer agent of the
Company, on its behalff

Applicant means a person (being an individual or a body corporate resident in Jamaica, whether

a Reserved Share Applicant, or a member of the general public) who submits an
Application in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Prospectus

Application Form

means the Application Form to be completed by Applicants who wish to make an
offer to subscribe for Shares in the Invitation which is set out in Appendix 1 hereof

Articles of Incorporation

means the Articles of Incorporation of the Company adopted on March 29th, 2017 (as
they may be amended by the shareholders of the Company from time to time)

Audit Committee

means the audit committee required to be constituted by both rules 503 and 504,
and which is required to have a majority of independent non-executive Directors as
members

Auditor’s Report

means the report of Mair Russell Grant Thornton, Chartered Accountants set out in
Section 11 that precedes the Historical Financial Data

Board of Directors

means the Board of Directors of the Company, details of which are set out in Section 8
of the Prospectus

Company/SOS means Stationery and Office Supplies Limited, a company duly incorporated under
the Laws of Jamaica, bearing company number: 4,735, and whose registered office is
located at 23 Beechwood Avenue, Kingston 5, Jamaica

Closing Date means the date on which the subscription list in respect of the Invitation closes, being
4:30 p.m. on July 26th, 2017 subject to the right of the Company to either shorten or
extend the subscription period in the circumstances set out in the Prospectus

Corporate Governance means the corporate governance committee constituted at a meeting of the Board

Committee of Directors convened on March 29th, 2017 and which has a majority of independent
non-executive Directors as members

Director means a director of the Company

Forward Looking Statements

means the forward looking statements referred to in Section 5 of the Prospectus,
which are disclaimed by the Company on the terms and for the reasons set out therein

FSC

means the Financial Services Commission in Jamaica

Historical Financial Data

means the figures set out in Section 11, including those extracted from the audited
financial statements of the Company for each of the financial reporting periods ended
December 31st in the years 2012 to 2016, the Unaudited Financial Statements of the
Company in respect of the period of January 1st, 2017 to March 31st, 2017

Invitation means the invitation to subscribe for 50,024,100 Shares on the terms and conditions
set out in Section 6.5 of the Prospectus
IPO means “initial public offering” as defined in Appendix 1 of the Junior Market
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JSE

means the Jamaica Stock Exchange

Junior Market

means the Junior Market of the JSE

Opening Date

means the date on which the subscription list in respect of the Invitation opens, being
9:00 a.m. on July 19th, 2017

JN Fund Managers Means JN Fund Managers Limited, a company duly incorporated under the Laws of
Jamaica, bearing company number: 62,008 and whose registered office is located
at 2-4 Constant Spring Road, Kingston 10, Jamaica and being the lead broker to the
Company for the purposes of the Invitation

Prospectus means this document, which constitutes a prospectus for the purposes of the
Companies Act, 2004 and the Securities Act

RTGS means the Real Time Gross Settlement System implemented by the Bank of Jamaica

Registrar means Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited

Remuneration Committee

means the remuneration committee required to be constituted by both rules 503 and
504, and which is required to have a majority of independent non-executive Directors
as members

Reserved Shares

means up to 22,500,000 Shares in the Invitation which are specifically reserved for
application from, and subscription by, the Reserved Share Applicants at the designated
applicable discounted price(s).

Reserved Share Applicants

means the persons (as referred to herein) who are entitled to subscribe for Reserved
Shares in their respective categories, namely: the Employees, Family and JN Fund
Managers’ Clients.

Shares

means the ordinary shares of no par value in the capital of the Company, inclusive of
the 50,024,100 Shares that are offered for subscription in the Invitation on the terms
and conditions set out in this Prospectus, and the expression “Shares” shall include the
Reserved Shares where the context permits.

Shareholders

means the holders of Shares

Subscription Price

means $2.00 per Share or such price as it relates to each respective Reserved Share, as
applicable

Terms and Conditions of the
Invitation

means the terms and conditions for Applicants set out in Sections 6.5 of the
Prospectus

Unaudited Financial
Statements

means the unaudited financial statements of the Company for the three (3) month
period ended March 31st, 2017 that are set out in Section 10 of the Prospectus

means Jamaican Dollars, unless otherwise indicated
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Section 5

Disclaimer
- Forward
Looking
Statements

Fund Managers Ltd.

Save for the Historical Financial Data concerning the Company contained in this Prospectus, certain
matters discussed in this Prospectus, including without limitation, statements of expectations, the
discussions of future plans and financial projections, contain forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements are statements that are not about historical facts and speak only as of the date
they are made. Although the Directors believe that in making any such statements its expectations
are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements may be influenced by factors that could cause
actual outcomes and results to be materially different from those projected. Prospective investors in the
Company are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of the dates on which they have been made. Future events or circumstances could cause actual
results to differ materially from historical or anticipated results.

When used in this Prospectus, the words “anticipates’, “believes’, “expects”, “intends” and similar
expressions, as they relate to the Company, are intended to identify those forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties. Once this
Prospectus has been signed by or on behalf of the Company, and prior to the admission of the Company
to the Junior Market, the Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly or revise any of the
forward-looking statements in light of new information or future events, including changes in the
Company’s financial or regulatory position, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events (subject
to any legal or regulatory requirements for such disclosure to be made). There are important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements, certain of which
are beyond the Company'’s control. These factors include, without limitation, the following:

«  economig, social and other conditions prevailing both within and outside of Jamaica, including
actual rates of growth of the Jamaican and regional economies, instability, high domestic
interest rates or exchange rate volatility

« adverse climatic events and natural disasters
. unfavourable market receptiveness to any of the Company’s new products

«  changes in any legislation or policy adversely affecting the revenues or expenses of the
Company

- any other factor negatively impacting on the realisation of the assumptions on which the
Company'’s financial projections are based

«  otherfactors identified in this Prospectus

«  other factors not yet known to the Company

Neither the FSC, nor any Government agency or regulatory authority in Jamaica, has made any
determination on the accuracy or adequacy of the matters contained in this Prospectus.

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 10



6.1 General Information Section 6

The Company is seeking to raise $95,048,200 from subscriptions for the 50,024,100 Shares in the Invitation
at the Subscription Price of $2.00 per Share (subject to discounts in respect of the Reserved Shares, where
applicable). Up to 22,500,000 of the aforementioned Shares are Reserved Shares that are specifically reserved Th e | nvitatio N
for application from, and subscription by, the Reserved Share Applicants. Any Reserved Shares not taken up
by the Reserved Share Applicants shall be made available for application from, and subscription by, the general
public.

Assuming that all of the 50,024,100 Shares are subscribed for and taken up by both the Reserved Share
Applicants and the general public in the Invitation, the Company will make an application to the JSE for the
Shares to be admitted to the Junior Market. If the application is successful, it is anticipated that the Shares will
be admitted to trading within three (3) to four (4) weeks of the Closing Date (or the extended Closing Date, as
the case may be). In the event that the Company does not raise at least $50,000,000 as per Rule 501(2)(b) of
the Junior Market Rules, and/or the Shares are not admitted to trade on the Junior Market, all Applications will
be returned to Applicants, along with any payments made in relation thereto.

Prospective investors should read all of the sections referred to carefully together with the remainder of
this document. Those prospective investors who wish to subscribe for Shares should also refer to the full terms
and conditions set out in Section 6.5 before completing the Application Form set out in Appendix 1.

6.2 Minimum Fundraising

For the purposes of section 48 of the Companies Act the minimum amount which, in the opinion of
the Directors, must be raised as a result of the Invitation and received by the Company as a result of the
subscription of its Shares in the Invitation in order to provide for the matters set out in paragraph two of the
Third Schedule to the Act is $50,000,000.

6.3 Use of Proceeds

It is the Company’s intention to use the proceeds of the public offering for working capital support to its
operations and in order to allow the Company to increase its stock levels and thereby increase its turnover, to
liquidate some of its debt obligations and acquire an adjoining property to its location in Kingston at 34 Collins
Green Avenue for additional warehousing space. The IPO will facilitate capital injection into the Company
which will afford it the opportunity to create sufficient working capital to facilitate it increasing the stock levels
of its fast moving items which will allow it to increase the turnover of its stock and thereby its revenues. With
increased stock levels comes the attendant need for larger warehousing facilities and the Company is already
in the process of purchasing a lot that adjoins its Beechwood Avenue location in Kingston which is located at
34 Collins Green Avenue. The Company also sees the opportunity to widen its pre-existing footprint within the
Caribbean region.

The Company intends to apply the net IPO proceeds (net of IPO expenses) to the above-discussed items as

follows:
a. Stock and Working Capital $16,000,000
b. Liquidate Debt $31,000,000
C. Property Acquisition $36,000,000

TOTAL $83,000,000

The Company also intends to pay the expenses associated with the Invitation out of the fundraising
proceeds. The Company estimates that the expenses in the Invitation will not exceed $12,000,000 inclusive of
General Consumption Tax, broken down as follows:

a. Arranger, financial advisory and brokerage fees: $3,495,000;

b. Legal fees: $4,660,000;

C Auditor’s and Accounting fees: $200,000;

d. Statutory fees including initial listing fees: $752,000;

e Marketing expenses: $2,000,000; and
f. Registrar and Transfer Agent fees: $250,000

Fund Managers Ltd.
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The Invitation
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6.4 Key Dates

An Application Form for use by all Applicants is provided at Appendix 1 at the end of this Prospectus,
together with notes on how to complete it. The subscription list for the Shares will open at 9:00 a.m. on the
Opening Date: July 19th, 2017 and will close at 4:30 p.m. on the Closing Date July 26th, 2017, subject to the
right of the Company to (a) close the subscription list at any time after 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date: July
19th, 2017 once the issue is fully subscribed and (b) extend the Closing Date for any reason. In either case, the
Company will arrange for an informational notice to be posted on the website of the JSE (www.jamstockex.
com). It is the intention of the Company to apply to the JSE for admission of the Shares to the Junior Market.
The application is dependent on the Company’s ability to (i) raise at least $50,000,000 as per Rule 501(2)(b) of
the Junior Market Rules as a result of the Invitation and (ii) meet the criteria for admission. If such application
is made and it is successful the Company expects the Shares to be admitted to trading on the Junior Market
within three (3) to four (4) weeks of the Closing Date (or the extended Closing Date, as the case may be) and
for dealings to commence on that date. In the event that the Shares are not admitted to trading on the Junior
Market all Applications received by the Company will be returned to Applicants as set out in Section 6.5.

6.5 Terms and Conditions for Applicants

1. All Applicants (whether Reserved Share Applicants or members of the general public) must submit an
Application Form as provided at Appendix 1 to this Prospectus. Reserved Share Applicants must specify
their status on the Application Form and verifiable proof of such status must be presented.

2. All Applicants will be deemed to have accepted the terms and conditions of the Invitation and any other
terms and conditions set out in this Prospectus, including any terms and conditions set out in this Section 6
and Appendix 1.

3. Each Applicant acknowledges and agrees that:

(@) he/she has been afforded a meaningful opportunity to review the Prospectus (including the terms and
conditions set out in this section 6.5), and to gather and review all additional information considered
by him/her to be necessary to verify the accuracy of the information contained in this Prospectus;

(b) he/she has not relied on the Company or any other connected persons in connection with his/her
investigation of the accuracy of such information or his/her investment decision; and

(¢) no person connected with the Company has made any representation concerning the Company or
this Prospectus not contained in this Prospectus, on which the Applicant has relied in submitting his/
her Application Form.

4. Application Forms from the general public must request a minimum of 5,000 Shares and shall be made in

multiples of 1,000. Application Forms from the general public in other denominations will not be processed
or accepted.

5. All Application Forms must be submitted together with payment for the Shares in the form of either:

(@) amanager’'s cheque made payable to“JN Fund Managers Limited”; or

(b) authorization from the Applicant on the Application Form, instructing JN Fund Managers to make
payment from cleared funds held with JN Fund Managers in an investment account in the Applicant’s
name; or

(c) transfer or direct deposit to JN Fund Managers (details set out in the Application form attached
herein).
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All completed Application Forms must be delivered to JN Fund Managers at the following locations Islandwide: The | nVitation

Kingston Montego Bay Mandeville Ocho Rios Portmore
JN Financial Centre JN Financial Centre Mandeville Plaza Corner of Graham Shop #29
2 Belmont Road Mega Mart Complex Mandeville Street & DaCosta Portmore Pines Plaza
(876) 929-7102 Catherine Hall Manchester Drive, St. Ann St Catherine
(876) 926-1344-9 (876) 926-1344-9 (876) 926-1344-9 (876) 926-1344-9

6. All Shares in the Invitation are priced at the Subscription Price of $2.00 per Share (subject to discounts in
respect of Reserved Shares, where applicable).

7. Application Forms submitted to JN Fund Managers in advance of the Opening Date (early applications)
will be received but not processed until the Opening Date. All advance applications will be treated as
having been received at 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date, July 19th, 2017, and shall be allotted pro rata.

All Application Forms received from 9:00 a.m. onwards on the Opening Date will be time stamped for
processing in the order in which they were received. That is, the Application Forms will be processed on a
first come, first served basis. Application Forms that meet the requirements set out in this Section 6.5 will
be processed.

8. For the purposes of paragraph 7 above the Directors of the Company, in their sole discretion, may:

(@) accept or reject any Application Form in whole or part without giving reasons, and neither the Company
nor the Directors shall be liable to any Applicant or any other person for doing so; and

(b) allot Shares to Applicants on a basis to be determined by it in its sole discretion. Multiple applications by
any person (whether in individual or joint names) may be treated as a single application.

9. Neither the submission of an Application Form by an Applicant nor its receipt by the Company will result in
a binding contract between the Applicant and the Company. Only the allotment of Shares by the Registrar
on behalf of the Company to an Applicant (whether such Shares represent all or part of those specified by
the Applicant in his/her Application Form) will result in a binding contract under which the Applicant will be
deemed to have agreed to subscribe for the number of allotted Shares at the Subscription Price, subject to
the Articles of Incorporation and these terms and conditions set out in Section 6.5.

10. If the Invitation is successful in raising at least $50,000,000 as per Rule 501(2)(b) of the Junior Market Rules,
and the Shares are admitted to trade on the Junior Market, successful Applicants will be allotted Shares
for credit to their account at the Registrar specified in their Application Forms. Applicants may refer to the
informational notice that will be posted on the website of the JSE (www.jamstockex.com) after the Closing
Date. Applicants who wish to receive share certificates must make a specific request to the Registrar.

1

—_

.With respect to refunds that are less than the RTGS threshold of $1 Million, the Company will endeavour to
return cheques for the amounts refundable to Applicants whose applications are not accepted, or whose
application are only accepted in part, to JN Fund Managers within ten (10) days after the Closing Date (or
the extended Closing Date, as the case may be) or as soon as practicable thereafter. Each refund cheque
will be sent to JN Fund Managers for collection by the Applicant (or the first-named joint Applicant) stated in
the Application Form. Any other persons purporting to collect a cheque on behalf of the Applicant must be
authorised in writing by the Applicant(s) to do so. All refunds of a quantum greater than the RTGS threshold
of $1 Million, will be refunded via RTGS to the account of origin.

12.Applicants must be at least eighteen (18) years old. However, Applicants who have not yet attained the age of
eighteen (18) years, may apply jointly with Applicants who are at least eighteen (18) years of age.

Fund Managers Ltd.
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7.1 The Company and its History

Date of Incorporation and that Era

was a common year commencing on

1 9 6 a Friday of the Gregorian Calendar.
Stationery and Office Supplies Limited, now
commonly referred to as “SOS", was incorporated
over fifty (50) years ago on Friday, July 23rd, 1965
and commenced business under the guidance of
shareholders and directors Mr. Richard Hing, Mr.
George Hew and Mr. David McDaniel with a handful
of employees occupying 600 square feet of space at
18 Melmac Avenue.

To give some perspective of the time and era
when the Company was established:

In Jamaica:

+ The Daily Gleaner’s headline on Friday, July
23rd, 1965 read: “House approves new JPSCo
franchise”

«  The West Indian Federation had already
collapsed and Jamaica was in its third year of
independence from Britain as a sovereign nation

« Jamaica’s first Prime Minister, Sir Alexander
Bustamante, was still serving his first term
in office and Sir Clifford Campbell was the
Governor General

« Miss Jamaica was Miss Marie Elizabeth “Mitsy”
Constantine (later Seaga)

« Ska (as a predecessor to Rocksteady and Reggae)
was the most popular locally-produced music,
with Prince Buster reigning supreme

+ These were “Pound Days” as the local currency
was the English Pound and the Penny and
Ha'Penny. Jamaica did not change to a decimal
system of currency (using Jamaican Dollars and
Cents) until September 8th, 1969

+ The Jamaica Stock Exchange did not exist and
was not incorporated until three (3) years later in
1968 and started operations a year later in 1969
at the Bank of Jamaica Building.

« Jamaica became a member of the United
Nations Human Rights Commission for the first
time

« Dr. Martin Luther King had delivered the
valedictory sermon for the students of the
University of the West Indies one (1) month prior
on June 20th, 1965 and was presented with
the keys to the City of Kingston at the National
Stadium

Regionally

«  Dr. Eric Williams was serving his first term as the
first Prime Minister of Trinidad & Tobago

« Mr. Errol Barrow was the Premier of Barbados
as it did not gain its independence from Britain
until 1966.

Globally

«  The World's “super powers” were still in the
throes of the “Cold War” with mutual annihilation
being a palpable global concern.

»  World leaders included: Mr. Lyndon B. Johnson
- President of the United States of America; Mr.
Harold Wilson - Prime Minister of Britain (former
Prime Minister, Sir Winston Churchill, had died
earlier in January 1965); Mr. Lester B. Pearson
— Prime Minister of Canada and Mr. Charles de
Gaulle - President of France

+ The Canadian Flag, as we now know it, was
inaugurated as the flag of Canada earlier in
February 1965

+ Malcolm X was assassinated in February 1965

«  The movie “My Fair Lady” won eight (8) Academy
Awards in April 1965

+  The“FourTops’, “The Supremes”,“The Beatles”
and “The Rolling Stones” commanded the music
charts

« Mohammed Ali was the reigning boxing heavy-
weight champion of the World having delivered
the “Phantom Punch”to Sonny Liston in their
rematch on May 25th, 1965

Metamorphosis of the Company & Systems,
Operational Structure and Services

Since its incorporation, the Company has
metamorphosed into a modern and efficient
business occupying approximately 35,000 square
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feet with ninety-nine (99) employees between its
locations in Kingston and Montego Bay.

In 1969 the Company relocated to 7 Haining
Road in order to facilitate expansion. In 1970,
Richard Hing and George Hew resigned as directors
of the Company and sold all of their shares in the
Company to David and Marjorie McDaniel, who
then collectively became the sole shareholders of
the Company.

After nineteen (19) years at the Haining Road
location, the Company relocated to 4 Orchard Road
to facilitate the construction of a 2,500 square foot
warehouse. That building was sold in 1997, and the
Company expanded its operations and relocated
to 21 - 25 Beechwood Avenue where it operates
out of 35,000 square foot warehouse, office and
showroom on 58,000 square feet of land. The
extra space has allowed the Company to expand
with ample parking for its trucks, employees and
customers.

As the Company grew over the years, it
branched out from its core business of stationery
items to include modular office furniture, partitions,
metal products, chairs and many more items, which
sees the Company working after normal business
hours and on weekends in order to accommodate
the needs of customers for both installations
and servicing, as the Company services all items
that it sells and always tries to accommodate any
reasonable request that is made by its customers.

With the use of AutoCAD® software technology,

Showroom in Kingston.

the Company is able to design office spaces

and placing of partitions and furniture in order

to optimize the use of space thus allowing its
customers to maximize the output of their human
resources. The Company is also able to afford its
customers the facility of customizing their furniture
requirements from both an aesthetic and also from
a cost and need perspective. The modular nature
of its systems furniture allows its customers to scale
their furniture requirements to meet their physical
needs and cash flow limitations allowing the
Company to grow with its customers.

Apart from its ability to service what it sells,
another hallmark of the Company’s service is its
ability to supply most customer orders out of
existing stock due to its optimally-managed stock
and warehousing systems which is integrated into
a customer relationship management software
system that was specially designed for the
Company.

The Company has also recently negotiated
the purchase of 34 Collins Avenue, which is a
property (with a usable building located thereon)
that abuts and is contiguous to its offices at
Beechwood Avenue. The Company estimates
that the acquisition of this property will allow
it to initially increase its warehousing space by
approximately 10,000 square feet and then scale up
to approximately 20,000 square feet of warehousing
space effectively increasing its occupiable space
in Kingston by approximately fifty-seven per cent
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Montego Bay branch

(57%). This increased warehousing space will allow
the Company to increase its stock levels and the
turnover of its stock with a resultant increase in
revenue.

Succession Planning

In 1992 the first of the second generation
of McDaniel’s, Mrs. Kerri McDaniel-Todd, joined
the Company as a sales representative and now
currently holds the position of Director - Special
Projects. Mr. Stephen Todd, joined in 1997, as
Director - Sales and Marketing.

In 1998, Mr. Allan McDaniel joined the Company
to assist in the management of the warehouse
and is currently the Deputy Managing-Director
and Director with responsibility for Logistics and
Warehousing. The last family member to join the
Company in 2000 was Mrs. Kelli McDaniel- Muschett
who is the Director - Purchasing and Administration.
By 2006 the management team was complete
with the addition of Mr. David Charles Plant as the
Company’s Financial Controller.

With the addition of each new member of the
management team over the years, the Company
has seen a surge of enthusiasm which has seen the
Company adapting to the latest technology, more
modern sales and marketing tactics and increased
customer service techniques, which has resulted in
higher customer satisfaction and increased sales. The
Company has also seen an expansion in the lines that
it carried as well as new products and services that

are being offered including: shredding, shredding
machine repairs, furniture valuations, mobile high
density storage solutions, space planning, movable
wall systems and accordion doors.

The Kingston Head Office of the Company
employs eighty-three (83) staff members with
a fleet of eleven (11) delivery vans that cover
deliveries islandwide.

After years of successful operations in Kingston,
and with the increase in demand for better service
and faster turnover of deliveries in areas outside
of Kingston, in 2010 the Company opened its
doors in Montego Bay at the new Fairview Office
Complex with 1,200 square feet of office and
showroom space and 1,800 square feet of storage
space (which is supported by the stock held at the
Kingston location). The Montego Bay branch has
a staff complement of sixteen (16) and is managed
by Ms. Denise Mclntosh as Branch Manager. This
dynamic team quickly and efficiently started to
pave new paths into the western regions of Jamaica
which had previously been inaccessible. Two (2)
delivery vehicles make the journey from Trelawny
through to Westmoreland which gives our western
customers access to goods that they never had
before. This office was greeted with enthusiasm by
the Company’s customers and has surpassed the
expectations of the Company.

The Company currently has over 3,180 credit
customers with whom it does business with on
a consistent and ongoing basis, in addition to
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thousands of cash customers.

Exclusive Distribution Rights

The Company is the sole distributor in Jamaica
for Fursys Systems Office Furniture (one of its
leading lines of systems (modular) office furniture
lines), Boss Chairs, Smart Office Furniture, Hi-Top
Case Goods, Torch Furniture, Image Furniture,
Gardex Fire Resistant Cabinets and Safes and is the

only authorized service agent for Fellows Shredders.

The Company’s Approved Economic Operator
status with the Jamaica Customs Agency allows

it to have its documents processed at customs
immediately and to have its cargo released without
inspection which facilitates the Company’s efficient
management of its stock levels.

International Customers

Throughout the years the Company has
done business with every sector of the Jamaican
economy, including: government agencies (as it
enjoys Approved Supplier status by the National

Contracts Commission), schools, architects, interior
designers, hospitals and a myriad of private sector
organizations, including the BPO sector, which is
testament to the very wide appeal that its products
and services have across the various sectors of

the economy. In addition, the Company has also
supplied and installed systems furniture overseas
to many multinational organisations in territories
such as: The Turks and Caicos Islands, Haiti, Anguilla,
Saint Kitts, Barbados, Saint Vincent, Guyana and
Miami, and sees the potential to expand its foot-
print within the Caribbean region as the Company
continues its expansion drive.

Marketing and Social Media Presence

The Company has always seen the value in
having and maintaining a robust advertising and
marketing campaign on an ongoing basis and has
traditionally used print media as its main advertising
medium. However, over the past few years the
Company has augmented its advertising and
marketing campaign by embarking upon a social
media campaign and had consistently modified
its website in order to integrate same with the key
social media platforms including Facebook® and
Instagram®. The Company’s robust advertising and
marketing mix allows it to ensure that its customers
remain up-to-date on the latest products and
specials offered by the Company.
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Sustainability and Green Solutions

In 2011, the Company decided to play its part
in protecting our environment by introducing
shredding services to the general public. This
endeavour has grown rapidly over the last six (6)
years as companies have become more aware of
the hazards of improper waste disposal methods
of old office documents and sensitive data storage
material. Housed in its own secure storage facility
on the compound, this addition to the Company’s
service offerings meets all international best practice
standards, including banking best practice standards,
as they apply to shredding and the destruction of
material that contain confidential information.

All of the shredded paper products are exported
and sent to various mills overseas where the
shredded paper is recycled. Customers are able
to relax in the comfort of their offices and view
the shredding process being undertaken at the
Company’s premises with SOS’ on- line real-time
viewing capabilities. Alternatively, customers
may also be present at the Company’s premises
to observe the process. The Company is currently
able to process up to 5,000 pounds of paper of a
daily basis and also has the ability to shred tapes,
hard drives, CDs and other media storage devices
in compliance with international best practice
standards. Pickup and delivery services options are
also offered to those clients who require door to
door service.

In December 2014, the Company installed a
75kw solar (photovoltaic) system at its head office
at Beechwood Avenue. This includes 292, 255
watt solar panels mounted on the roof and 9, 7000
watt inverters installed in a secure location. This
has resulted in a 70% reduction of the Company’s
reliance on electricity supply from Jamaica Power
Service (JPS), and a significant decrease in operating
costs. This is quite a juxtaposition from the era
of absolute reliability on JPS for electricity supply
that obtained on the day that the Company was
incorporated when the Daily Gleaner’s headline
read: “House approves new JPSCo franchise”and is a
testament to the Company’s evolution over the years.

The Company is very proud of its contribution to
the preservation of the environment and will continue
to exercise this policy in the foreseeable future.

Charitable Works

For many years the Company has supported
various charitable events and donated stationery

items and furniture supplies to various schools and
organizations. In December 2014, the Company
adopted the Jackson Basic School located in Jones
Town and the Company has undertaken numerous
projects at the school including: painting a portion
of the school building and the surrounding walls,
fixing and painting the playground equipment,
laying grass and gravel in the play area for the
children and painting the exterior of the building.
The staff at the Company, along with additional
family members, also participate in events such
as the Sagicor Sigma Corporate Run in order to
assist with raising funds and giving significant
contributions for its charities, including the Cornwall
Regional Neo-Natal Ward and the Jamaican Kidney
Kids Foundation.

The Future

Stationery and Office Supplies Ltd. is a family-
oriented company which has committed itself to
excellence in its field. Over time, the Company
has grown and adapted to the changing Jamaican
business and economic environment while
gaining valuable experience along the way, having
weathered each successive local and global
economic crisis by creating and refining a business
model that is economically stable and with sound
management practices. As the Company embarks
upon this IPO and the next fifty (50) years of its
future, it looks back at its humble beginnings and
looks forward to the next fifty (50) years of success.
The Company will have the distinction of being the
oldest company to list on the Junior Market and
also the first of its kind to list on the Junior Market.

Customers

The Company provides its products and services
to many blue-chip companies and businesses in
Jamaica. Some of the Company’s customers are set
out at the side of pages.

Employees

The Company strongly believes in the
capabilities of its employees and has established a
structure to incentivize its employees and also to
assist with their well-being.

The Company currently employs ninety-nine (99)
team members and strives to maintain a highly-
motivated and structured work-force. The Company
enjoys a high-level of employee retention, which
has been achieved by the following initiatives:
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a. Management: The Company has an
effective, progressive-thinking and decisive
management team.

codified in the form of an employee
handbook.

Management
b. Commission System: All members of the

sales team are paid commissions on the
basis of their actual collections on sales.

The Company has a very experienced team of
Directors and managers who lead and manage the
business towards achieving the Company’s vision,
executing the business strategies, and continuing
the growth in shareholder value. These persons
include:

¢. Additional Monthly Incentive Programme:
Each month an incentive sales target is set
and communicated to both the sales and
customer service teams. If each monthly
target is achieved, these employees receive

0 Mr. David McDaniel - Managing Director

an additional percentage of the total sales o Mrs. Marjorie McDaniel - Director, Company
for that month. Secretary & Chief Administrative Officer Eﬁ
.
d. Employee and Family Share Ownership: o Mr. Allan McDaniel - Deputy Managing Director -

An opportunity for employees to own
Shares by means the availability of the
Reserved Shares for subscription.

& Director of Warehousing and Logistics
o Kerri McDaniel-Todd - Director - Special Projects

e.  Group Health and Life Insurance Scheme: o Kelli McDaniel Muschett - Director -

The Company pays 50% of the premium
for its employees’ participation in the
Company’s health scheme.

Policies and Procedures: The Company has
well-established disciplinary guidelines,
rules and regulations, which has been

Purchasing & Administration

Stephen Todd - Director - Sales & Marketing

Mr. David Charles Plant - Financial Controller

Ms. Denise Mclntosh — Manager,
Montego Bay Branch

‘E%
Sagicor Bank

SUN ISLAND

TANN-W!I.DIWM ETALS
——

STEEL & LUMBER SUPERMARKET

A TRITEL

Servite Jamai

“WISYNGCD’

The Executive Directors of the Company from left: Mrs. Kelli (McDaniel) Muschett, Mrs. Marjorie McDaniel, Mrs. Kerri (McDaniel)
Todd, Mr. David McDaniel (seated), Mr. Stephen Todd and Mr. Allan McDaniel
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7.3 The Company’s Strategic Goals Recent Capital Reorganisation | nformation
The Company, through the vision, capabilities Following a Directors’ meeting held on March
and experience of its management team, as well as 29th, 2017 and an extraordinary general meeting d bO ut the
the experience gained since inception, has defined of the Company held on March 29th, 2017, the C
the following strategic objectives: following steps were approved in respect of the om pa ny
« To continue the expansion of its market capital structure of the Company:
share in Jamaica with the capital raised in + The Company'’s authorized share capital was
the IPO, which includes the purchase of new restructured by increasing the authorized
warehousing space and revising its working ordinary share capital of the Company from
capital structure. 2,000 ordinary shares without par value to
«To continue to expand its footprint within the 10’000’009 Iordlna;y;hares WIthO,Ut pz?rlvalu;e
Caribbean region. as per Artlc' e 49 of the Company’s Articles o
Incorporation.
7.4 Incorporation and Structure - Thereafter the Companies ordinary share
The Company was incorporated on Friday, July capital was sub-divided with each ordinary
23rd, 1965. The Company has no subsidiaries. Its share being divided into 50 ordinary shares
holding company is Outlook Limited, a company pursuant to section 65(1)(b) of the Companies
duly incorporated under the laws of Saint Lucia. Act, 2004 and Article 50 of the Companies
The shareholders of the Company have Articles of Incorporation (see illustrative Share
approved and adopted new Articles of Restructuring Table below).
Incorporation with effect from March 29th, 2017 « Thereafter, Outlook Limited was allotted
and the re-registration of the Company as a public an additional 199,996,400 Shares and
company. subsequently the 2,000 Shares collectively
held by Mr. David McDaniel and Mrs. Marjorie
7.5 Details of Authorised and Issued McDaniel were transferred to Outlook Limited,
Share Capital and the Shares in the as per the illustrative Share Restructuring Table.
Invitation « The remaining 50,024,100 Shares are all
being offered to the general public and/or the
Capital Structure of the Company Reserved Share Applicants in the Invitation.
A.s at the date of this Prospectus, the authorised - The re-registration of the Company as a
and issued share capital of the Company was as public company under the provisions of the
follows: Companies Act, 2004.
Authorised: 500,000,000 The adonti ¢ Articles of
Issued: 200,096,400 - Thea optlon [ .new rtic §so
Incorporation, which are available for
The Shares in the Invitation will be newly issued inspection as set out in Section 15 herein.
Shares of the Company.
ILLUSTRATIVE SHARE RESTRUCTURING TABLE
Name Shares Before Shares After the Shares After the Shares After Further Shares After Transfer
Increase in Authorised  Authorised Share Capital Sub-Division of the Allotments Made of the McDaniels’
Share Capital was Increased Authorised Share Capital Shares to Outlook
David McDaniel 1,400 1,400 70,000 70,000 0
Marjorie McDaniel 600 600 30,000 30,000 0
Outlook Limited 0 0 0 199,996,400 200,096,400
Total Shares: 2,000 2,000 100,000 200,096,400 200,096,400
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7.6 Shareholdings

As at the date of this Prospectus, the complete holdings of Shares in the capital of the Company were as
follows:

Name of Shareholder: Number of Shares before Opening Date:
Outlook Limited 200,096,400

After the subscription lists for the Invitation are closed, and assuming that the Invitation for the public
and the Reserved Share Applicants subscribe for up to 50,024,100 Shares is taken up in full, the percentage
shareholdings in the Company will be as follows:

Name of Shareholder Number of Shares Percentage of Issued Share
after Opening Date Capital after Opening Date

Outlook Limited 200,096,400 80%

Reserved Share Applicants 22,500,000 9%

General Public 27,524,100 11%

TOTALS 250,120,500 100.00

7.7 Applicable Regulatory Regime

The current business of the Company does not require it to be regulated as a bank, financial institution,
insurer or otherwise as a regulated entity. The regulatory information referred to in this section will be
available for inspection as described in Section 15.

7.8 Intellectual and Real Property

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company has the following interests in intellectual and real property:

Intellectual Property

The Company has made applications on April 26th, 2017 to register the following logos (see below) as
its trademarks, as per the provisions of the Trademarks Act, at the Jamaica Intellectual Property Office, in
the classes below. The registration process is expected to be completed by the end of July 2018 and an
Acknowledgment of Reception letter dated May 3rd, 2017 was received by the Company.

Classes To Be Registered: Classes To Be Registered: Classes To Be Registered:
GOODS (5) GOODS (1) GOODS (1)
Class 2 - Ink Class 20 - Office Furniture Class 20 - Office Furniture
Class 9 - Calculators, CDs, DVDs, DVD-Rs, Computer SERVICES (1) SERVICES (1)
hardware and accessories Class 37 - Installation, Class 37 - Installation,
Class 16 - Stationery (various) Maintenance and Repair Maintenance and Repair
Class 20 — Office Furnit of Office and Business of Office and Business

ass 20— ce rurniture Furniture and machinery, Furniture and machinery,
Class 35 — Wholesale and Retail Services upholstery repair upholstery repair

SERVICES (1)

Class 37 - Installation, Maintenance and Repair of Office and
Business Furniture and machinery, upholstery repair

A copy of the abovementioned Acknowledgement of Reception letter dated May 3rd, 2017 will be available for inspection as described in Section 15.
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Real Property

The Company is the registered proprietor of the three (3) properties that SOS occupies at 21, 23 and 25
Beechwood Avenue. A copy of the Original Certificates of Titles in respect of the aforementioned properties
will be available for inspection as described in Section 15.

The Company also leases warehousing, office and showroom space at Unit #8 at the Fairview Il Commercial
Centre, Montego Bay from Raman Holdings Limited. A copy of the aforementioned Lease Agreement and
letter will be available for inspection as described in Section 15.

7.9 Material Contracts

Given the nature of its business, most of the Company’s contractual arrangements relate to its employees
and service agreements with its customers, most of which are therefore deemed to be on-going dealings in
the ordinary course of business.

The following material contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, have
been entered into by the Company with the following persons (“Counterparties”):

Date Counterparty Brief Description

January 1st, 2011 Stocks & Securities Limited Lease for the Company’s branch
(subsequently sold to Raman Holdings  located at Unit #8 at the Fairview ||
Limited) Commercial Centre, Montego Bay.

Lease term is five (5) years, renewable
for a further term of five (5) years each

October 28th, 2016 Thwaites Finson Sharp Insurance Comprehensive Insurance Policies for
Brokers Limited the Motor Vehicles

May 7th, 2018 Thwaites Finson Sharp Insurance Commercial All-Risks Insurance Policy,
Brokers Limited All-Risk Solar System Policy and

Employer’s Liability Insurance Policy

Ongoing FirstCaribbean International Bank Credit Card Facilities and Guarantee
Limited Facilities secured by a debenture on
inventory
Ongoing National Commercial Bank Credit Card Facilities
August 28th, 2014 Ex-Im Bank Loan facility to finance the solar

project secured by a mortgage on 23
Beechwood Avenue

Various Dates Trustees of Seramco Limted Motor Vehicle Leases
Superannuation Fund

Various Dates MF&G Trust & Finance Limited Motor Vehicle Leases
December 22nd, 2016 MF&G Trust & Finance Limited Equipment Lease
June 15th, 2016 MF&G Trust & Finance Limited Revolving Term Loan secured by a

mortgage on 21 Beechwood Avenue

November 30th, 2015 Outlook Limited Loan facility to assist with the
construction of 25 Beechwood Avenue

June 6th, 2017 Mr. Michael Fraser Mentor Agreement, as per Rule 403 of
the Junior Market Rules

The material contracts set out above will be available for inspection as described in Section 15.
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7.10 Litigation

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company is not involved in any litigation, arbitration or similar
proceedings pending and/or threatened against the Company.

7.11 Dividend Policy

The Directors expect the Company’s investments and strategic plans which are to be implemented in
the short to medium term, will result in growth of its profits, subject to any adverse changes in the local and
regional economic climate. Accordingly, the Directors anticipate a payment of an annual dividend of up to
25% of the annual profits after any applicable income tax, where such profits are available for distribution,
and subject to the Company’s need for reinvestment of some or all of its profits from time to time in order to
finance its further growth and development.

7.12 Insurance Arrangements

The Company has procured sufficient insurance cover for all major risks that relate to its business. This
includes:

Type of Insurance Policy Expiration Date
Commercial All-Risks May 7th, 2018
Solar System All-Risks May 7th, 2018
Motor Vehicle October 27th, 2017
Employer’s Liability May 7th, 2018

Confirmation of the insurance arrangements referred to in this section will be available for inspection as
described in Section 15.
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7.13 Charges Registered Against the Assets of the Company
As at the date of this Prospectus, the following charges are registered against the assets of the Company:

Date and Description Amount Short Particulars of Name, Addresses and Description of the
of Instrument Creating/ Secured by the Property Charged Person Entitled to the Charge
Evidencing the Charge Charge
Mortgage dated J$22,000,000 Property registered at Volume 1224 MF&G TRUST & FINANCE LIMITED, a
October 7th, 2009 Folio 264 of the Register Book of Titles Company duly incorporated under the
laws of Jamaica and having its registered
office at 21 East Street in the City and
Parish of Kingston
Mortgage dated J$20,000,000 All that parcel of land registered at MF&G TRUST & FINANCE LIMITED of 21
March 24th, 2011 Volume 1422 Folio 830 of the Register East Street Kingston
Book of Titles; AND
All that parcel of land registered at
Volume 1224 Folio 264 of the Register
Book of Titles
Mortgage dated J$29,000,000 Premises known as Collins Green Lot Trustee Seramco Limited Superannuation
April 3rd, 2013 No. 38 in the Parish of Saint Andrew Fund, a Company duly incorporated
entered at Volume 1224 Folio 264 of under the laws of Jamaica and having its
the Register Book of Titles; AND registered office at 21 East Street in the
parish of Kingston
Premises known as Beechwood in
the Parish of Saint Andrew entered at
Volume 1422 Folio 830 of the Register
Book of Titles
Mortgage dated J$14,380,000 Property comprised in Certificate of National Export-Import Bank of Jamaica

August 28th, 2014

Title registered at Volume 1286 Folio
652 of the Register Book of Titles
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8.1 Biographical Details of the Mentor, Directors

and Senior Managers of the Company

Brief biographical details of the Mentor, Directors and Senior Managers of the Company are set out
below. The Directors’ residential addresses are set out in Section 14 hereto, and all of them may be contacted
for business purposes c/o the registered office of the Company, Stationery and Office Supplies Limited, 23
Beechwood Avenue, Kingston 5, Jamaica, Telephone: (876)- 926-5688 ¢ Facsimile: (876)-968-8200 Website:

WWW.S0sjm.com

MENTOR’S BIOGRAPHY

| Michael A. Fraser,
0D, JP, CLU

Company Mentor

Mr. Michael Fraser is
a Senior Insurance
Professional who has
wide experience in

h. sales, marketing and

management. Heisa

Chartered Life Underwriter (CLU) and graduated
in 1987 from the Western Executive Business
Programme from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada.

He was appointed President and Chief
Executive Officer of Island Life Insurance
Company Limited in 2000. Up until December
2007 Mr. Fraser was Deputy CEO and Chief
Marketing Officer at Sagicor Life Jamaica Limited.
Mr. Fraser is Past President & CEO of Sagicor Life
of the Cayman Islands Limited, a subsidiary of
Sagicor Life Jamaica Limited.

Mr. Fraser is a former Board Member of Sagicor
Life Jamaica Limited, a Past President of the Life
Underwriters Association of Jamaica and was
voted ‘Insurance Man of the Year'in 1999. He was
inducted into the Caribbean Insurance Hall of
Fame in 2005.

Mr. Fraser is a Director of Sagicor Insurance
Brokers Limited and Sagicor Life of the Cayman
Islands Limited. He is also a Director of AMG
Limited and Key Insurance Company Limited

He is currently Vice Chairman of the Jamaica
Cancer Society and Chairman of the Jamaica
Medical Foundation. His hobbies include Golf
and Bird Hunting.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES:
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Anthony
J.A. Bell, J.P.
Non-Executive Director

& Chairman of the Audit
Committee

Mr. Bell brings to the Board
of Directors his experience
in management gained

at a senior level in many
prominent local companies.

Mr. Bell is a graduate of Jamaica College and
South West London College, and he has worked
as an accountant and financial controller over his
career. He served as Managing Director of J. Wray
and Nephew Ltd. and Chief Financial Officer of
the Lascelles de Mercado group of companies for
over thirty (30) years, retiring in 2011. Mr. Bell is
a current director of Jamaica College Foundation,
First Caribbean International Bank (Jamaica)
Limited and First Caribbean International
Securities Limited and IronRock Insurance
Company Limited.

Mr. Bell is also a member of the Company’s
Remuneration Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES: INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Gary “Butch”
Hendrickson, C.D., J.P.

Non-Executive Director
& Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

A Ny
L]

)

Mr. Hendrickson is the
Chairman and CEO of
Continental Baking
Company Limited and
Coconut Bay Beach Resort & Spa in Saint Lucia.
Mr. Hendrickson was educated at Jamaica
College, Miami Military Academy and Fordham
University.

Mr. Hendrickson currently sits on the Boards
of Rainforest Seafoods, The King's House
Foundation, The Private Sector Organisation of
Jamaica, The Bank of Jamaica and the EXIM Bank.

Mr Hendrickson has received the following
awards:

- The American Friends of Jamaica
- International Humanitarian Award -
Philanthropy — October 2016

+ Inducted in to the Private Sector
Organisation’s Hall of Fame - October 2016

« The Jamaica Observer Business Leader Award
— Corporate Philanthropy - October 2016

«The Gleaner Honours Award for Voluntary
Service in 2015 and for Business in 2002

« The Carlton Alexander Award for Excellence
in2014

+The AMCHAM Award for Civic Leadership
-Individual - 2013

Mr. Hendrickson is also a member of the
Company'’s Corporate Governance Committee.

R. Evan D. Thwaites

Non-Executive Director &
Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee

Evan Thwaites is a
Chartered Insurer and an
Associate of the Chartered
Insurance Institute. Heis
the Managing Director of
IronRock Insurance Company Limited.

Mr. Thwaites was educated at Wolmer’s Boys’
School and completed management training
courses in the U.S.A,, the United Kingdom and
Germany for the purposes of his professional
development in the insurance and reinsurance
industry. He spent over thirty (30) years with
Globe Insurance Company of Jamaica Ltd. (and
its predecessor entity, Globe Insurance Company
of the West Indies Ltd.), prior to its acquisition
by Guardian Group, where he was Managing
Director. He subsequently was a consultant and
director, of Grace Kennedy Financial Services Ltd.
and Jamaica International Insurance Company
Ltd., respectively, prior to forming the Company.

Mr. Thwaites is also a member of the
Company’s Audit Committee.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

David McDaniel

Chairman of the Board &
Managing Director

Mr. David McDaniel is
the Managing Director
and one of the founders
of the Company, having
worked there from its
incorporation and for his
entire adult working life. Mr. McDaniel has been
the shepherd of the Company over its fifty (50)
plus years of trading.

It is through his stewardship that the
Company has attained and sustained its success
over the years. His vision is to import the skills
and expertise of the second generation of his
family into the business.

Mr. McDaniel was educated at Saint Paul’s
Elementary School - Manchester, Jamaica and
is trained and equipped to technically and
administratively supply and install Fursys Systems
Furniture.

Marjorie McDaniel

Director, Chief Administrative
Officer & Company Secretary

Mrs. Marjorie McDaniel
has been employed from
1968 to present and has
been instrumental in the
Company'’s operations
and its administration
ensuring that the Company operates as optimally
as possible.

Mrs. McDaniel was educated at Saint Andrew
High School for Girls, Alpha Commercial Academy
and is also trained and equipped technically
and administratively to supply and install Fursys
Systems Furniture.

Allan McDaniel
Deputy Managing Director
& Director of Warehousing
& Logistics

Mr. Allan McDaniel
has been employed
to the Company from
1996 to present having
worked in the Sales,
Design, Installation, Warehouse and Accounts
Departments of the Company over the years
as he has been identified as the person to
eventually succeed his father, Mr. David
McDaniel, to lead the Company into the future
and as it moves to enter into the next phase of its
existence as a listed company.

Mr. Allan McDaniel was educated at Campion
College, University of Western Ontario, London,
Canada, is certified in AutoCAD 12 (Graphic
Design Program), trained and certified By
Fellowes Inc. in Shredder maintenance and
repairs, trained and equipped technically and
administratively to Supply and install Fursys
Systems Furniture.

Mr. Allan McDaniel is also a member of
both the Company’s Audit Committee and its
Corporate Governance Committee.

a

Stephen Todd

Director - Sales & Marketing

:;"i' Mr. Stephen Todd is

the Director - Sales

& Marketing of the
Company and has
been employed to the
Company since 1995.

Mr. Todd was educated
at Munroe College and Florida International
University, Florida, U.S.A. He is certified in
Autocad 12 (Graphic Design Program), trained
and equipped to technically and administratively
supply and install Fursys Systems Furniture.

Stephen is also a member of the Company'’s
Remuneration Committee.
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Kerri (McDaniel)
Todd

Director Special Projects

Mrs. Kerri Todd has
been employed to the
Company since 1992 to
present and was the first
of the member of the
second generation of
McDaniels to join the Company.

Mrs. Todd was educated at Hillel Academy,
Ryerson University (Bachelor of Business
Management) Toronto, Canada. She is certified in
Autocad 12 (Graphic Design Program) and trained
and equipped to technically and administratively
supply and install Fursys Systems Furniture.

Kelli (McDaniel)
Muschett

Director - Purchasing &
Administration, BBM, MBA

Mrs. Kelli Muschett has
been employed to the
Company from 2000 to
present.

She was educated at
Hillel Academy and Ryerson University, Toronto,
Ontario (Bachelor of Business Management) and
the European University, Spain, Madrid - MBA
(International Business).

Mrs. Muschett is also trained and equipped
technically and administratively to supply and
install Fursys Systems Furniture.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

David Charles Plant

Financial Controller

Mr. David Plant has
/ ' been employed to the
Company as its Financial
Controller from 2006 to
' \ j / present.
f Before working
: == with the Company Mr.
Plant had a long and distinguished career at
KPMG from 1979 to 1999, and which included
a posting in London as Senior Accountant and
was employed at Chas E. Ramson Limited as its
Financial Controller from 2000 to 2006.

Mr. Plant was educated at Wolmers Boys
School and London School of Accountancy &
Accountancy Tutors Ltd. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica
and a Fellow of the Association of Chartered &
Certified Accountants.

Denise Hope
Mcintosh

Montego Bay Branch
Manager

Ms. Denise McIntosh has
been employed to the
Company since 2011 to
present as the Manager of
its Montego Bay Branch.

Before working with the Company, she held
posts as Brand Manager, Indies Pharma Jamaica
Ltd. in Montego Bay, Station Manager, Delta
Airlines (Kingston & Montego Bay) and General
Manager Caribbean, Northwest Airlines.

Ms. Mclntosh was educated at Montego Bay
High School, Montego Bay Community College,
University of New Orleans (B.Sc in Business
Administration) and University of Liverpool (MBA,
Marketing).

Fund Managers Ltd.
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8.2 Directors’ and Senior Managers’ Interests in Ordinary Shares

No senior managers hold any Shares, save for the Directors'interests in the Shares (including legal
and beneficial holdings) as at the date of this Prospectus which are set out below:

Name of Directors Number of Shares Before Opening Date
Mr. David McDaniel, Mrs. Marjorie McDaniel, Interests in the shares of Outlook Limited
Mrs. Kelli (McDaniel) Muschett, Mrs. Kerri the holding company of the Company

(McDaniel) Todd, and Mr. Stephen Todd

No Director or senior manager receives Shares, or options in respect of Shares in consideration of the
services rendered by him or her to the Company.

8.3. Corporate Governance and Accountability

The Board has constituted two (2) committees, namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, as required pursuant to the provisions of the Junior Market Rules and has additionally
constituted a Corporate Governance Committee, although not strictly required by the Junior Market
Rules. The members of each committee include a majority of independent non-executive Directors, as
required by Rule 504(2)(b) of the Junior Market Rules. The Corporate Governance Committee has also
adopted the requirements of the aforementioned Rule in its charter. The members of the respective
committees are as follows:

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Corporate Governance Committee
Mr. Anthony Bell - Chairman Mr. Gary Hendrickson — Chairman Mr. Evan Thwaites — Chairman

Mr. Evan Thwaites Mr. Anthony Bell Mr. Gary Hendrickson

Mr. Allan McDaniel Mr. Stephen Todd Mr. Allan McDaniel

In addition, the Company has appointed Mair Russell Grant Thornton to provide it with external audit
services.

8.4 Directors’ Fees and Executive Emoluments

Currently, the Company does not pay any fees or other emoluments to its Directors for their services
rendered to the Company in the capacity of Directors. However, post-IPO the Company'’s fee structure
for its independent non-executive Directors shall be as set out below, subject to any decision made
otherwise by the Board of Directors:

Position Fee

Member of the Board of Directors $25,000 per meeting

Chairman of the Board of Directors $30,000 per meeting (additional fee)
Chairman of a Committee of the Board of Directors $30,000 per meeting (additional fee)
Member of a Committee of the Board of Directors $25,000 per meeting (additional fee)

Fund Managers Ltd.

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 30



About the Company

The Company was incorporated in Jamaica
on Friday, July 23rd, 1965, and has been trading
ever since for more than fifty (50) years. The
Company'’s primary business is the sale of
stationery, office supplies and systems (modular)
furniture being well-known for servicing all items

that it sells and being extremely service-oriented.

The Company is one of Jamaica’s leading
stationery, office and systems (modular) furniture
suppliers boasting over 3,180 credit customers
that it does business with on a consistent and
ongoing basis in addition to thousands of cash
customers.

With the increased awareness of the
Company’s services, and the fresh equity
raised, as a result of the IPQ, it is expected that
the Company will only grow from strength to
strength by augmenting its local stock of faster
moving items, liquidating some of its debt and
thereby improving its cash flow and expanding
its footprint within the Caribbean region.

Current Operating Environment

In recent times businesses have felt the
negative impact of a tightening Jamaican
economy, especially with the implementation
of the fiscal regime as mandated by the
International Monetary Fund, increased macro-
economic uncertainty and overall reduction
in aggregate demand. This is coupled with the
volatility in global markets. Despite the uncertain
operating environment experienced during
this time, and the numerous local and global
economic crises that have presented themselves
over the past fifty (50) years, the Company has
managed to sustain itself and grow its revenue
and its profitability on a consistent basis.

The Company has experienced significant
growth in 2016 and this growth has continued
throughout the first quarter of 2017.

Future Prospects for the Company

The Company sees the ability to garner
a larger share of its market by more efficient
management of the turnover of its stock and an
increased capacity for larger volumes of stock,
which the capital injection from the IPO will
facilitate. It also sees opportunities to deepen
its relationships within the Caribbean region in
order to increase its international sales.

Annual Financial Performance

The Company has continuously strengthened
its financial performance. Its revenue, net profit
and net book value have all increased over the
period under review thanks to strong business
growth and cost management. The in-house
financial statements show that this trend has
continued, with the three (3) months to March
2017 showing strong growth in sales.

Interim Financial Performance

As previously stated, the Company’s in-house
financial statements for the three (3) months to
March 2017 show that it continues to experience
significant improvements in its performance.
Sales for the three-month period have improved
by 20%. Additionally, its balance sheet has
continued to strengthen with growth in both net
assets and net working capital.
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Management
Discussion
and Analysis

INCOME STATEMENT

J$‘000 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Q1-2016 Q1-2017
Revenue 471,251 522,690 549,606 626,580 702,071 182,433 220,182
Other Income 2,974 1,513 83 126 390 (3) 124
Operating Expenses 194,648 202,405 228,468 245,650 274,760 61,975 76,279
Operating Profit (1,815) 17,646 16,382 22,954 63,908 31,512 32,364
Finance Costs 8,579 9,245 8,479 9,073 11,144 2,045 2,377
Pre Tax Profit (7,419) 9,914 7,985 14,007 53,153 29,464 30,111
Income Tax Expense 1,058 (2,661) (2,137) (6,900) (6,567) (1,350) (5,606)
Net Profit For The Year (6,362) 7,253 5,849 7,107 46,586 30,814 24,505
Fund Managers Ltd.
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Management

Discussion
and Analysis
BALANCE SHEET

J$000 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Q1-2016 Q1-2017
Non-Current Assets 82,341 80,357 89,988 107,807 252,226 118,747 254,613
Current Assets 148,568 156,085 178,990 190,841 232,515 215,072 243,297
Total Assets 230,909 236,442 268,978 298,648 484,741 333,819 497,910
Current Liabilities 86,541 77,744 101,854 97,835 126,628 78,347 117,992
Non-Current Liabilities 75,895 82,972 85,550 112,133 115,472 137,633 112,772
Total Liabilities 162,436 160,717 187,404 209,967 242,100 215,980 230,764
Net Assets 68,473 75,726 81,574 88,681 242,641 117,840 267,147

Fund Managers Ltd.
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Section 10

Financial
Highlights

Revenue Analysis

The Company has consistently
increased its revenues over the
five year period FY 2012-2016.
During this timeframe, the
Company’s revenue from core
operations grew by a compound
average annual growth rate
(CAGR) of 10.48%, culminating
with the Company generating
all-time high revenues of
J$702.07M in FY 2016. Revenue
earned in FY 2016 was 12.05%
higher than J$626.58M for FY
2015, and 48.98% higher than
the J$471.25M earned in FY 2012.
The steady improvement in the
Company’s revenues has been
attributable to organic expansion
driven by the achievement of
deeper penetration in the market
for the Company’s products
and services. The Company has
expanded its product offerings,
adding to the list of brands it
distributes and venturing into
manufacturing its own brands of
furniture - Image and Torch.

Cost of sales as a proportion
of revenue remained relatively
consistent for the period 2012 to
2015, representing on average
57.39%. For FY 2016 the Company
reduced its cost of sales to 51.76%,
the direct result of management’s
concerted efforts to achieve the
perfect mix of affordability and
superior quality in the products it
sells through the careful selection
of suppliers.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Financial Years ended 31 December 2012 to 2016)

The Company’s financial year is from January to December.

Total Revenues vs Cost of Sales (JSM)

M 7otal Revenues Cost of Sales
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Gross Profit @ Gross Profit Margin

Profitability

Since 2012, gross profit has trended
upwards growing by a CAGR of 15.12%.
Lower cost of sales led to an improved gross
profit position of J$338.67M in 2016, which
was a 26.09% increase over that earned in
2015, and 75.63% more than the J$192.83M
earned in 2012. Additionally, gross profit
margins have exceeded 40% between FY
2012 and 2016, improving year over year
to 48.24% relative to 42.87% in 2015, and
40.92% in 2012.
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Operating Expenses

In millions $J
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Operating Expenses

The Company'’s cost of operations has
grown at a CAGR of 9.00% since 2012.The
main operating expenses of the Company
have been its administrative and selling
costs, of which the major expense items are
staff remuneration and commission for its
all island sales team. This is in line with the
operational nature of the business which
requires in general administrative support,
customer service representatives, and
warehouse and delivery staff.



Earnings before Interest Taxation
Depreciation and Amortization

Increased revenue and gross profit led to
an increase in EBITDA of 113.23% to J$80.24M
compared to J$37.63M in 2015 and more than
6x more than the J$12.38M reported in 2012,
continuing its positive upward trend. The
reduction in operating expenses was also a
contributor to the growth.

Pre-tax Profitability
For FY 2016, pre-tax profits reflected an

increase of J$39.15M or 279.50% to end the year
at J$53.15M compared to J$14.01M in 2015, and
loss of J$7.42M in 2012. Pre-tax profit margin
has also shown as improving trend over the last
three years ending FY 2016 at 7.57% up from
2.24% in 2015, and a low of -1.57%in 2012..

Return on Equity

The upward trend in profitability has augured
well for SOS'return on equity (ROE) with the ratio
reaching a five year high of 32.09% in 2016 from
16.45% in 2015, and -10.35% in 2012.

Total average equity increased to J$165.66M
in FY 2016 from J$85.13M FY 2015, mainly
attributable to an increase in the capital reserves
t0 J$112.42M from J$5.05M in 2015.The increase
in reserves was a direct result of the revaluation
of the company’s holdings of real estate assets
during the year.

Balance Sheet Analysis

The Company has experienced consistent
expansion of its Balance Sheet over the period
FY 2012 to FY 2016.

The Company’s total assets have grown by
a compound average annual growth rate of
20.37% from J$230.91TM in FY 2012 to J$484.74M
in FY 2016. The Company’s balance sheet has
grown both through a combination of retained
earnings and increased debt as the Company
expanded its operations to meet the growing
demands of the business. Total equity increased
t0 J$242.64M in FY 2016 from J$88.68M FY 2015
due to the aforementioned revaluation of real
estate holdings.

Earnings before Interest Taxation
Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA)

In millions $J

80.24

30.21 28.75 37.63

23 wem wem
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Pre-tax Profit Performance i mitionsss

Pre-tax Profit === Pre-tax Profit Margin
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This revaluation exercise led to a year
M dnd g eme nt over year increase in total assets of 62.31% or
Discussion 1$186.09M.
and Analysis Liquidity

Inventories and receivables have historically
represented the majority of the Company’s
current assets combining to account for an
average of over 93% since 2012. The Company'’s
current ratio has remained above the benchmark
of 1.5x for the review period ending FY 2016 at
1.84x compared to 1.95x for FY 2015.

Between FYs 2012-2015, on average 60% of
the Company’s balance sheet was funded by
debt. However in FY 2016 the funding make-up
of the Company’s balance sheet was repositioned
due to the revaluation of its real estate assets
which added J$107.34M to equity through its
capital reserve.

Interest Bearing Debt vs Total Equity 1 misions s
B Interest Bearing Debt Total Equity 242 .64

137.38 132.03

l 88.68 .

115.69

L . 7573 . 8157

Current Ratio
Current Assets Current Liabilities ~ === Current Ratio
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Receivables Management

The Company’s receivables management
has been relatively consistent over the last five
(5) financial years. Receivables have gradually
trended higher between FY 2012 and FY 2016
rising by a compound annual average rate of
10.97% during the period to end FY 2016 at
J$87.50M. The average five (5) year growth rate
in receivables has been relatively in line with the
average growth rate in revenues over the same
period of 10.48%, implying that the growth is
simply a function of the business’ expansion.

Over the last five financial year’s both
receivables turnover and the number of days
receivables remain outstanding (Days Sales
Outstanding) have exhibited limited variability.
The stability in both these measures is evidence
of the success of the Company’s receivables
management program as the Company has
managed to keep its collection experience
relative constant even in the context of
consistent sales growth.

Inventory Management

The Company’s inventory rose consistently
between FY 2012 and FY 2016 by a compound
average growth rate of 11.31% to close FY 2016
at J$ 118.83M.The compound average growth
rate of inventory over the period was relatively
in line with the average growth rate of Sales over
the same period of 10.48%.

In FY 2016 inventory was turned over 3.22X
which is less than FY 2015’s figure of 3.51X.
Inventory remained in stock for an average of
113 days in FY 2016 which represents an 8.76%
increase over FY 2015 average of 104 days.

Unaudited Financial Information (for
the three months period ended 31
March 2017)

As at the 31 March 2017, SOS reported first
quarter revenues of J$220.18M or 20.69% more
than J$182.43M reported in the corresponding
period for 2016.

Cost of sales as a proportion of revenue
remained in line with the FY 2016 representing
50.66% of total revenue; this percentage was
however slightly higher than the 48.75% for the

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 36



Receivables
Management

Receivables
turnover

40.93

Days Sales
=== Outstanding

40.43

Receivables

In millions $J

87.50

57.70
59.53
68.15
70.66

Inventory 387

Management
Indays

103.98

3.51

Inventory
turnover

94.24

Inventory

In millions $J

79.31
78.14
88.11
102.11
112.85

113.34

105.53  104.11

3.46

3.51 3.22

=== Days in Inventory

comparable period in Q1 2016. Gross profit
for the three month period ended 31 March
2017 was J$108.64M or 16.21% more than
the J$93.49M reported in 2016. Operating
expenses exhibited an increase of 23.08%
due to an increase in depreciation by
51.93% to J$4.87M (J$3.20M - 2016). This
increased depreciation expense resulted
from the revaluation of fixed assets which

took place in FY 2016. SOS also reported an
increase in administrative costs to J$53.39M
or by 20.89%, and selling expenses -
J$17.88M or 37.51%. Finance costs ended
the period at J$2.377M or 16.23% higher
than Q1 2016. Increased finance lease
charges for new service trucks which were
added to the company’s fleet as well as
quarterly loan interest payments led to this

increase.

Based on the foregoing, SOS reported
pretax profits of J$30.11M compared to
J$29.47Min Q1 2016.

As at the 31 March 2017 total assets
were valued at J$497.91M. Of this amount,
current assets represented 48.86% or
J$243.30M. Current assets comprised
of inventories, J$117.04M; receivables
$93.19M, Prepayments of $21.20M, and
cash of J$11.87M.

Total liabilities amounted to J$230.76M,
or 6.84% more than J$215.98M in Q1 2016.
Current liabilities comprised mainly of trade
and other payables for a total of J$77.99M
(J$66.52M - Q1 2016).

The composition of the current assets
and liabilities as at the end of the three
month period under consideration resulted
in a current ratio of 2.06x, an improvement
over the Q1 2016 ratio of 1.55x.

The quick ratio of SOS moved downward
to 1.07x from 1.49xin Q1 2016. The working
capital position of SOS was also positive as
at the end of Q1 2017 at J$125.31M, which
was less than Q1 2016, J$136.73M.

Fixed assets totaled J$254.61M or
114.42% more than Q1 2016. This was the
result of the revaluation of fixed assets as at
the FYE 20176.

While the non-current liabilities of SOS
were reduced to J$112.77M from J$137.63M
in 2016, due to reduced loan balances.

The capital position of the company
improved by 126.70% to end the quarter
at J$267.15M Contributing to this was
the improvement in the capital reserve,
due to the revaluation of its fixed assets.
The revaluation increased that item to
J$112.42M from J$5.05M in Q1 2016.

Also contributing to the improved equity
position was retained earnings increasing
10 J$154.72M in Q1 2017 from J$112.79M in
Q1 2016.
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Section 11

Auditor’s Report
and Historical
Financial Data

7/ Fund Managers Ltd.

THE FOLLOWING IS ANNEXED HERETO:

(@) UNAUDITED MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS IN RESPECT OF THE COMPANY FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY
1ST, 2017 TO MARCH 31ST, 2017;

(b) AUDITED FINANCIALS IN RESPECT OF THE COMPANY FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31ST,
2016 (WITH THE RESPECTIVE AUDITOR'’S REPORTS CONTAINED THEREIN); AND

(c) THE FOLLOWING FROM MAIR RUSSELL GRANT THORNTON, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, ALL
DATED MAY 5TH, 2017:

a. ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT WITH RESPECT TO THE UNAUDITED FINANCIALS OF THE COMPANY FOR
THE PERIOD JANUARY 1ST, 2017 TO MARCH 31ST, 2017;

b. CONSENT ADDRESSED TO THE COMPANY; AND

c. AUDITOR’S COVER LETTER TO THE COMPANY WITH RESPECT TO THE FIVE (5) FISCAL YEARS
ENDED DECEMBER 31ST, 2016.
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Stationery and Office Supplies Linited
Unaudited Financial Statements

Three Months Fnded March 31, 2017
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited
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To the Members of
Statonery and Office Supplies Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have compiled the accompanying financial statements of Stauonery and Oiffice Supplies Limied
based on information you have provided. These hnancial statements compaise the statement of
financial pusiton of Statonery and Office Supples Limited a5 at March 3, 2017 and the staements
of profit ot loss and ather comprehensive income, statctent of changes in equaty and siatement of
cash Nows for the year then ended, and a sammary of sigruficant secounung policies and other
explanatory informaton

We performed this compilation engagement in sccordance with Internatianal Standard on Related
Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engageaents.

We have applied our expertise in accounting and (nancial reporting (o assist you i the preparation

andd presentation of these fmancial statements in accordance with [nternational Financial Reportng
Standards We have compaled swith 1etevine coileal tegaismisssss, sosluding poaciples of integniry.
objecnvry, professional competence and due care

These financial statemeris and the aceusiey and completeness of the information used 1o compile
thewm are vour responsibility

Since a cwmpli.\nm; SNPRECTHENT |5 (0L 40 AsFLranee engagement, we are not required gt vwnify e
sceuracy or completeness of the aformation you provided o us to compile these financial
starements. Accordingly, we do not express an andit opuios of a seview conclusion on whether
these financial statements aze prepared in accordance with Internanonal Financul Reporting

Srandards.
Kingston Jamiica ;’%«- ;{ﬁw/ ™ T
Aol 35, 2017 Charrered Accountants
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Stationery and Dffice Supplies Limited

Statement of financial position
March 31, 2017

Unaudited
Three Months Aldited
Ended Yaar Ended
Mareh 31 December 31
MNotae 2017 2016
5 5
Asnsnts
MNon-currant assels
Property, plan: and aquipment {5 248,981,723 245, 563,874
intangible asse (6} 5,661,552 5,681,552
_254,51 3,275 252 225528
Current assets
Inventories (T 117,036,798 118,831,095
Trade and other receivables 18] 93,185,498 87,500,057
Prepayments 21,202,340 20,988 858
Bank and cash (8} 11,872,287 5,184 375
293296903 202,515,485

Total assets 497,910 178 484,741,011
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital (10} 4,000 4,000
Capital reserve (11} 112,423,398 112,423,398
Retained profits _ 154,719,105 130,213,625
Total equity 267,145,503 242,841,022
Liabllities
Nan-current liabilities
Borrowings {12} 12,055,615 15,425,529
Other lgans (13) 58,480,997 58,378,114
Finance lease (14) 16,351,548 15,863,356
Daferred tax liability {15} 25,883,628 24,805,419

112,774,788 115472418
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 19.8 186) - £38,280
Trade and other payables {17} 77,993,132 78,168,850
Owing 1o Direciors (13} B4Z,733 1,472,320
Cutram partian of barrewings (124 23,010,424 23,010,424
Current portion of other isans |13} 2,746,959 4,080,931
Current portlon of finance lease {14} 12,747,815 12157218
Taxation payabie 650,814 6,098.540

117,991,887 126,627,570
Tatal liabilities 230,763,675 242 093,088
Total equity and liabilities 487,910,178 484,741,011

The notes on 1114;11::umpm}-mg pages 3 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
1

: uc]b‘:.‘ the Board of Directors on Apnl 27, 2017 and signed on 15 behalf by-
e

3 N -~ 2T b )
 VDirectos _;"{;_. Lii:"?fr.'-:"-_f...f —.¢_¢ﬁi'_..]“&“-‘; é? Director
David McDaniel J/ Majorie McDaniel

-~
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

Statement of prc:)ﬁt or loss and other

Compmhcnsive imncome

Three months ended March 31, 2017

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
Mote 2017 2016
5 $
Revenue 14c| 220,182,391 T02,070.851
Cost of sales [111,538,818) {353,402 612}
Gross profil 108,643,575 338,568,239
Finance incoma {18} 124,231 225,560
Cther income {19) - 163,078
108,767,806 330,057 877
Administrative and general expenses 153,394,069)  (153,399.312)
Selling and promational costs (17,795,246} (59,296,158
Othar operating expenses . (1,254,818)
Depreciation {4,865,787) (15,938,551
Finance costs (18] (2,377,191) (11 ,144.452_]
Loss on fareign exchangs __fe2a.017) 14,871,347}
_ (78,856,310]  (285,904,799]
Profit before tax (20% 30,111,498 53,153,078
Income lax BRpEnsS (21 | lﬁ.ﬁﬂ'ﬁ.ﬂfﬁl 15.555,335}
Profit for the periodiyear 24,505,480 45,586,153
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of land ang bulidings - 125,802 419
Deferred tax relating to revaluation of iand and
buildings . {18428 334)
Other comprehensive income for the
periodiyear o - 107,374,085
Total comprehensive income for the
period/year 24,505,480 153,960,278

The notes‘on the accompanying pages 5 16 28 formn an miegzal part of these financial suatements
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

Statement of changes in equity

Three months ended March 31, 2017

Share Capital Retained
Capital Reserve Praflits Total
$ 5 $ ]

Balance al January 1, 2016 4,000 5.048,313 83,627,432  BBGB0,745
Proft for the year being 10tal comprehensive
income - . 46,586,183 45,585,193
Other comprenensive income == 107,374,088 - 107,374,085
Total comprehensive inceme for the year 27 . 107 374,085 45,586,193 153,060.278
Balance at December 31, 2016 4,000 112,423,388 130,213 625 242,641,023
Profit for the penod being tolal comprehensive
incame . - 24,505 480 24 505,480
Balance at March 31, 2017 4,000 112,423,398 154,719,105 267,145,503

The notes on the accompanying pages 3 to 28 form an mntegral pant of these financial statements
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

Statement of cash flows
Three months ended March 31, 2017

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2047 20186
MNote $ 5
Cash flows from operating activilies:
Profit befora tax 30,111,498 53,153,078
Adyusiments for
Depreciation (5 4,865,787 15,938,567
Loss on foreign axchange on foreign
currency lgans 106,512 5,448,307
Imterest income {124,231) (228, 560)
Interast expense (18} 2,377.181 11,144,482
37,336,755 85,458,548
Decrease/{increase) (n inventanes 1,794,297 (11,8964 819)
Increase in trade and other recevabins {5.585,441) {13,720,495)
Ingrease in prepayments {202,382} [8,781.403)
{Decrease)/incraase n trade and other payabies (1,175,718} 13,764,115
Decrease in owing to Directors (629,587 (1.708,772)
Cash genarated from oporations 31,437,924 63,049,374
Interest paid (2,377,191) {11,144 462)
Income 1axes paid (8,976,533) {4,394 ,050)
Net cash provided by operating activities 19,084,200 47,510,862
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interes! received net of withholding tax 124,231 226,064
Purchase of property, plant and sguipment (7,2583,536) (28,303 345)
Purchase of intangible asset {5 - (5.,661,552)
Met cash used in investing activities 17,129,305) (34,328,534)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceads from finance lease 3,640,000 20,693,075
Repayment of borrowings (3,368,914} (13,883,832}
Repayment of other ioans {1,337,591) (6,191,218}
Repaymarnt of finance loase {3,561,208) (10,371.417)
Met cash used in financing activities (4,628,713) (9,733,288)
Het increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,326,182 3,446,640
Cash and cash egquivalents at beginning of
periodiyear 4,545,085 1,097 445
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of periodiyear (&) 11,872,267 4,546,085

The notes on the sccompanving pages 5 to 28 form an imntegral part of these finandal statements.
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2017

3.

ldentification and activities

Stanonery and Office Supplies Limited 15 2 homited hability company ucorporated under the
Laws of Jamaica on July 23, 1963, The company i domiciled in Jamaica with repistered
offices located at 23 Beechwood Avenue, Kingston 3, [amaica, West Indies.

The main activity of the company is the sale of office fumiture, fixtures, stationery and other
office supplics:

Statement of compliance

These financa! staternents have been prepared m accordance with [ntemational Financial
Heporung Standards (IFRS) as 1ssued by the lnternanonal Arcounting Standards Board
{LASB)

Changes in accounting policies
Mew and revised standards that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2017

Certam new and amended sandards and miterpretations to exisung standards have been
published and became effectve during the current financial year. The Company has assessed
the relevance of all such new standards, interpretations and amendments and determined thar

none will have a materal nnpact on the company

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but aot yer effective and have not
been adopted carly by the company

At the date of authansation of these Anancial statements, cermain new standards,
amendments and wmterpretanons o exsung standards have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been eatly adopted by the company. information on those expected
1 be relevant o the company's financial statements are provided below

Management anucipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopred in the company’s
accounting policies for the first peniod beginning after the effective dare of the
pronouncement. Informaton on new standards, amendments and intespretations that may
be relevant 1o the company's financial statements are provided below:

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' (2016)

The IASE recently released IFRS § ‘Financial Instruments” (2016), representng the
completion of its project 1o replace [AS 39 ‘Financial lnstruments: Recogniton and
Meassrement’. The new standard ntzoduces exiensive changes 1o TAS 30 guidance on the
classification and measurenient of financitl assets and meroduces a new ‘expected credit Joss'
model for the impuirment of finaneial assets, [FRS ¥ also provides new guidance on the
applicanion of hedge accounung
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2017

The company's magagement have yet 1o assess the unpact of IFRS Y on these financial
statements, The sew stasdand (s requared: to be applied for annual reporting periods
begmmng on ar alter January 1, 2018

IFRS 15 *Revenue from Contracts with Customers!

1FRS 15 presents new reguirenicnts for the recognInon al revenue, rn:pluing [AS 18
MRevenve', TAS 11 "Construcnan Contacts', and several revenue-celated Iutcrptct::.iuus. The
new standard establishes o contral-based revenue recognition model and provides additional
guidance i many areas not covered in detdd under exusung IFRSs, incleding how w account
for armngements with muluple petformance obliganons, vanable pocing, customer refund
nghts, supplier repurchase options, and other common complexines

IFRS 15 s effecove for reporing penods begnming on or afier j:.uuanr 1, 2018 The
company’s management have not yer assessed the impact of [FRS 150n d'l.tsl: financual

statemerits

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

[FRS 16 Leases', {cffective for annual pesiods beginning on or after January 1, 2009). In
January 2017, the LASH published IFRS 16 which replaces the current guidance in IAS 17,
Under LAS 17, lessees were requure 1o miake 3 disuncoon between a finance lease and an
operatng ]casc IFIS 16 now reguires lessees 1o recopgnise i lease liability reflecting future
lease payments and « ‘nght-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. There 15 an optional
exemption ot lessees or certain short-term Jeases and leases of low-value assets, The company
15 assessing the impact of future adoption of the measurements on its financial statements,

Summary of significant accounting peolicies
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and
mepsurement basis summunsed below:

a Property, plant and equipment

(v  Land and butldings are carned at revalued amounts being the market value and are
performed onee every three o five (3 - 3) years, unless mazket factors indicate o
muaterial change in fair value, Any revaliation surplus is récopnized in ather
comprehensive income and credited to capital reserve in equity, unless the carrying
amount of that asset has previously sulfered a revalustion decrease or impairment
loss. To the extent that any decvease has previously been recogmized in other
comprehensive income 3 revaluation increase in credit 1o profit or loss with the
remamng pan of the inorease recognized in other comprehensive income.

Downward revaluations of buildings are recognized upon revaluation or
imparment testing, with the decrease being ::harged to other comprehensive
wncome to the extent of any surplus in equity relating to this asset and any
remaining decretse recognized in ]:tuﬂt ot loss

(i Property, plant and equipment are carned at revalued amounts/cost less
accumulated deprecuanon and impairment. (Note 4)).

(m) Deprectauon i charged on assets from the dare of acquisiton.,

Depreciation 5 provided on the suaight line basis ar such rates as will write off the
cost of the vanous assets over the pedod of ther expected useful lives. The uscful
bves approxmmate w Afty (50 vears for bulding, ten (10} vears for machinery,
equipment wnd stomge contamer, furnituze and fxtares, five (5) years for motor
vehicles and eight (8) vears forsolar system cquipment,
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Stationery and Cthice Supplies Limited

Notos Lo the Financial Stalements
March 3%, 2017

Leazeliold mprovements are being amorused over five (3) years.
Land 1 not depreciated
() Repmrs and reacwals

The cost af repars and renewals which do not enhance the value of the existing
assets are woitten off o the profit or lessas they are in¢ureed.

b Inventories

Inveniones are stared ar the lower of cost, derermned on 3 -fisstin first out (FIFQ) basis,
and net realisable value  Cost of inventory voiced 15 the value plus applicable landing
charges. Met ceabsable value 15 based upon esumated selhing pnce.

¢ Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises sales to customers and other income. Sales represent the wvaiced
value rjrgn-u-dﬁ to customers net of General Ehmsumptlun Tax.

Revenue s recognsed when goods are deliversd 1o customers or on the wransfer of nsk 1o

third parties

d Foreign currency translation

Fanctional and presentation aumissy

‘The financial starements arc prepared and presented in Jamaican Dollass, which is the
functional currency of the company, Except where otherwise stated, these financial
statements ate expressed in Jamaican Dollars

Foreign currincy translations and Balseces

{1) Forewgn currency balances at the end of the reporting period have been translated
at rates of exchange nuling at that date,

(i) Transacuons in foreign currency are converted at rates of exchange ruling at the
dates of those tmngactions

(i) Gans/losses ansing from flactuations m exchange rates are included in profit
or loss.

e Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenrs consist of current accounts, held with licensed financial
insurunons and cash on hand maintained by the company.

f Income tax

Income tax on profit or luss fur the year comprses current and deferred tax

When applicable, current tax 15 caleulared on taxable profits at current tax rates.

Current tax i the expected tix payable on the raxable income for the year, usmgl tax
values enucted at the end of the reporung f‘ltr;ﬂlt‘]. and any adjustments to tax Pﬂ-}"ﬂh e in
respect of previous venr.

Deferred tax 15 accounted [or using hability method, providing for temporary differences
berween the carrying amount of assets and liabilines for financial reporting purposesand
the carresponding Basis used in the computarion of taxable profit. In principle, deferred
tax liabilines are recogmsed for mxable differcices and defecred tax assets are recagnised
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t the extent that it is probable that taxable profi will be available sgainst which
deducuble temporary differences can be urilised.

Deferred 1ax is ealculnied wn i tax sates that are expected to apply 1o the pénod when
the asset 12 realised or the lability w senled  Deferred tax i charged to profit or loss,
except when it is telated to items credited or charped directly to equity, n whach case the
deferred tax 18 alst dealr with in equity

g Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial Labilines are tecognised when the company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Fimancial assets are derecognised when the contractual fghts 1o the cash fows from the
financial asset expire, or when the inancial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are
transterred

A financul liabibity is derecoprused when it is exunguished, discharged, cancelled or
expired

Financial assets and Anancial liabilines are measured inally at fair valoe plus transacuons
costs, except for financial assets and financial labilives carried at far value through profit

ar loss

Financial assets and financial habilises are measured subsequently as desenbed below.

Finanecial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets age classified into the
following eategunies upon putal fecogninon

loans and receivabled;

financial assets a1 far value through profir or Joss;
held—to— matuety invesoments; and

avallable- for-sale financial pssers.

The category deternunes subsequent measurement and whether any resulting income and
expense is recopnised in profir or loss or in other comprehensive income,

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or s are subject to
review for impatrment at least at each reporung date. Financial assets are impaired when
there 18 any objecuve cvidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Different catesi 1o determine mpaloment are applied for each catepory of
financl assets, which are described below.

Al income and expenses relatung to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss
ate presented within 'finance income’, 'finance costs’ or ‘other financial items', except for
impairment of tade recervables which is presented within 'other operating expenses’.

Lnans and receivabies

Loans and recervables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that ace not quoted in an active marker. After imtial recopninon these are
measured at amortised cost using the effecuve nterest method, less provision for
impurment. Discounung iz omitted where the effect of d.lstu'l.lnmlg iz tmmatesial The
company's cash and cash equivalents, tiade and most other recepvables fall inro this
CArCgoOTY of financial straments

Individually significant recesvabiles are considered for impairment when they are past due

or when other nbjective evidence 15 received that s speaific counterparty will default A
provision for doubtful debr s recopnised when there 1s an indication that the debt is
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h

unpaired, Impairmient of tride réceivables ate presented wathin 'other operatung
Expenses

Frmsnad sseds wat fair ool tovigh prafit or dosi

Fovanciad assers-ar G value theough profin or loss melude Anancial assets that age exther
classified as held For taudimg or thil imeet cestain conditions and are designared at fair
value through profit or loss upon mutial recogmuon. None of the company's financial
assers Fall inro this catepon

Fledil rgsmmiitieessy Fmpes feme et

Held-ro:maronty investments are non-denvanve finaneial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity other than loans and recervables Investments
are classified as held-to-mamnty if the company has the intention and ability te hold them
until marurity. None of the company’s foancial assets fall into thas category.

Avaidableforaale frandal aiieli

Available-for-sale financial assets are pon-denvative  financial assets thar are either
designated to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of
finandial assets, Mone of the company's financial assets fall into this category.

Financial linbilities

The company's fnancal kabilises include anterest beanng borrowings and wade and other
payables

Financial Lisbilites are measured subsequentdy at amorused cost using the effective
interest method, except for financul liabilides held for trading or designated ar fair value
through profit or loss, that are carned subsequently at fair value with gains or losses
recognised ur profit or loss,

Allinterest-related charges and, if appheable, changes in an instrument's fair value that are
reported in profit or loss dre incladed within 'finance costs' or 'finance income’,

Owing to Directors

Amountxowing 1o Direciors are carred at amortised cost.

Borrowings

Bormowings compiise loans and capital lease obligations and are classified as financial
liabiliges measured at amortsed cost and are recognised nitially at fair value, being theis
1ssued procesds net of transaction costs incurred, Subsequently, borrowings are
mepsured at amorgsed cost and any difference between net proceeds and the redemption
value 18 recognised in the profit and loss account over thé penod of the borrowings using
the effective interest method, Interest charges are recognised in profit or loss in the
peniod in which they oceur

Impairment
The company's properey, plant and squipment are subject to tmpairment testing.
For the purposes of assessing impiirment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for

which there are separately ilenufiable cash flows (cash-generating unus). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impatement and some are tested ar eash-generating
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s level ndwadual assers sreash gendrating wmis age tested for i.:npai.:mcm.whcmvcr
CUERLS OF ChAiges i crdumistinees wdicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverabile

An umparment loss s recopmsed for the amoant by which the asset’s or cash-generaung
s caprving amount exceeds s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 15 the
higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell and value in use, based
on an internal discounted sash flow evaluation. All assets are subsequently reassessed for
tndieations that an impaitment loss previously recogused may no longer exist.

k Leases

Finance leascs

In accordance with LAS 17, the cconamc ownership of a leased asset is transterred to the
lessee if the lessee bears substantally all the risks and rewards related to the ownership of
the leased asser. The related asser i recopmsed ar the tme of inception of the leasc at the
fair value of the leased asset or, if lowes, the present value of the lease payments plus
madental payments, if any, 10 be bomne by the lessee. A comesponding amount s
recognised as 7 finance lease labibity, irespective of whether some of these lease
payments are payable up-front at the dare of meeption of the lease.

Subsequent accounting for assers held under finance lease agreements, that is,
depreciation methods and useful ives, correspond to those applied to comparable
acquired asscts. The corresponding finance leasing liabdity is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges, which are eharged 1o the stitement of comprehensive income as
finance costs. Finance charges represent a constant perindic rate of interest on the
outstanding balance of the finance lease lability

Operating leases

All other leases are treated as operaung leases. Where the company is 4 lessée, payments
on aperating lease armngements are recogrused as an expense on a steaight line basis over
the lease term. Associated costs such as mantenance are expensed as incurred.

I Equity

Share capital is determined using thic proceeds receved for the shares that have been
1ssued

Capital reserve represents realised surplus an disposal of property and equipment plis
accumulated surplus ansing on the revalunnon of land and buildings.

Retained profits include all current and pror penod results as disclosed in profit or loss

m Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upan urilisadon of the service orat
the date of their odgin

n Use of estimates and judgements

The preparavon of funmeal stemenis in aceordance with Intérnatonal Finaneial
Reporung Standards requires management ro make csumares-and assumpuions that affect
the amounts reported n the financial statements. These eswmates are-based on hustorical
expesience and management's best knowledge of current events and actions. Acrual
resalts may differ from these esnmates and assumptions
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There were no coucal udgements, apart from those myolving esumanon, that
management has made in the process of applving the company's accounnng policies that
have a significant effect on the amounts recogrused w the financial statements.

The estimates and assumpions which have the most sigraficant nsk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets und liabibites are discussed below:

iy Depreoation of property, plint and equpment

Depreciation s provided so as towrite down the fespéctive assets 1o their resadual
values over their expected useiul lives and, as such, the selecton of the estimated
useful bves and the expected residual values of the assets requures the use of estimates
and judpements. Derails of the esumated vseful lives are s shown in Note 4(3).

(n) Taxanon

The gompany is required to estmate incume tax payable to the Commissioner
General of Tax Admumstration [amaica on any profir desived froin operations.

(Note 21), This requires an esumaton of the current tax bability together wath an
assessmens of the emporary differences which arise as 2 consequence of different
accounting and tax treatments. These remporary differences result in deferred tax
assets or liabilines which are included in the statement of financial position. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rate at the end of the
reportng penad

If the rax eventually payable or recoverable differs from the amounts onginally
estunated then the difference will be accounted forin the accounts in the vear such
determumnsaton 1s made.

o Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recogmsed when present obligations will probably lead to an ourflow of
economic tesources from the company and they can be esumated reliably. Tinung or
amount of the cutflow may stll be uncermn. A present obligauon anses from the
presence of 3 legal or constructve commitment that has resulted from past events, for
example, legal disputes or onerous contracts, Restuucrunng provisions are recognised only
if 4 derailed formal plan for the restructuting has been developed and nplemented, or

management has at least announced the plan’s main features 1o those affected by it
Provisions are not recogmsed for future operatng losses,

Provisions are measured at the ¢stimated expenditure required 1o serde the present obliga-
tion, based on the most reliable evidence avatlable at reporting date, including the nsks
and uncertuntes associated with the preseni obligavon. Any reimbursement expected to
be recerved i the conrse of settlement of the present obligation is recognised, if virtually
CErtain as @ separate asset, not exceeding the amount of the related provision. Where
there are a number of sundar obligatons, the likehhood that an outflow will be required
e settlement 12 determined by considenng the class of obligations as a whole. In addmion,
long-tenin prosisions are discounted to thew present values, where ume value of money 15
material

All provisions are eeviewed at the end of the reporting period and adjusted 1o refleet the
current best esumarte

In thote cises where the possible ourflow of economie respurce as a result of present
obljrations is considered imprebable or remote, ot the amount to be provided for cannot
e measuced relinbly, no lability 13 recognised w the statement of Iinancial position.
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Prabihle inflews of economc benefis to the company thar do not yet meet the
reCORNInON Critern of an asserare considercd conungent assets.

p Comparative information

Certamn previous yeas Npures lidve been restated to conform to current year's
j::u:m.mun
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6. Intangible asset - computer software

Detuls of intanmble asserand thew carrying amounts are as follows,
Acquired Total
Software $

Gross carrying amount
Balance at January 1. 2016

Addition 5.661,552 5,661,552
Balance at December 31, 2096 5.661,652 5,661,552
Gross carrying amount

Balance at January 1, 2047 5,661,552 5,661,552
Balance at March 31, 2017 5,661,552 5,661,552
The computer software has not been amortised as 1t 15 not ready for its intended use by

mﬂ!lﬁg‘tmtﬂt.

Ts Inventories

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 39
2017 20186
5 3
Merchandise —
Stationery ana office equipment, furniture & other
supplies 117,036,798 118,831,095
Total 117,036,798 118,831,085
B. Trade and other receivables
Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Enced
March 31 December 31
2017 2018
§ 5
Trade a2 306,867 BBE.TEZ 7T
Less, Specific provision for doubtful debls _{1.254,919) {1.254.919)
51,051,948 85,507 852
Staff loans 1,095,779 854,434
Other raceivable _ 103 1,037,771
Total 93,185,498 87.500,057

All amounts are short-term and the carrving value 15 considered a reasonable approximation
£ el
Qb Al value

Bad debt specific provision i1s as follows

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Endad
March 31 December 31
2017 2016
5 5
Balance at January 1 1,254,919 -
Increase in provision - 1,284,818
Balance at March 31,2017 1,254,919 1,254,918

Ananalysis of unimpared rade recervables thar are past due 15 grven in note 26b.
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9. Bank and cash
Unaudited
Thrae Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Decamber 31
2017 2018
3 5
Cash and bank balances:
FCIB J§ savings ascount 163,870 163,870
NCEB JS current account 8,121,256 4 504 831
FCIB USS current agoount 3,332,143 260,876
Cash in hang 254,988 254 D9B
Total 11,872,267 5184 375
Less: pank overdraft (Note 16) = {38250}
Total bank and cash 14,872,267 4 545,085
10. Share capital
Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Enced
March 31 December 31
2017 2016
5 -
Authorised
2,000 ordinary shares
Stated capital
Issued and lully paid
2.000 ordinary shares 4,000 4,000

As of January 2007, under the Jamaican Companies Act 2004, all shares in issue are deemed
to be wathout par value

11. Capital reserve

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Endoed Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 2016
3 5
Balance a1 January 1 112,423,398 5,049.313
Unrealised surplus arising from revaluation of jand
and buildings - 125,802,419
Defarred 1ax resulting from revaluation (Note 15) - (18,428 334)
Balance at March 31 142,423,398 112,423,308

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 57



Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

Motes to the Financial Statemaents
March 21, 20147

12. Borrowings

Unaudited
Three Monthsa Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 2076
] ]
Loans =
(2] MFEG Trust & Finance Limited 27,077,150 20,875,430
{2} National Expart-imparnt Bank of Jamaica
Limites 7,988,889 8,559,523
35,066,039 38,435,953
Less. Current poruon _{23,010,424)  [23010.424)
Total 12,055,615 15,425,529

[3) These loans bear interesy ar rates of twelve por cent (12%) and twelve point five percent
? 3 P X o p
(12.5%) per annum, subjeer 1o change depending on marker conditions or determuned by
k. E g 3
the Trustees The loans mature in the years 2017 and 2018, and are secured by:

(1) furst and second legal mozgage over property registered at Volume 1224 Folio 830
of the Repister Book of Titles

(2) first and second lepal morngage over registered property at Volume 1422 Folio 264
of the Register Books of Titles

(3) assignment of Comprehensive Fire and Pen! Insumance for value on real cstate
with the Bank’s interest noted

(4} personal guagantee of Directors: David MeDamel and Magorde MeDaniel,

ib) I August 2014 the company received an Energy Loan and a SME Growth Initiate Loan
from Nauonal Export-Import Bank of Jamaica Limited totalling $14,380,000. The Energy
Loan is bewng offered for a peried of sixty (600 months and bears interest at a rate of
9.5% per annum. The SME Growth Imuate Loan is being offered for a period of forry
cight (48] manths and bears intetest at 1 rate of 10375% per anaum.

hese loans are sceured by legal morgage over property registered at Violume 1286 Folio
652 of the Remsier Book of Titles

13. (i) Other loans

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 2018
$ g
Loan [a) 39,180,817 39,111,854
ik} 2.746,968 <,080.931
[e) 19,300,080 19,266,260
61,227,966 82,459,045
Less: current portion __{2,746,968) (4,080 831}
Total 58,480,997 58,378,114
fal  Thesc amounts are unseoured, mterest free and have no fixed repayment terms.
However the Directorns do no wirend to and will not make a call 5a the amount wirhin

the next mvelve (12 months
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14.

g

b1 The loan is ansecured and bears interest ut 4 rate 0f 9.25% per annum and is to be
repaid with quarterly payments of LS54, 150,64 on the reducing balance. The loans sl
expire Auguse 19, 2017

(¢) The loan was recewved on Seprember 1, 2014 for a penod of s (6) years with 2
MOTAI0NUT 0N PRI Pyt 1ol the firsg four (4) vears; Inrecest 15 fixed at a cate
of nine percens (9%4) per annum and s payable on o quarterly basis.

{ii) Owing to Directors

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Cecember 31
2017 20186
5 5
Advances 842,733 1,472,320
Total 842,733 1472320

These amounts are unsecured, tnterest free and have no fixed repayment terms. Note 22(1))

Finance lease

Unaudited
Throe Months Auditad
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 2018
$ 3
Finance lease 29,099,383 29,020,571
Less: Current portion {12,747,815) {12,157,215)
Total 16,351,548 16,863,356

The company entered into finance lease armngements with MF & G Trust & Finance Limated
and ‘The Trustees of Seameo Lunured Superannuanon [Fund for the acquisition of certain
motor vehicles which are meluded in property, plant and equipment (Note 5) and computer
software which 15 included m intangible asset (Note 6)

i Future muniuemm lease pavments at Aarch 31,2017 are as follows:
Due Within
Drure Within Two to Five
One Year Yoars Total
: 3 5
Lease payments 15,600,600 17,858,255 33,458,855
Less F|“‘B”C-E' :hafga 12,&52.?55' {1 |EHE.THTI [4.359y‘52]
12,747,815 16,351,548 29,099,363
Less: Current portion {12.747,815) ; (12,747,815)
Yousl : 16,351,548 16,351,548
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15.

16.

u ‘urire mumbmum lease paviments at December 31, 2016 ave a3 follows
Due Within
Du# Within Twao fo
One Year Five Years Total

3 § 3
Lease paymanis 15,069,803 149,204,387 34274 184
Less Finance charge (2,812 SE8) (2.341,025) (5,253,613}
12157215 16,863,356 29,020,571
Less:. Current porion (12157295 . (12,187,215}
- 16,863,356 16,863,356

Total

w Operaung leases as lessee
The company leases an office, warchouse and storage buldings under operatung
leases. The future munumum lease payments are as follows;
Minimum lease payments due

within 1 year 110 5 years Total
LSS LSS Uss
March 31, 2017 47,774 - 47,774

The lease agreement expired an December 31, 2015 The company has an option to
renew, however, at the reporting date the documentation to give effect 1o the terms
of the new lease agreement had not been fnalised.

Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax 13 caleulated onall temporary differences under the hability method using a rax
rate of 25%, (2016 - 25%:). The movement on the deferred tax aceount is as follows:

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 2016
£ $
Balance al beginning of peripd/year (24,805,418) (9.687,313)
Charge during the penodfyear - revaluation (Note 11) . (18.,428,334)
- deferred tax credit _ (1,078,208) 3310228

Balance at end of periodiyear (25.,883,628) {24.805.418)

Deferred ax balance arose on temparary differences i respect of the following:

Unaudited
Throo Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Dacember 31
2047 206
5 3

Deferred tax liability on
Property, plant and eguipmeni 18,608,787 17,550,276
Lease obligation 7,274,841 7,255 143
Defferred tax liability 25,883,628 24,805,418

Bank overdraft
The company does nor have a bank overdraft faciliy. The amount represents unpresented

chegues i the company's baoks, [(Nowe )
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17. Trade and other payables

Unaudited
Three Manths Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Decamber 31
2017 2018
5 3
Trade 18,733,590 23,884,611
Customer deposits 28,304,924 an,064,123
Statutery deductions 4,837,812 5,046,345
Accruals 3,611,639 3,574,202
Other 22,415,070 16,599,479
Total __TT.893132 79,168 850
18. Finance income and finance cost
Funince income inclodes all income from shon = term deposis and cash at bank:
Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Endad
March 31 December 21
2017 2016
5 5
Interest income 124,231 22,560
Total finance income 124,231 226,580
Finance casts for the VeEars p:c;cmud CoOMmprise:
Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Decemper 31
2017 2016
3 3
Interest expense for borrowings st amortisad cost 1,607 483 B 344,518
interest on finance lease 769,708 2,795 D44
Total finance costs 2377131 11,144, 462
19. Other incomo
This comprises of
Unaudited
Three Manths Audited
Ended Year Endad
Mareh 31 Dacermber 31
2017 2016
§ 5
Miscellangous incoma - 183,078
Total 163,078
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20. Profit before tax
Profir before tax 15 stared after charpngy (eredinng

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 2018
5 ]

Depreciation 4,865 787 15,938 561
Directors’ emoluments —

Management remuneration 10,825,409 38,334,720
Auditor's remyneration 360,000 1,320,000
iMlenest exoanse 2,377,191 11,144 462
Interest incame {124,231) (226,560)
Loss on foreign excnange 224,017 4 871,347

21, Income tax
i [Income tax baced on profit for the year, adjusted for tax purposes and computed at the
tax rate of 25%,( 2016 - 23%) comprise;

Unaudited
Three Months Auditea
Ended Year Erded
March 24 December 31
2017 2018
5 -]
Curreni charge 4,527,807 S877T.113
Deferred tax expensedcredit) (note 15 1,078,209 (3,310,228)
Total 5,606,016 6,565 885

it Reconcilianon of theoreucal tax expenses 1o effecove 1ax expenses:

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Dacember 31
2017 2016
5 5
Profit before tax 30,114,486 53.153.078
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 255 7,527,874 13,288,270
Employment Tax Credit (1,827.178) 4,208.774)
Tax affoct of expansos not deductible for tax
puUrposes 5,404,764 5,248 892
Tax effect of other charges and a'lowances [5,359,444) 7,761,503
Income tax for the periodiyaar 5,606,016 £.568.885

22. Related party balances

i A party s related 1o the company 1f

a  Duiectly, or induectly through one or more intesmediarics, the party

Is controlled by, or 5 undes common control with the entity;
Hes an iterest bt the compuoy that gees o siguficant mfluence over the entity,
or

- Has jdint contmol over the company

by The pamy 15 an associate;

¢ The PRIy 15 & jodnt veniure in wiuch the COmprany 15 a venturer,
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f ‘The party is an enuty that 13 conzrolled, jointly controlled or significantly nfluenced

The party is & member of the key management personne] of the cauty or its parent,

The party is 4 close membet of the fanuly of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

by, or for which significant visting powerin such entity resades with, directly or

indwrectly, any individunl referred to i (d) o (e} ot

company, ot of any enuty that i 2 related pany of the entiy

i At the end of the reportung period trade and non-trade balances with related partes were

x The party 1s o post-emplovment benefit plan for the benefit of emplayees of the

as follows
Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 206
$ )
Other lgans (Mote 13} 61,227,956 62,438,045
Owing to Directors {Sae Note 13} B4z 733 1,472,320
' 62,070,629 63,831,365
i Transactions with key mansgement personnel
Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 2018
$ &
Short-term employee benefits -
tanagemant ramunearation 10,825,408 39,334,720
Tolal 10,825,408 39,334,720
23. Expenses by nature
Total dureet, adminigtranive and other overhead expenses
Unaudited
Throe Months Audited
Endad Year Ended
March 31 Decambar 31
2017 2016
$ &
Ad VErsing 3,106,766 14,602,181
Cost of inventories recognised as an expanse 111,538,816 353,402 512
Directors’ remuneration 10,825,409 39,334,720
Auditor's remuneration 350,000 1,320,000
Doeprociolion 4,885,787 15,938,561
Legai apd professional fees 504,015 205,730
Commission 12,385,639 36,232 960
Employes benefits (MNote 24) 28,222 781 99,990,037
Finance costs 2,377,191 11,144 462
Other expenses 15,784,705 62.257 821
Total 189,971,109 B44, 435 084
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The above assets habalities acc recevablesy pavablesan Uruted Scares Dollars (US§).
The exchange sate appheable ardate i [S125.67 ro LISS1 (2016 - 1$128.44 1o USS1)

Foreign cutrency sensitivity

I'he following table dlustrates the sensiuvity of the net result for the year end and
equity with regarde 10 the company’s financial asscts and fnancial babilities and US
Dollar to Jamaican (JA) Dollar exchange sate, Only movements between the
Jamaican Dollae and US Dollars wre consdened, as these are the two A0 Currenacies

of the eompany
The sensitiviry analysis is based on the company's United Stares Dollar financil
instruments at the end of e repormg pertiod

Effect on resuls of « el st

If the ) A Dollar weakens by 6% (2016 — 6%) agunst the US Dollar then this would
have the effect 6f the srmicwgs shown below on the basts that all other vadables
remaln constant.

Fate Weakens
%o -]
2017 6 (2,914,325)
2016 G (3,423.588)

If the [A Dollar sreengthiens against the US Dollae by 1% (2016 - 1%) dus would
have the following vopacr:

Rate Strengthens
U s
2017 1 485,721
2016 4 §70,595

i Intercst rane nsk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the faur value or furre cash flows of 1 financial
inetrument will Quenaate duc to changes in macket mierest res. The company’s cash
and cash equivalents nre subject to interest mie risk. However, the company attempts
1o manage this nsk by monitonng its tnrerest-hearing instruments closely and
procirng the most advantageons rates under contracts with interest rates that are
fixed for the life of the contracy, where pﬂ:!lhic

The company maintains interest-eaming bank accounts with licensed financial
insttutons: Interest rares an interest-carning bank accounts are not fixed bur are

subject to fluetuations based on prevating market rates. (Note ),

Interest rate sensitviey

Diue to the face that irerest carned from the company's interest-earmng bank
accounts i immatersal, thete would be no matenal mpact on the results of the
company’s operations as 4 tesult of flucreatons i nierest raws.

w . Chther price nsk

Other price sk 15 the risk that thevalue ol a financial insreument will lucmate as @
result of changes i markel prices, whether those changes are cauted b}' factors
specific 1o the indvidual mstrument ar its issuer or factors affecung all instruments
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h

readed -t the market The company's financial instmuments are subsanually
mdependent of ¢chunges m market prices as they are short-rerm in nature

Credit risk

The company faces credit sk in wapect of 1ts trade and other recevables and cash and
cash equivalents.  There i significant concentrauon of credit nsk in rade and other
receivables However, this nsk s controlled by close monitnong of these assets by the
company. In addivon, cash and bunk balances are maintaned with bcensed financial

mstitutions considered to be stable The maximum credit nsk faced by the company is
lumited to the cartying amount of financial assets recognised ar the end of the reporung

penod, a5 summansed below

Unaudited
Three Months Audites
Endad Year Ended
March 31 Dacember 31
2017 2018
§ 5
Trade and other receivasles 93,185,498 B7 500057
Bank balance 11,617,269 4,628.377

Total 104,802,767 02 428 434

The ape of tade receivables and other recevables past due bur not impaised s as follows

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Yaar Ended
March 31 December 31
2017 2016
5 §

Mot more than 3 monins 73,968,949 67792921
More than 3 menths but not more than & months B, 745,948 15,123,809
More than G months bul not more than 1 year 6,579,084 3,183 448
More than 1 year 3,891,517 1,399,881

Total 93,185,498 87,500,057

Howevar, at the end of the seporing pertad a maxsmurn of $600,000 per Commeraal
Bank s insured under the Jammca Deposit Insurance Scheme (] 115

The company does not require collateral or other credit enhancements i respect of trade

and Gther receivables

Ligquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the nisk that the company will encounter difficulty in meetng its
commitments associated with fnancial labilives

The company manages its bguudity nsk by carefully monitonng its cash ourflow needs foe
diy-ta-dav busmess and mantaning an appropriate level of resaurces in liquid or near
hgud form to mecr 1ts needs. The company mamnrains cash to meet ns bqudity
redquireinents,
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Asat Theee Montns Ended March 31, 2007, the company's babdies have conracrual
matunties which are summansed below

Current MNan-current Non-current
Within 12 2o 5 Qver §
Months years years
3 5 1]
Borrowings 23,010,424 12,055,615 -
Diher loans 2,746,089 58,480,857 -
Finance lease 12,747 B15 16,351,648
Owing lo directars B42.733 -
Trace and other payables 77.893,132 . -
Total 117,341,073 86,888,160 -

This compares 10 the manuney of the company's nuncal babihues o the previous
reporung penod a3 follows

Current Mon-currant MNen-curren|
Withir 12 2t0 b Cver5
Mantns YEATS years
£ 5 5
Borrowings 23,010,424 15,425,529 -
Other loans 4,080,931 58,378,114 e
Finance lease 12,157,215 16,863,356 -
Owing lo ditectors 1472320 . "
Trade and othar payabies 79,165,850 . .
Total 119,885,740 90,666,999 .

The above contactual marunties reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ to the
carrying values of the habalities ar the end of the reporting period

26. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets

The follovang table shows the Levels withun the Hierarchy of non-financial assers measured at
faur value on a recurnng basis at March 31, 2017

March 31, 2047 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5 5 H -]

Property, plant and eguipment
Land and Buildings . . 192.000.000 182,000,000

Total - - 182,000,000 192,000,000

Faur value of the company’s land and butldings s esnmated based on appraisal by a
professionally qualified valuator. The sypuficant mputs and assumptions are developed in
close consultation with management

Land and Buildings {Level 3)
The apprasal was carped our using a tarket approach that reflects observed prices for
market transacuons and mcorporaes adjustments for factors specific to the company’s

propesy, ncluding size, locauon, encumbrinces and current use of the property. Land and
husldmg:. at 21, 23 and 23 Beechwood Avenue, Kingston 5, were revalued December 2016
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27. Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
The careymg amount of the company’s financlal assets and liabilines recognised at the end of
the reporting periods inder review mav alse be cateponsed as follows

Unaudited
Three Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Decamber 31
2017 2018
5 ]

Financial assats
Loans and recaivabies

Trade and cther receivables 93,185,498 87,500,057

Bank and cach 11,872,267 5,184,375
Total 105,057,765 52,684,432
Financial liatmlities

Borrowings 12,055,615 15425 529

Qther loans 58,480,987 58.278,114

Finance leass 16,351 548 16,863,356
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Bank overdraft - 638,280

Trade and other payables 77,993,132 79,168,850

Owing to directars 842,733 1472320

Current portion of Borrowings 23,010,424 23,010,424

Current portion of other Ipans 2,745 969 4 080931

Current portion of inance laase 12,747,815 12,157,215
Total 204,228,233 211,185,029

28. Capital management, policies and procedures
The company's capital mansgement objectives are 1o ensure the company’s abalitv to continue
as a going concern and to sustain future development of the business. The company's Board
of Directors review the financial position of the company at regular meetings.

The company is not subject 1 externally imposed capital requirements. The company did not
change its approach to capital management polices dunng the year,
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and pmﬁt or loss account

Three months ended March 31, 2017

Unaudited
Throe Months Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Decamber 31
m7 2016
5 3

Sales 220,182,391 702.070.851
Cost of sales
Dpening stock 118,831,095 106,866,176
FPurchasos 108,744,519 375,367,901

228,575,614 482,233,707
Less Closing stock {117.036,798) {118,831,095)
Cost of goods sold 111,538,818 363,402,812
Gross profit 108,643,575 338,668,239
Finance income 124,231 226,560
Chher ncome - 163,078

108,767,806 330 057 877
Admunistrative and other expenses
Administrative and general expenses {53,304, 089) (193,392.312)
Selling and promotional costs (17,795,246) (58,296,1588)
Dither operating BXpenses - (1.254,513)
Depreciation {4,865, 78T} {15.938,561)
Finance cosis (2,377,191} (11,144 462)
Loss on foreign exchange _{224,017) {4,871,347]

{78,656,210) (285 504, 799)

30,141,496 53,163,078

Proht before tax
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Additonal informaton — Supportng

schedule of expenses

Three months ended March 31, 2017

Unaudited
Three Manths Audited
Ended Year Ended
March 31 Decamber 31
2017 2016
5 5
Administrative and gencral expenses
Directors remunaration 10,625,409 39,334,720
Salaries. wages and related expenses 26,042,884 92 173,635
Stalf benelits 2,178,897 TB16.401
Rent 1,602,010 6,257,293
Telephone 430,843 1,462 488
Ratas and 1axes 59,903 741,108
Foreign travel . 888,313
Motar vehicle expanses 3,795,016 14,713,366
Repairs and maintenance 3,023,911 12,834 535
Audit fes 360,000 1,320,000
Legal anad professional fees 504,015 205,730
Equipment renial 81.824 -
Assets declaration and annual returns fees 200,000 300,000
Security 526,748 2,751,362
Insurance 653,924 3,045,255
Donations and subscriptions 114,960 e T2
Electricity 563,761 2171.159
Frimting, postage and stationary 759,313 2,542 468
General office expenses 1,025,878 1,440,068
Bank charges 744,652 3,071,687
53,384,069 183,399 312
Selling and promotional costs
Adveriising 3,106,766 14,602,161
Commission 12,385,639 36,238,960
Travelliing ang entertainmeant 2,302,841 8,454,077
17,795,246 59,296,158
Depreciation
Depraciation 4,865,787 15,938,561
4 BBE TB7 15,938,561
Other operating expenses
Loss on foreign exchange 224,017 4871047
Bad debls = spacific provisicn - 1,254,919
224,017 6,126,266
Finance costs
Loan interest 1,607,483 8,344 518
Lease Interes: 769,708 2,789,944
2,377,191 11,144 462
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s the Members of sarmmca, Wil InGes
Sratonery and Offwe Supphes Limoed s AT mm

Report on the Audit of the Financlal Stataments

Chpstiien

We have audired the fnancal starements of Smnonere and Office Supplies Limired  (Mthe
Compuny’’) wluch comprise the starement of Anancal posiiion as al Diccamber 31, 2016, the
statement of profig or loss and other comprehense weome, <tamement of changes m cguary and
statement of cash Qows for the vear then ended, and notes, comprsmg significant ACCOntng
policies and other explanaton mfoomanon

In our opumon, the sccompanving Tnancal sarements gwe o e and B view of the hnancal
posian of the Company as ar December 31, 2016, and of s financual performance and cash
flows for the vear then ended woaccordance wah Intermanonal Financial Reporting Standacds
(TFRS) and the requiements of the Jamacan Companes Ao

Paisy far Clfveinn

We conducted our wudu w accordance with Tntepnanonal Stndaeds on Audinng (ISAs), Our
responsitilines under those standards are further desenbed mthe ladiar’s Regpangbilities for the
Auwdt af the Finamial Statemrents section of out repon. We are mdependent of the Company in
accordance with the hermanonal Eriues Srandacds Board for Accounrants’ Code of Etlucs for
Prafessional Accountants (TESBA Caodes amd we have filiilied our other ethical responsiblines in
accordance with the 1L3BA Cade. We beleve thar the audn evidence we have obuwmed &
sutficicnr and appropoate to provide a basis for oue opuaon

Reprmilelarer af Manuiyreend and the Bocrd af Dieetory for the el Nicatementt

Management i€ eésponsible for the prepasation of Boancial smtemenis that give 4 roue anl fair
view i accordance with 1TRS and the Janucan Compames Ao, and for such mremal control s
nanagement deteemunes 16 necessary 0 enable e prepacaton of fancial statements that are
tree froon mueenal msstarement, whether due o foad or e

R LT
L L P e e
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Independent auditor’s report (cont’d)

To the Members of
Stanonery and Ofhce Supphes Tainned

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Reipansibalities a?."'.'.i'.m,ugfmm and the Bogrd of | Dopectors fir she Fimania’ Staferenis (Caonr )

In prepanng rhe financil searements, management s responsihle tor assessing the Company's
abilimy 1 contmue as o gomng concern, disclosing, as applcable, mamers related 1o pomg concern
and vsug the gomng concern bass of accounnng anless management esther intends 1o liquidane
the Company or o cease operanons, or has no reabistc altermanve but o do so.

I'he Board of Threctors s responsibile for overseeing the Company’s finangnl reponmg process.

Aawditer's Rexpansebeliteer for the Aol of the Fonaneral Seaiement

Crr olpecnves are to obmam ceasonable wssuranee aban wlivther the fimancial sratements as a
whide are free from mareeal misstarement, whethier doe o Fraud or eoeor, and 1o ssue an
andiror’s report thar includes vur openon. Reasomable assurince 13 4 ngh level of assurance, bt
i 1o guarantee thar an aodie conducied moaccosdance with [5As will abwavs detecy a materal
misstatemient when i exists. Misstaements can anse From fead or erroc and are considered
marerl of, mdnadually or m the aggregare; they could reasonably be expecred o mfluence the
econumic deciswms of users mken on the basis of these fmancal statements,

Ao part of an audit m accordance wirh ISAs we exerose professional padgment and mamtn
professinal skeprwism throughour the andin. We also

s Ldennfy and assess the nsks of materal musstarement of the tmancal staiements, whether
e 1o teand or coror, design and peciomm auds protedurnes esponsive (o those nsks, and
obram audht evidence rhar s suthcwent and spproprare o provide a basis for our apimon,
The risk of nor detecnng 4 matenal misstrement resulnng from frawd s hugher than for one
resalnng from ervor, as faod may volee collusion, forgeny, mennonal omussions,
misrepresentations, or the override of miernal conrrol

& Obtun an understandmg of meenal conreol relevan to the audit m order o design auda
procedures thar ane appoopeare wthe cocumstnces, bur not foe the pugpose of expressing
an rparon on the effectveness of the company’s ol contral.

o Lvaluare the appropoateness of sccountmng policics wsed and the reasonablengss of
accountmg cstmates and relared dhselosures mude Iy muigemen

s Coneclude on rhe appropraveness of managenient's use of the gong concern basis of
accounnng and, based on the audi evidence obrmed, wherber a masenal uncertanry exists
related o events or condmons that may cast sigmificant donb on the company's alaliry o
continie a5 gomg concer [Fwe conclude thar w mateonl uncerainiy ¢xists, we are
reuiredd o deaw arention in oue aditors repart o the relired disehisures m the financial

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 73



M st

GrantThornton

Independent auditor’s report (cont’d)

To the Members ot
Stanonery and Office Supphies Limred

Report on the Auwdit of the Financial Statements

Arvedrnr's Wenpamotnditics fur ihe Awidit of the Frogua! Seatements (0 ant W)

staremes o, b such diclosures are madequate, 1o modite our opuion. Cur conchsons
are based on theaudi evidence obimed up o the dare of our audiror’s report, However,
future events or conditions may cavse the COMPANY 10 CORSC 10 COITINNG 83 4 GoINg concenm

o Dvaluare the overall presentannon, seractuee and contenr of the Hnancal staemenrs, ncluding
the disclosures, and whedher the fimancial staemenis represent the undedving ransactions
and evenrs in g manner thar presents u tooe i far view

s Obtwn sufficent approprse ands evidence repanhng the fmancal wiommanon of the ennty
or business actwones withon the Company o express an opinion o the fmancial sratemenrs,
We are responsible for the direcnon, supervision and performance of the audn. We remam
salelv responsible for our audiv opuion.

We commumcare with the Board of Dirccuors reparding, among other marters, the planned
seope and g of the audan and sppmibicann aodn findmgs, mclading ane agmificant defciencics
wt nwrernal comrol ehae we idennfy duomg oo wdn

Report on additional matters as required by the Jamaican Companies Act

Wi have obramed all the wlormanon and explananons which, wothe bese of our knowledge and
behef, were necessary tor the purposes of our andie. I our opmion, propes accounting reconds
have been mamruned, so far as appears from out esanmaton of those cecords, and the financial
statements, which are wnoagreemenr therewath, give the mformanon cequired by rthe Jamaican
Compantes At i the manner regqured

Kangston, Jammca

Murch 15, 2017

bl OF G St S ey
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Stationery and Offige Supphes Limited

Statement of financial position
December 31, 2016

Wote 2016 2015
5 3
Assels
Norn-current assets
Property, plant and equipment )] 246,563,974 107,806,770
imangiole asse! {8} 5,661,552 A
262,225,526 107 806,770
Current assels
Inventones (7 118,831,085 106,866,176
Trade and ather receivabies (&) 87,500,057 70658 952
Hrgpaymeants 20,999,958 12,218,555
Bank and cash 15 _ 5184375 1097445
232,615,485 160,841,128
Total assets 484,741,011 208 647 808
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Sharg capital (10 4,000 4,000
Capifal reserve {11) 112,423,398 5,049 313
Retained profits 130,213,625 B3.627 432
Total equity 242,641,023 BE.GBD 745
Liabilities
Maon-current liabilities
Borrowings 112} 15,425,520 33,478,266
Oiner loans (13) 58,378,114 58,501,088
Finance lease (14) 16,863,356 10.465.8417
Defarran tax hapiity (15 24,605,419 g687.313
115,472 418 112,132,504
Current labilities
Bank overdraft (2815 638, 290 -
Trage and other payables iy 79,168,850 62 284 125
Ciwing to Directors [%3) 1.472,320 3,175.082
Currenl portion of borrowings 2) 23,010,424 18,821,519
Curren! portion of ather loans (13 4,080,931 4,689.872
Currant portion of finance lease 14 12,157,248 B, 233088
Taxation payable 5,008,540 616.973
126,627,570 7,834 545
Total liabilities 242,099,988 208,867 153
484, 741,011 258,647,868

Total equity and liabilities

The notes on the jecompanying pages B o 30 form ao butepral pact of these financal statements
| g pral

\pprovg gl by the Board of Direcrors on March 13, 2017 and signed on s behalf by:

A | [urector ﬂ%m@ Director
i

Dravid MeDanel Majorie McDaniel
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Stavonery and Office Supplies Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other

cmnprehensive INCOME
Year ended December 31, 2016

Note 2016 2015
] ]

Revenue (4c) 702,070,851 626580325
Cost of sales [363.402,812) (357.976.358)

338.668.239 266,603,966
Finance income {48} 226,580 .
Other income i19) 163,078 126,281

339,057,877 266,730,227
Aominisirative and general @xpenses (193,399,312) (172 610.834)
Selling and promotional costs {59,296,198) (55,514 629)
Dher gperating expenses (1,254,918) (542 BES)
Depreciaticn {15,928,561) {14,650,307)
Finance cosls {18} (11,144,462) (9,073 341)
Loss an foreign exchangs (4.871,347) (2,248 284)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
aquipment - {83 653)

(285,904,789) (254,723 713}
Profit before tax (201 53,153,078 14,006 514
ncome 1ax expense {213 (6.588,885) (6.900,004)
Prafit tor the year 46,586,193 7108510
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of land and buildings 125,802,419 .
Daferred tax relating 1o revaluation of land and
buildings 118,428,334)
Other comprehensive income for the year 107,374,085 =
Total camprehengive income far the year 153,960,278 7,106 510
e notes oo the L‘HH:,’.'-'iir':‘-ﬁt}J prpes Ko W) fomm an :1|:T'|.5'_'r::|. '|1.|l". f?l. [l.'!l.'ﬂ? I‘li'I:I.!I.E'I.H] statgments
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Stalionary and Office Sunplies Lo

vt

Statement of changes in equity
Year ended December 31, 2016

Share Capital Retained
Capital Heserve Profits Total
$ H § 5
Balance at January 1, 2015 4,000 5,049,313 76,520,922 81,574,235
Profit for year 2015 peing fotal comprenansive
income - 7,106,510 7,106,510

Balance at December 31, 2015 4,000 5,049,313  83,627.432 68,680,745
Profit for the year - . 46 586.193 46,586,123
Orther comprehensve income - 107374085 : 107,374 085
Total comprahensive incoma for the year o - 107 374.085  46586,192 153.960.278
Balance at December 31, 2016 4,000 112,423,398 130,213,625 242,641,023

The notes on the sccompanying pages 3 10 30 form anantégeal paer of these finaneial statements.
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limmited

Statement of cash flows

Year ended December 31, 2016

2016 2015
Note 5 5
Cash flows from operating activities:
Pradit befare tax 53,153,078 14,006,514
Aciusiments for
Deprecatian 5 15,938,561 14,550,307
Loss on foreign exchange on fareign
currancy loans 5,448,307 1,827,542
Loss on disposal of praperty. plant and
egquipmen! . 83,653
Interest income (226,560) =
Interas! axpense (18) 11,144,462 073,341
85,458,848 38,541 357
Ingcrease in invantofias {11,964,919) (8.514,655)
Increase n frade and glher recanvatles (13,720,495} |2,508.961)
Increasa in prepayments (8,781,403) {2,341.076)
Increasel{decreaselin trade sna other payables 13,764,115 3,706.990)
Decrease n owing 1o Direclors (1,706,772) {6,727 .874)
Cash generated from operations 63,049,374 14,741 BN
Imterest pad {11,144, 462) [8,073,341)
Incame taxes paid (4,394,050} (2.761,445)
Net cash provided by operating activities 47,510,862 3407015
Cash flows from investing activities:
Imerest receiven net of withnalding tax 226,064 -
Purchase of properly. plant and equigment {28.893,345) (32 452 528
Purchase of inlangitle asset (8 (5,661,552 2
Met cash used in investing activities 134,328,834 {32,452 528)
Cash Nows from financing activities
Frocesds from othier loans . 35,200 642
Proceeds from finance lease 20,693,079 16,671.072
Repaymeant of barrowings 13,863,832) (11,624,108)
Repayment of other loans (6,191,218} (4,547 BT1)
Repaymen of firance lease (10,371,447) (7,428.044)
Nat cash provided by financing activities (8,733,288} 2787169
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 3,448,640 (1.173.820)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ 1,087.445 2.271.285
Cash and cash equivalents al end of year 9 4,546,085 1.087.445
Fhe notes an the accompanving pages 8 1o 31 formn an aeprral nart of these Ainancral statements
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Stationery and OHice Supplies Limited

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2016

1.

3.

ldentification and activities

Stationery and Office Supplies Lumted 15 a hinated habuliry company meorporsted under the
Laws of lamaca on July 23, 1963, The company is domicided in Jamaica wath registered
oiffices located ar 23 Beechwood Avenue, Ringston 3, lamasea, West Tndies.

The man petiviry of the company s the sale of offiee furniure, Akwires, satonery and other
olfice supplics

Statement of compliance

Thesc finpncial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
R,q':']‘_lq._ll_'[u.'|.|__'| stpnrdacds (IFRS) as ssued by the hocemational Vecountng Standards Board
1ASH)

Changes in accounting policies
New and revised standards that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016

Certun new and amended smndards wid merpretanons 1o exsung standards have been
published and became effectve durng the enrrent financial vear, The Company has assessed
the relevance of all such new stndards, interpretanons and amendments and determined that
none will have a matenal wapact on the company

Standards, amendments and interprecations issued but not ver effective and have nor
been adopied early by the company

At the date of authonsation of these fnancial statements, cermn new standaeds,
amendments and mempretatons W exisbng standards have been pubbished bur are not yet
etfective, and huve not been carly adopred by the company. [aformation on those expeeted
to be relevant 1o the company's finanetl statements are provided below

Management antcipates that all relevant pronouncements waill be adopted in the company’s
weeounting policics for the fest period begmnang after the effecave date of the
pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpreianons that may
bie relevant w the company’s fimancsl statements are provided below=

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' (2015)

The 1ASH recenty released [FRS 9 ‘Fuinancil Tnstruments” (2013), representing the
complenon of s projeet 1o replace TAS 39 'Financial Instruments’ Recognition and
Measurement’ The new standard miroduces extensive changes to LA 3%s gudance on the
classitficanon and measurement of fnanckl issers and jnrroddces a new expected eredin loss’
model for the unpuoment of fnancal assers (RS 9 also provides new puidance on the
applicacion of hedge accounung
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Stationsry and Otfice Supplies Limited

Notps 1o Uie Finaucinl Stitemants

[iecénher 31, 2018

The company's management Bave yet (0 assess the mpaet of [FRS Y on these financial
staternents The new standard s reguared 1o be applied for anmual ceporting periods
beginung on or after Tanuuy 1, 201§

IFRS 15 *Revenue from Conteaciz with Customers'

IFRS 13 presents new requirements fior the recagnition of sévenue, replacing 1A5 18
Revenue', AR T Constacuon Contraces’, and several revenve-relared Interprerations. The
new standard esrablishes a contol-bused revenue recogniton model and provides addinonal
guschance m o many areas not covered m detarl under exisung [FR3s, including how to account
for arrangements with muluple performance obliganons, vanable pocing, customer refund
rghts, supplies sepuschase opuens, and other common compleximes

IFRS 15 15 effective tor reporting penods bennnmg on o after January 1, 2018, The
compans s management have nut yer assevsed the impacr of IFRS 15 0on these financial
statements

IFRS 16 *Leases

IFRS 16 Leases’, feffevuve for annual pencids begtnomg on or sfrer Jammry 1, 2019), In
Jasuary 2006, the TASH published TFRS 16 which replaces the cument guidance in [AS 17,
Ulnder TAS 17, lessiees were reguire to muke o distinetion between a finance lepse and an
operanig lease. [FRS 16 now requices lessecs to recognise u lease lability reflecting future
limse pavenents sl a ‘agh-of-use asser’ for virtually all lease contracts: There is-an optional
exemption ar lessees or certam short-rerm Teases and leases of low-value assets. The company
woassessmy the impact of future adopuon of the mensarenents on 1t financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The fuinancial statements have been prepared usmyg the sigmificant accounung poletes and
measurement basis sommansed below:

a Property, plant and eqguipment

a4 Landand beaddings are carded a1 revalued smounts being the marcket value and are
performed onee every theee o five (3 —5) years, unless market fictors indicate a
matcrial change m far vidue Ay revaluanon surplus s recognized i other
connprehensive income and credited 1w capital reserve in eguiry, unless the camrving
amount of thar asser s previously suffered a revalianon decrease or mpairment
loass “T'o the extent thacany decreasc has previously been recognized in other
comprchensive meome a revaldanon increpse m credit to probt or loss with the
remainmg pact of the merease recogmzed in other comprehensive income.

Droweward revaluations of buldmgs ae recopnized upon revaluaton or
unpairment restng, with the decrease being charged 1o other comprehensive
wicome 1o the extent of any surplus o equary relanng 1o this assecand any
remuning deereasde recopnized i profir or loss

t)  Property, plant and equipment are caried at wevalued amounts/ cost less
accumilated deprecinon and impavrment (Note 4,

e Depresmtion s charged on assets from the daw of acquisition.

Depreciation s provided on the sinughr hie basis ar such mes as will write off the
cast of the varous dssets over the period of ther expected useful lives. The useful
lives approximate 1o fifty (30) vears for buldiog, ten (10) vears for machinery,
cquipment and storage contaner, formituce and fixtures, five (3) vears for moror
vehiclis and eight (%) years for solar svstem equipment,
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Stattonery and Office Supphes Limited

Notgs (o the Finanoal Sintempnis

Lprambor 3% M6
Lenschold mmprovements are bemng umornsed over five (3) years:
Lansd 15 pot deprecinted
(i) Repaies and senwenals
The cost of wepars and renewals which db not enhanee the value of the existing
issets are weatten off w the profic or [oss a= they are incdrred.
b Inventories

Inveniones are stated ot the lower of cost, derermined on a fiese i fiest our (FIFO) basts,
and et reabaable value  Costof wventory invoiced 15 the value plus ‘-lFFTimhlE Lll]liillg
charges. et realisabile value 1= based upon estimated selling peice.

Revenue recognition

Revenue compnses sales to customers and other uicome. Sales represent the mvoiced
wathie OfF poads 1o gustomers net of Ueneral Consumpuon Tax

Revenue s recagused when goods are delivered ro cusiomers or on the wansfer of nsk 1o
thied parties

Foreign currency translation
Fbiancfuipand comel prevsvmtialin vieeveasy
The financul statements are prepared and presented i lamaican Dollars, which 13 the

funenenal curreney of the company. Except where otherwise stated, these financial
atatements arg expressed vt [amoiean Dollies

{'fl.l".l'.f‘[:ﬂ (NI Srumydntinmy @i Ralanors

] Fisrem currency Balinees at the end of the reporting penod have been transhated
at-rares of exchange roling ar that date

u) lransacuons i foresgn currency are converted a1 rates of exchange rling at the
dutes ot thase rmnsactions

i G/ losses ansing from Auctuanions i exchange gates are meluded m profiy

o Tuopss,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consistof current accounts, held with beensed Nnancial
msnmtions and cash on hand mantaned by the company.

Income tax
Ieeome tax on protic or loss for the vear comprises current and deferred tax

When appheable, current tax s caleulated on taable profits at current tax eates.

Current tax 15 the expected tax pavable on the taxable meome for the vear, using tax
values enacied ar the end of the reporung pentod, and any adustments 1o tax payable in
respect of provious year

Dieterred tax 45 acconnred for using labilitg method, providing for tempocary differencies
berween the carrping amount of asses and lubilines for financnl reportng purposes-and
the correspondimg basis wsed in the computanon of wxable profit. In prmciple, deferred
tax Labalities are recogrused for txable differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
10
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MGEES 1t G ol STatimnmts
Crocamber 31, 2016

1o the extent thar it s probable that tasable profi will be avalable aganst which
deducnble rempomry differences ean be unlised

Deferred rax s caleulsted anthe tax mies thit ate expectad to apply 1w the penod when
the asset 1 réaliwed o the lability 18 senled. Deferred tax o charged to proficor loss,
except whenat s related to uems credited or charged doeedy 1o equaty, in which case the

defered vy 1 alsis dealr with in eguay,

g Financial instruments

Financul assets and fnancal labilives are secogmsed whea the company becomes a party
10 the contractual provisions of the financul instrioment

Financial assets are derecogmsed when the contmacrunl nghts 1o the cash flows from the
fimancial weset exgire, or when the funincial asser and all substantol osks and rewards are
tragnsfecred

N finanen) labdiny s devecogmsed when ot soexnnpuished, discharged, cancelled or
expired

Financial assets and financial labibities ate measured minally 2t fair value plus transactions
costs, except for financal assets dnd Ananeia] labilites careied at Fair value through profit
or loss

Fnancial assers and fnanead habies are measured subscquenty as deseribed below

Finmancial assets

For the purpose of subscquent measurement, financil nssets are classified into the
following categuries upan tutal secopniing

* leans and recenvables;

*  BGnaneial assers ot Bair value throogh profit or joss;
* held-to— mameny investments, and

*  avallable-for-sale inancual assers

e categor determines subseguent measurement and whether any resulting income and
expense 1 recogmsed i profivor loss ar m other comprehensive income.

Al fiancial assets except for thuse at fair value theough profit or Joss are subject 1o
tevicw for imparrment ar least at each eporung date. Financial assers are impared when
there s any abjective evidence tiat s Anancial asset or a group of financial asscts is
imparred Iifferent comesta 1o determune impatement are apphed for each category of
fuancial assets, which are desealbied below

Al mcome and expenses relanng 1o financial assers thar are recognised in profit or Joss
are presented within finance income’, 'Tinance costs’ or ‘orther financial ems', except for
unparment of trade recervables winch s presented witlun "other operating expenses’.

Loamr gl recesvatiles

Loans and recenables are non-denvanve financial assers with Axed or determinable
pavements that are not guoted i oan actve mytker, After witial recogmition these are
mezsured w1 omortised cost usig the effcetive mrercst method; less provision for
impaicenent. Discountng 15 omutted where the effect nf discounting is mumatenal. The
company’s cash and cash equivalents, rrade and most ather teceivables fall into chs
catepiry of financial instruments.

Indnadually sigmuficans receivables are considered for impainment when they are past due

ar when other olyective evidence 15 recened thar s specific counterparty will default. A
1
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Stalionery and Office Supplies Limited

Bt 1o the Financad Sielomaig
e cember 34, 2016

provision fur doubtful debt 1s recognised when there 1s an indication that the debuis
unpaired. lmpawment of rade recevables are presented withmn ‘other aperating
cxponscs

Fawmnaral seivedi @l fiir sl ol peufit or foss

Financial assews i furvalue through profic or loss melude financial assets thar are esther
classified as held for rading or that meet certam conditons and are designated at fair
value through prriﬁ.l ar loss Lt wikki] recagmnom None of the cnmrr.u‘:j"ﬁ financial
assers fall into this catogory

[ el faenittnrs 1y inesineinty
3

Held-to-maranty investments ae aon-denvative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed inaturity other than loans and recervables: Investments
are classified as held-ro-maturiy 1f the company has the intention and abiity 1o hold them
untl matriry. None of the company s financal assers fall o this caregory

Hwiarhalete for-sule Fucnisad griels
Avalable-for-salc finanenl assets are non-decvanve  financial assers that are either

designared 1o this category or do not qualify for mclusion in any of the other categornies of
finaneinl assers. None of tie company’s fnancial assees fall into chis category.

Financial liabilities

I'he company's financial labdines mclude mierest beanng borrowings and teade and other
pavables

Financin) labilines are messured subsequently ar amornsed cost using the effecuve
interest method, except for financial labihties held for irading or designated ar far value
thremagh prafit or loss, that are corried subsequenty ar fa value wath gains or losses
recognised w1 profic or loss

Wl interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrament’s far value that are
reported s profit or loss are incloded withon "finanee costs’ or 'finance income’

h Owing to Directors

Ymowns cwing o Direciors pre onretied ut amorised cost

i Borrowings

Borrowings compaise loans and capitil lease obligations and are classified as financial
habulities mussured at amorused cost and are recopmised inmally at far value, beng therr
tssued Pmcm:.:jﬁ net af trangacton coa1s incurred. Subscqucm!?, bﬂrmw-mgs are
measured at amartised cost and Jny difference between net procecds and the redemprnian
value is recogmised i the profiv and loss account aver the penod of the borrowings using
the effective mrerest method. Interest charges are recogmsed in profit or loss in the
penod in whach thev ocour

j Impairment
The compuny’s property, p]ziu and cquipment are sulnect to 1mpa.1'rmmt testing

Fur the purposes of sssessing impawment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
witich there are separately (dentifiable cish dows (eashgencrating unies), s a result,
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Notes to The Fliaanciad Statnmients

L

camboer 31, 2015

some uetets are fested indwidually for imparment and some are tested ar cash-generating
st level Individual assers ar eashqreneranng units wre wested for impairment whenever
events of changes in cireumstances indicate that the carmng amount may not be
recoverable

A impannent loss s recogiused Tor the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's earrving amoine exceeds 115 recovernble amoant. The recoverable amount 1s the
hugher of far value, reflectmp market condmions less costs to sell and value in use, based
o an aternal discounted cash flow evaluavon: All assets are subsequently reassessed for
midicanons that an mparment loss previously recogrised may no longer exise

Leases

Finance leases

Lo aecondanee wah LAS 17, the economic ownership of a leased asset is transferred 1o the
kessee of the lessee bears substantially all the esks and rewards related to the ownership of
the leased asset. The melated asset is recognsed ar the tme of imnception of the lease ar the
farr value of the leased asseror, of lower, the present value of the lease payments plus
merdental payments, if any, o be bome by the lessee. A corresponding amount 15
récagised as a fimanee Tease habiling, srrespectve of whether some of these lease
pavments ure pavable up-front at the date of incepnon of the lease:

Subsequent accounnng for assers held under finance lease agreemenrs, cha s,
depreciaton methods and usetul lives, comrespoad 0 those applied 1o comparable
acguited assets The correspanding finance leasing bablity is reduced by lease payments
leds flnance cliarges, whieh are charged to the statemeny of comprehensive income as
finance costs Finance charpes represent a constant perodic rate of wmrerest an the
surstanding balanee of the Anance Jease Tabality

Operanng leases

Wl orher leases are treated ps operatng leases. Where the company is a lessee, payments
on operating lease armngements are secopmised s an cxpeénse an a steaight line basis over
the lease term Astocuned costs such as nuintenance are expensed as incurred

Equity

Share capiral & derermmed usitiy the procecds seceived for the shaves that have been
aued.

Capual reserve represents realised surplus on disposal of property and equipment plus
accumulared surplus ansing on the revaluation of lund and buildings,

Rermned profis ichude all cusrent and prior perod results as diselosed 1 profit or loss.

Operating expenses

Oiperating expenses are recogmised m profin or loss upon uthsation of the service or at
the date of thewr ongn,

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of Doancial sgatements in aceordance with Internanonal Financial
Beportng Standards requires management to make cstmares and assumptions that affect
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the amounts reported m thie Snancnl statements. These esamates are based on historical
expertence and management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. Actual
resules may differ from these esumares and 1ssumptions

There were noventicnl jndgements, apart from these ivolving esumation, that
management has made i the process ot applvng the company’s accounting policies that
havea }lgﬂ.trll:;l.ui elfecr un the amounts 1cfngm:‘cd in the financial statements

The estamates and assumpuons which have the most significant osk of causing s matenal
adpasement to the earryug amountsof assers and babshnes are dizeussed below

11 Deprectanon of property, plnt and equipment

Deprecunan 1 provided so as 1o write down the respective assets 1o their residual
vilues over thew expeered usetul lves and, as such, the selection of the estmated
aseful ives and the expeeted residual values of the assers requires the use of estimates
and judgements: Derails of the esumared useful bves are as shown in Note 4{a)

() Taxaton

The company is required o estmane meome mx payable w the Commissioner
General of Tas Adnunistration Jumatea on any prafie detived from opemnons

(Note 210 This regquires an estimation of the earrent tax Hability together with an
assessment of the remporary ditferences which anse a5 2 consequence of different
pecountng and tax treatments. These temporary differences result deferred rax
assers of habihines wluch are ncluded m the statement of financial position. Deferred
rax assers ad babdiges are measured using the enacred wmx rure at the end of the

reporting penod,

If the taxev Lntu.ﬂh Py able or recovernble differs from the amounts 'r_rl‘.l.g'ln.lll?
estrmated then the dlf;uv:u:c swill be sccounted for n the accounts in the vear such

derertmnption 15 made

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when present abligations will prabably lead w an outflow of
economic resources from the company and they can be estunated reliably. Timing or
mmount of the outflaw mar 6l e unseerin. 4 prosent obligaton anses from the
presence of a legi or construcuve computmen e bas resuled from past events, for
cxample, legal dupm:s or onerous contracts. Hestricturing provisions are recognised only
il dernled formal plas for the wstructuning has been developed and |mpir_-:|:n¢nted i,
management has at kast announced the plan's main features to those affected by n
Provisions e ot recognised for e opesiung losses,

Provswns are measured ar the estimated expenditure regaired 1o settle the present obliga-
ton, based on the most reliable evidence avalabile st reporting date, including the tsks
and uncertamtes associated with the present obliganon. Any reumbursement expected 10
be recaved w the course of sertlement of the present abligation i fecognised, if viemally
CErtamm as a separate asset, not excecding the amount of the selited provision. Where
there wre o number of sunilar abligarions, the lkelibood that an outBew will be required
i sertlement is determuned by considenng the class of vbligatonsas a whole In additon,
long-term provisions are discounted o thor present values, where tme value of money 15

rate

All prewistons are reviewed at the end of the reportng penod and adjusted o refleet the
cureent best estumare.

LE]
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Rokes 1o tho Finaacinl Stareniants
Diecemes M, 245

In thiose cases wheee the possible outflow of cconomic resource as i result of present
oblgations s consudered wnprobable or remote, or the smount 1o be provided for cannot
be measured celably, no labiiry s recognised i the stement of fnancial positon.

Probable inflows of econoriie benefiss 10 the company that du not yer meer the
recognition s of an agset are considered connnpent assers.

p Comparative information

Certmn previous vear figures have been restutid 1o conform to current vear's

Prescntaom.
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Stationery and Office Supphies Linmited
Matia Lo thl Flrmanoig! Stalaments
Depembar 31,2016

6. Intangible asset - computer software
Ueratls of mtanpible asser and ther corrying amoutis hee as follows:

Acquired Total
Software ]
Gross carrying amoun!
Balance at Janyary 7, 2016 - -
Addition 5661562 5861552
Balance at Dacember 31, 2016 5661552 5661552

The computer software has not been amomsed 55 't s not ready for it intended ase by
AL gL

T Inventories

2018 2015
] 5
Marchandise -
Stalipnary and office equpment, fumiture & other
suppiles 118,831,095 106 856,176
Total 118,831,095 106,866,176
8. Trade and other receivables
2016 2015
5 -
Trade BB, 762,771 58 706 242
Less: Specific provisian for doubtful debts {1,254.919) -
85,507,852 68,706,242
General Consumption Tax + 139,502
Staff joans 954,434 B05.437
Qther recaivatle 1,037,771 1.117.771
Total 87,500,057 70,658 052

Al amounts are short-teom and the carrying value 15 considered a reasonable Approximaton
of Fayrvalue

Bad gebt specific provision |s as follows

2016 2015
& £
Ealance at January 1 2 2
Ingrease in provision ~ 1.254,919 -
Balance at December 31 1,254,919 -

Anandlvsis of unimpateed trade recetvables that are past due s given it note 26h
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Stationery and Ofice Supplies Limited

Motés 10 the Foamanciml Stytements
Decambivg 31 201F

9. Bank and cash

2016 2015
5 ]
Cash and bank balances:
FCIB J% savings atcount 163,870 Q1 426
MNCB JE current account 4,504,631 157.528
FCIB JE currant accoumnt . 491 6ET
FCiB USS current account 260,876 181,828
Cash in hang 254,998 174,998
Total 5,184,375 1,087 445
Less: bank overdralt (Mote 16) (638,290} -
Total bank and cash 4,546,085 1,097.445
10. Share capital
2016 2015
$ ]
Authorised
2.000 ordinary shares
Stated capital
Issued-and fully pand:
2 000 ordinary shares 4,000 4,000

As ol Janeary 2007, upder the Jamacan Companies et 2004, all: shares m issue are deemed

ter be wathour par value

11. Capital reserve

2016 2015
5 &
Balance at January 1 5,048,313 5048313
Unrealsed surplus arising from revaleation of lang and
buidings 115,802,419 -
Defegrred tax resulting from revalustion (Note 15) (18,428,334) -
Balance at December 31 112,423,398 5.048.313
12. Borrowings
20186 20158
§ ]
Loans =
(@) MF&G Trust & Finance Limited 29,876,430 40,316,451
() Nanonal Export—import Bank of Jamaica
Lirmited 8,559,523 11,863,334
38,435,953 52,296,785
Less Current portion {23,010,424) (18.821,519)

Total

15425520 33478266

() These loans bedr mirerest o mates of el por cent (12%) and twelve prant five percent
(12.5%) per annum, subyect o change depending on moarker conditions or determmed by
the Trustees. The loans manare 1 the years 23017 and 2018, and are secured by

(1) first und second lepal mongmpe over propenty regstered at Volume 1224 Folio 830

of the Register Book of Tiles

of the Repsrer Books of Tules
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slalionery and Othce Suppites Limiled

Hates 1t the Financal Statomonty

honreinnes 31 MGE

3} assigument of Comprehensive Fire and Penl Tnsugance for value on real éstate
with the Bank s untedest nowed

4)  personal guaranree of Burectors: David MelDaned aad Marone MeDanel.

b Tr August 2009 the company reconved an Encrgy Loan and a SME Growth Inidate Loan
frem Nanonal Export-Impore Bank of Jamuca Limited [4}|:|]_E|ng $14 380,000, The Energy
Loan s being offered for a penod of sixry (60) months and bears interest at a rate of
&5 per amnmum, The SME Growth [nitmte Loan is being offered for a penod of forry
el 48] months and bears nterest ats s of 10.375% per anoum

These loans are secured by legal morigage over property segistered at Volume 1286 Folio
032 of the Regoer Book of Tales

13. (i) Other loans

2018 2015
§ 5

Loan (al 39,111,854 38 869 538
-1 4,080,931 5525823
([} 19,266,260 18,005,728
62,458,045 63,200.956
Less: current portion [4,080,931) {«.699.872)
Total 58,376,114 58,501,084

() These amounts 2o unsecused, iterest froe and have a0’ fised repayment 1coms
(™ot 220u)). However the Duectors do nat mtend o and will not make 2 eall on the
amount within the next twelve (120 months

(bl The loan s unsecured and bears irerestar o sate of 9.25% per annum and 1€ to be
tepaid with quartedly payments of L'834,150064 on the reducing balance The loans will
expre Adugust 19, 20017

el The doun was seceived on Seprember 1, 2015 for o penad of six (6) vears with a

eratenm un poncipal payments for the firse four (4) vears. Interest 15 fxed at a rare
of nine percent (9% per anaum and i pavable an o quarterly basis.

{ii} Owing to Directors

20186 2015
5 £
Agvances 1,472,320 3,173,092
Total 1,472,320 3,179,062

Phese amounts are unsecured, mierest free and hive no fixed repavment werms. Note 220u))

14, Finance lease

2018 2015

5 %
Finance lease 28,020,571 18,898,209
Less Current portion (12,187,215) {8,233 068}
Total ] 1’5353355 10,465,841

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 91



atationeryand Office Supplies Limited

MNnlas
Dhastint

15.

1o the Fammne i Srstenionts

nbas 11, 2046

soltware which s meladed m mtangnble asser Maote 6)

[ Puture munamum lease pavmients ot Diecenibor 31, 2006 are as follows:

Due Within
Due Within Two to Five
One Year Years Total
§ 5 5
Lease paymants 15,069,603 18.204,381 34,274,184
Less Finance charge (2,912,588) 12,341,025) (5,263,613}
12,157,215 16,863,356 29,020,571
Less Current portian (12,157,215) - {12,1567,215)
Total - E __ 16,863,358 16,863,356
it Future mintmum lease Pasincits at Drecember 31, 2015 are as follows:
Diue Within
D Within Two to
One Year Fiva Years Total
2 ) 5
Lease paymenis 10,078 356 12,474,238 22 552 594
Lasz: Finance charge __f1.Besamg (2.008,397) (3,853 685)
8.233.008 10,465,841 18,698,809
Less: Current porticn _{8.233.088) z (8233.088)
Total - 10,465,841 10,465,841
11l Olperating feasceas lessee

Uhe campany leases un office, warchouse and storage buildings under operating

leases The furire minmmum lease payments are as follows:

Minimum iease payments due

within 1 year 110 5 years Taotal
Uss USE Uss
Dacember-31, 2016 B 47,774 12 47,774

The lease agreement expires on December 31, 2015 The company has an option to
renew, however, at the repocting dae the dosumentaunn 1o e effect to the rerms

of the new lease agreement had sot been finalised:

Deferred tax liability

Deferred rax o culculated onall temporary differcnces under the babulity method wsing a tax

rate of 23%, (2013 - 253% The movenient on thi deferved tax deeount 15 s Fallows:
2016 2015
§ 5
Balance a! peginning of year (9,687,313) (5. 727 5a8)
Charge during the year - revaluation (Nate 11 (18,428,334) x
- deferred lax credi 3310228 (3.958,754)
Balance at end of year ot tﬁ-i_,&ﬂﬁ.ﬁﬂ: (8,687,313)
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Statianery and Otfice Supplies Limited
!

16,

17.

18.

19.

[eferred tax balince arose an ECIIPRLEY differences i t'-.‘:i'luu't of the i !]]H‘J-'!II-E‘

2016 2015
5 5

Dreferred tax ability on
Properly, piant and squipment 17,550,276 §T743.744
Lease obligation 7,255,143 -

24805419 89,743,744
Deferred tax assel on
imerest payable - - (56.431)

24.525.119 8,687 373

Net deferred tax liability

Bank overdraft

I'he COmprns deves tiot hive a4 bank overdeaft ety The amount represenis UﬂPi’l’.‘Mﬂ“C‘d

cheguesan the company’s books SN Y

Trade and other payabies

20186 2015
5 5
Trade 23,884,611 24,208,103
Cuslomer deposils 30,064,123 16,897 207
Statutory deductions 5.046,345 3,182,077
Accruals 3,574,292 5,041 382
Other 16,589,479 12,855,358
Total 79,168,850 62,284 125

Finance income and finance cost

Fumnce wmeome includes all income from shon

teom depasits and eash at bank:

2016 2015
% 5
Interest income 228,560 -
Total finance income 226,560 5
Fiuunce costs for the vears presented comprisg
2016 2015
$ 5
Interest expense for borrowings al amortised cost 8,344,518 7,154 328
interest on financa lease 2,799,844 1919013
Total finance costs 11,144,462 8,073,341
Other income
This comprises of
2016 2015
5 §
Miscellanenus income 163,078 1268261
Total 163,078 125,251
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Stationery and Office Suppiles Limited

Motes 1o the Finpncial Statements

Gueégmbier 3%, 2016

20. Profit before tax
Profit before tax is stated atter chargng, ‘crediting

2016 2015
5 5
Depreciaton 15,938,561 14 550,307
Directors’ emoluments —

Managermani remuneration 39,334,720 37,234 879
Audilor’s remuneration 1,320,000 1,241,856
Interest expanse 11,144 462 9073341
Interest income {22%,560) =
Loss on foreign exchange 4,871,347 2,248 284
Loss on disposal of propany, piant and equipment - 83,653

21. Income tax
1 Income wmx bused an profi for the vear wdjusted for tax purposcs and computed at the

rax rate of 25%:, (2015 230 comprise
2016 2015
s -]
Current charge 9877 113 2,940,240
Deferred tax creditiaxpenss; (note 15) {3,310,228) 3.858 Tea
Total 6,566,885 £,900,004

i Reconcliavon of theoretical 1ax expenses o offecuve X expenses:

2018 2015
5 5
Profit before lax 53,153,078 14,006.614
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% 13,288,270 3501629
Employmen Tax Credi {4,208,774) (1.337.062)
Tax effact of expenses not cecuctible for tax
P pOses 5,248,892 3,775,864
Tax effect of other charges and allowances __{7.781,503) 4955 573
Income tax for the year 6,566,885 5,800,004
22. Related party balances
[ ety s relared foothe compan if
0 Direerdy, ur indirectly throuph one or more miermicdries, the party

= Is conrrolled bv, or &= under commaon comteilwith the entity;
Flas an interest w the company thay gves b significant influence over the entity,
31
Has jomnt contral oyer the company
b The party 15 an assoctite,

¢ The parmy s a oot vontaee i wheh the COTPENY 1% 0 Vennrer,

d The party 13 4 member of the key manigenient personnel of the entity or its' parent;

g

The party 18 a cliose member of the family of any wdividual referred 1o in {a) or (d);
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Stationery and Office Suppiies Limited

Moted (o thik Finapcil Stateinanils
December 31, 2016

{  The party ssanenty that i contralled, jomtly controlled or sigmificantly influenced

by, or fur wiuch sipmficant votne power in such cninny cesides with, dicectly or
5 Bl ]

wndireetly, any mdividual referred woan () o (e,

g The party 5 post-emplovment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of the

company, ar f sy enoty thar is 4 celared party of the eatiry,

0 At the end of the reportng penod tade and nos-rade balances with related parties were

as fellovars

2016 2015
5 5
Other foans (Note 130 62,459 045 53,200 955
Owmg to Directors (See Note 13) 1472,320 3,179,082
63.931,365 66,380,048 N
w Transactons with key managetient personnc
2016 2015
5 ]
Short-term emplovee penefis —
Managemeni remuneration 39,334,720 37,234,878
Total 39,334,720 37234878
23. Expenses by nature
Toral direet, adununistrative and othes overhepd EXPENES
2016 2015
5 5
Advertising 14,602,169 12.595,8621
Cost of inventones recogmsed a5 an expensa 383,402,612 357 876,359
Dhrectors’ ramuneration 39,334,720 a7.234. 878
Auditor's remuneration 1,320,000 1,241, 858
Depreciation 15,938,561 14 550,307
Logal and professional feas 208,730 1,128,201
Commission 36,239,980 35,001,400
Emplovee benefits {Note 24) 99,980,037 87 BO& 946
Finance costs 11,144 462 8.073,341
Cther gxpenses 62,257 821 53 542 678
Total 644,436,064 £10,451,788
24. Employee benefits
20186 2015
5 %
Salaries and wages 77,186,782 65950411
Stawtory contributions 14,984 854 13,275,293
Staff benafits 7,816,401 8,583 242
99,980,037 87 B0B S48

Total

I'here were ninery-three (Y3), (2015 - eighiv-mune (89)) employees art vedr end

24
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Stationery and Ofice Suppites Limited

to the Finaagial -!rl!!-,_.. TEFTIL

Erepgonile 37 2006

25.

Prior year adjustments

Reconciliation of the stitement of financial positon as at December 31, 2015

As praviously Effzct of
MNote stated Restatement Restated
5 s 5
Asgels
Hon-current assels
Propeny. plant and equipment 107,806,770 107,806,770
107,806,770 107,806,770
Currant assels
Inventories 106,866,178 - 106,866,176
Trade and other receivables (1) 73,779,562 {3,920.610) 70,658,952
Pragayments 12,218,565 12,218,555
Bank ang cash 1087445 - 1,087 445
193,961,738 T [3.120610) 190,841,128
Total assels i Eﬁ._?ﬂﬂ._ﬁa {3,120,610) 298,647,898
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Snare captal 4,000 4,000
Capital reserye 5.049,313 5049213
Retained profits 83,627,432 B3 627432
Total equity sesa0as 88,680,745
Liabilities
Non-current labilities
Borrowings 33,478,266 : 33 478,265
Other loans 58,501,084 - 58.501,084
Financa lease 10,465,841 - 10, 465,841
Deferced tax fiatility 8,687,313 - 9,687,313
112,132,504 112132.504
Current Habllities
Bank overdraf * 4 -
Trade and other payables {1} 65,404,735 (3120610} 62,284,125
Owing to Directors 3179082 - 3979082
Current portion of borrowings 18,821,518 . 18,821,518
Current portion ¢f other ioans 4,898,872 - 4,699,872
Current portion of finance lease 8.233.068 s 8.233.068
Taxalon payacle _ B16,973 - 616,873
100,866,259 (3120610) 7 B34 B4
Total Liabilities 213,087,763 (3120610) 209,967,153
Total equity and liabilities 304,768,508 {3,120,610) 298,647,898

(1) Prar vear adpstments ropresent o reclissificanon of the General Consumption Tax

bralance

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 96



Stationery and Office Supplies Lowitod

Motes fa tha Fiaanoal Siolamaiits
Desombier 31, 2018

Risk management policies

‘The company's genvines expose it 10 3 varcry of Tnancial nsks in gespect of its financial
wistruments marker nsk fearrency nsk, mrerest rte nsk and other price nisk), credit nsk and
hu‘mdnl. ik The cumpany secks o manage these n=ks by close ml;mj[armg of each class of

s fiopncial mstmaments as follaws:

4 Murket nsk

Marker ruk = the sk that the fur value of funire eash flows of a finaneial msrrument wall
flucruate because of changes wn macket prices.

Foeeiyn cursency tisk

Thie compuny 15 expesed to marker sk theough s use of financial instruments and
3;1{'4:|.ﬁr:|.]]1.' o currency sk, mterest ate rsk and certnin other price sk, wiuch resule
from bath s operating sod mvesting activities

¢ Currency sk

[:.u:n.'r;n.'f. paske os the sk that the fair value o future cash flows of a financal
mstrument will fluctuate becsuse of changes in toreign exchange rates.

The cOmpany s cxp:ss:d o curtency nisk duc to ﬂucn:muons n :xchmgc rales on
balances thar are denommated in currencics other than the Jamaican Dollar, For
transactons denominated m United States Dollars (U55) the company however,
maintuets US$ bank account im an atterpt to minmise thas risk

At the end pf the cepartng period there were per habilines of approximately
LSSl 253 (3005 - USSS63.3775 wiuch were subgect 1o futﬂg:: exchange mte
chunges as follows

Concentrations of currency risk

2016 2015
Uss UsSs
Financial assets
- Prepayments 149,042 95,703
- Bank and cash 2,045 1,520
Finanal Habilities
- Other ipans (486,287) {525,658)
- Trade and other payables (109,054) {134,942)
Taotal (444,253) (563,377

The ablove assets? habulines are tecenables/ payables 1o United States Dollars (USS).
The exchiange rate applicable at dare 151312844 1 U881 (2015 - [$12042 10 USS1),

Foreign curtency sensitivity

The followmg tmble dlustrates the sensiovine of the net result for the vear end and
equity- with regards 1o the compuny’s Braesdl assets and financial babdines and US
Diollar to famiaican (1.5) Dollar exchange rate. Cnly movements berween the
lmaican Dollar and US Dollars are considered, 0 these are the tao major currencics
of the campany.

The sensitenty analvsis s based an the company’s Uiied States Dollar financial
instruiments ar the end of the reposting penod
LEffect on vesults of aperations

6
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Stationery and Oftice Supplies Limited

Motey fo thie Firsaoginl Staermisiins
Couember J1, 2016

—_ e ———— - — — —— —

FEehse LA Dallur weakons Ly 6% 22015 = 8 agatest the US Daollar then ths would
ave the effect of the amounts shown below on the basts that all other vanables
ICInAm constmt.

Rate Weakens
% 3
2016 6 (3,421 588)
2015 8 {5,427, 349)

¥ the |4 Dollar strengthens agunst the U5 Dallar by 1% 2005 < 1%) rhis would
have the folluwing impact

Rate Strengthens
%Y &
2016 1 570,595
2018 1 878.416

[ =4

Inrerest e nsk

Frterest yate mskoss the nskothat the fair value or Anure eash Bows of a financial
mstament will fluciuare due w changes ux market nteeest rares The company’s cash
and cash cyuvalents are subject o mrerest eate risk. However, the company attempts
1o manage thes fisk by monmomng s ueves-beanng instruments closely and
procurng the most advantageons rates tnider contraces wnh mierest mies that are
fixed for the bie of the conmmet, where possiblc

The company mumtans mierest:easmuny bank accounts with lcensed financal
wistiutions: lnreress rates oo mierest-carnug bank accounts are not fixed but are
subject 1o fudiiations based on prevating murker mes Noe 9),

Interest cate sensiuvity

Diue ta the Get that wterest earned from the company™s interest-earning bank
acrounts w mmmaterial, there would be re manerial mpact onthe esults of the
company's opermbons as 3 restle of Muciuanons monteeest rates

wm  Chther price osk

Ulther price msk 1 the sk dar the value of o Ananeal wisrroment will uetuare asa
resilt of changes m marker prices, whether those changes are caused by factors
specific o the ndividual wstroment or s ssver or factors affectng all mstruments
traded i the marker The company’s financial msirumenis dre substanoially
independent of changes i marker prices as they are short-term in pamre

b Credit risk

Thie company ficos credt sk m vespecy of i mmade and oiier recervables and cash and
cash'equivalents.  There s sipnificant concentranon of ceedit dsk in tirade and other
recervables. [lowever, the adk is controlled by close mommonng of these assets by the
company. I addition, cash and bank halances are mamuuned with licensed finaneial

Fi
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

ne Firanciol Statemen

i 31, J0e

wistitanons coisidered 1o be'smble. The maximum credit nsk faced by the company 1s
limated o the earrving amount of fnanel assers recogmsed it the end of the reportng
petiod, as summansed below

2016 2015
£ 5
Trace and other receivables 47,500,057 70.658.952
Bank talance 4,828,377 922,447
Total 92,429,434 74,702,008

The age of trade eceivables and orher recenvahles pase due but not impaced is as follows

2016 2015
5 5
Mot more than 3 manths 67,792,921 57 618,746
Mate than 3 months but nol mode than 8 rmenths 15,123,808 10,895,227
Maore than & months but not more than 1 year 3,183,448 2,137,535
More than T yaal 1,399,861 7444
Total 47,500,057 70,658,952

Iowever, at the cnd of the reporting pt'r:nc': 4 mxionuee of $6U0 000 pet Commiercial
Bank is insured under the Jamaica Deposit [nsurince Scheme (T13)

The company does not require collateral or other credit enhancements m respect of uade

and cther récevables

Liguidity risk
Liguuiy risk 1 the nsk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting its
commutments associted with fivancial Labulnses

e COMPAny manages is |_|qmd1r'. risk b \'.Jl'l_"-u[i:l. ltll::-lti[nr!iug it cash outtlow needs for

dav-raidav business and mamtaieung an appropnate level of resourees i liguid or near
lipnd e o meer sis necds  The company mamouns cash to meet s lquidiey
CUUTETRERTS.

Asoar December 31, 2010, the gompany’s labadites have conteaciual matucities which are

summarised below

Current Non-current Non-current

Within 12 Zto 5 Over 5
Maonths years years
3 5 s

Borrowings 23.010,424 15,425,529 .
Other loans 4,080,931 58,378,114 -
Finance lease 12,157,215 16,863,356 -
Owing o directorns 1,472,320 . -
Trade and other payatles 79,168,850 . .
Total 119,888,740 90,666,999 =
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Stattonery and Office Suppiies Limited

Notes fo T Finanoiss Stalemwila
Ueaomber 31 2616

—— ——

This compares to the maranyof the comipany™s financial liphilities in the previous
reporting penad as follows

Currant Mon-gurrent Mon-current
Within 42 20 b Qver 5
Manths yaars years
% 3 1
Borrowings 18,821,518 33.478.266 -
Other loans 4 BOREFZ 58,307,084 -
Fingnce lease B.233.068 10465 B4t -
Orwing 1o girectors 3478082 . -
Trage ang other payables 62.264.125 . A
Total 97,217 676 102,445,181 t

Uhe abuove conwactual matunnes refleer the gross eash fows, which may differ 1o the
carrying values of the labdioes ar the end of the reporing period

27. Fair value measurement of non-financial assots
The following ralile shows the Levels within thee Fhierirehy of non-financinl assets measured at
fair value on @ recamng bass ot December 31, 2010

December 31, 2016 Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tolal
5 ] % 5

Property. plant and equipment

Land and Bulldings o - 182.000.000 192,000,000
Taotal . - 182,000,000 192,000,000

Fawr value of the comprns’s land and buddmges 15 conmared based on appratsal by a
professionally qualfied valuator. The sigraficant inputs and assumpuons are developed in
clizse consulianon with mumagement

Tand and Buddings (Level 3)
The apprasal was carned our using 2 market approach that reflects observed prices for
nuatket transacnnns and weorparates adjustments for factors dpecific to the company’s

pruperty, cluding size, [iscatian, encumbrances and current use of the Propemy. Land and
bl ar 21, 23 goid 23 Beechwoind Svenue, Kmpston 5, were revalued December 2016
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Stavonery and Office Supplies Lanited

Ntts ot Finoncinl Stabmments
Dwcgmbper 31, 2016
28.

29,

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
The carrving amount of the eompany’s Gnancial assers and hatilioes recogmised at the end of

the reporung penods under ceview may also be cateporsed as follows:

2018 2015
$ $
Financial assets
Loans and rece:vables
Trade and other receyaties 87,500,057 70,658,952
Bank and cash __ 51B4375 1.087 445
Total 92,584,432 71,756,387
Financial Habilities
Berrowings 16425525 33 478,268
Othear ioans 58,378,114 58,501,084
Finance loass 16,863,356 10465 641
Financial lisbilives measured at amortised cost |
Bank overdraft 638,290 -
Trade and gther payacies 79,168,850 62,284,125
Owing to directars 1472320 3,179,082
Current portion of boriowings 23,010,424 18,821,519
Current partion of other loans 4,080,331 4.699.872
Current portion of finance lzase 12,157,215 B.233.068
211,195,029 189 662 867

Total

Capital management, policies and procedures
The company's capital management obiectvés are to ensure the company’s ability o conunue
is a poing concern and 1o custun futuee development of the business. The ‘company's Board
of Pireerors review the Gnancial position of the company ar regular meetings.

The company 15 not subject w externally unposed capital requirements. The company did not

change s approaeh to capial management pobees duting the year
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Mar Sussel

Grant Thornton

Additional information — Auditot’s repott

I'o the Ditectors of
stunonery and O)ffice Supphes Lonueed
. f
i Addinonal Informaron

Fhe addwonal mformation presented oo puges 32 and 33 has been rken from the acoounong
recortds of the company and has been subjecred 1o the wsts and orher audinng procedures applied in
our examiminien of the Brancual starements of the company for the vear ended December 31, 2016

In aur opimon, the saud mtormanon s Gy presenied inall marerial respeers in welanon ro the
financial srarements taken as o whole although ir 15 nor necessary for 3 oy presentation of the srate
of the company's affairs s December 31, 20060 o of the rosals of s DpErnons o its cash Aows

for the vear then ended

AR ) ;_,,(/?_L

o
£ Fa
Charrered Accountanes

Kingstan, [amawa
Mareh 15, 2017

Lt Ao gesrmgale
e il Jeaed Dhcrmeed sewenar |10
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Statienery and Office Supplies Limited

Additional information — Detailed trading

and profit or loss account

Year ended December 31, 2016

20186 205
5 5
Sales __?'I]?,I'.'Tﬂnﬂﬂ 626 580,325
Cost of sales
Qpening stock 106,868,176 97,351,521
Purchases ___3?_5.36?.531 367 481,014
482,233,707 454 B42 535
Less Ciosing stock ~ (118,831,085)  (105,866.176)
Cost of goods sold 363,402,612 257,978,358
Gross profit 338,668,239 268,603 968
Enance ngome 226,560 .
Oithier iIncome 163,078 126,261
339,087,877 268,730,227 _
Administrative and other expenses
Administrative and general axpensas {193,389,312) (172.610,634)
Selling and promaotional costs {59,296,198) {55.514.829)
Cthar oparaling expenses (1,254,918) [B4Z, BES)
Degpreciation {15,938 561) {(14,550,307)
Finance costs i11,144,462) (9,073,341
Loss on foreign exchange (4.871,347) (2.248.284)
Loss an disposal of properly, plant ana
eauipment . (83,653}
(285,904,799)  (254.723,713)
53,153,078 14,006,514

Prafit before tax
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Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

—— _— R — =

Additonal informaton — Supportng
schedule of expenses

Year ended December 31, 2016

2016 2015
3 %

Administrative antd general expgenses

Directors ramunaration 39,334,720 37234879
Salaries wapges anad relaled expenses 92,173,636 78,225,704
Siaff penefits 7,816,401 8583242
Rent 6,267,293 5 878,681
Taisphone 1.462.488 1,267,097
Aales and faxes 741,108 683,978
Foraign travel 898,313 1,153,359
Motor vehicie expensas 14,713,366 13,487,558
Repairs and mantenance 12,834,535 8 926,805
Audit fas 1,320,000 1,241,858
Legal and professional fees 205,730 1.128.2M
Environmental fieas - 98,310
Assels declaration and annual refurns fees 300,000 100,000
Secufity 2,751,162 1568,193
Insurance 3,045 255 2875346
Donations and subserplions 319,722 573,223
Electncny 2.171,159 2,221 618
Prinfing. postage and stabonary 2,542,468 1,845,544
General office axpensas 1,440,068 1.382.835
Banx charges 3,071,687 2.121,085

Selling and promotional costs

Advertising 14,602,161 12,595,821
Commissicn 36,239,960 35,001,400
Travelling and antertainment 8,454,077 7917408
59,206,198 55514829
Depreciation
Depreciation _ 15,938,561 14,550,307
15,938,561 14,550,307
T e RITL
Other operating expenses
Loss on disposal of property. plant and
equipment . 83,653
Loss on foreign exchange 4,871,347 2,248 284
Bad gebts — writien off . 842 865
- specific provision 1,284,919 -
8,126,266 2,974,802
Finance costs
Loan interest 8,344,518 T,154.328
Leass interest 2,798,944 1.518.013
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11,144,462
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Mair Russell

o Grant Thornton

Mair Russell Grant Thomton
Kingston

3 Haughton Avenus
Kingston 10

" " Montegs Bay
May 5, 201 56 Market Stract

St James
Jamaica, Wes! indes

The Direcors T +1 876 926 2597
F+1 876 754 3196

Srancnery and Office Supphes Lionired s it

23 Beechwoud Avenug
Kingswn 3

Avnention: Mr. David MeDuaniel = Managing Director

Dcar Sirs:
Re: Account's Report for the Period January 1, 2017 to March 31, 2017

We are the auditors of Sanonery and Cffice Supphes Limited and refer i the atrached
Prospoerus

The Pr mpectus incorporites the tollowing unaudieed mrerm tirneil staremenes of the

CLTTIP Y

o Statement of inancal posioon as ac March 31, 2017

e Staement of profivor loss and other comprehensive income for the theee (3) months
ended March 31, 20017

o Statement of changes in cquiry for the three [3) months ended March 31, 2017, and

e Sprcment of cash tlows tor the three (3) months ended March 31, 2017,

Wi huve nor audiced any Gnuncial stanmiene of the company as apany date o [or any periogd
subseguent o Decomber 31, 2006, Althoweh we have performed an audic for the vear ended
Dicecmber 31, 20006, the purpose and, theretore, the seup ol the audit was to enabile us
express our opinion on the Hoancial sutements as at Décember 31, 20016 and for the year then
ended, but nor on the Brancial sctements for any interim period subsequent to thae year,
Therefore, we are unable w and do nor express an opmion on the above-mennoned unaudieed
interim financial statements, or on the Anancial posinon, results of operations or cash flows of
the company as ar any penod subsequent to December 31, 2016,

We have, however, performed a review of the unaudired inrerim financial statements of the
company for the three (3) months ended March 31, 2007

Pirtrwers

Hewwth L Lawen, C0

Whor s . Frason

Saty P, Coy

Audrery Moyl Charersd Accounants

Haren A Liwe levabap o Cormnt ThOSTION IORTE 0N L3D

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 105



Mair Russell
&Y GrantThornton :

Mav 5, 2017

The Nrectors
Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

Attention: Mr. David McDaniel - Managing Director

Page 2

We performed our review in accordance with Intermanonal Standard on Review Engagements
2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auaditor of the
Ennry, Such an interim review: consists principally of applying analytical procedures to financial
dara, and making enquiries of, and having discussions with, persons responsible for financial
and accounung matters. An intenim review is substantially less in scope than an audit, whose
objective 15 the expression of an ppinion regarding the financial statements. An intenm review
does not provide assurance thar we would become aware of any or all significant macters that
mught be idenafied mnan audic

Based on our review, we are notaware of any matersl modificanon thar needs o be made for
these inrerim financial starements o be in accordance with Internanonal Financial Reporting
Standards.

This letter 15 provided solely for the purpose of assistung the secunnes regalarory authorities wo
which it 15 addressed in discharging their responsibilities and should nor be used for any other
putpise. Any use thar a thied parny makes of this lerer, or any relianee or decisions made
based on it, are the responsibility of such third parties. We accept no responsibility for loss or
dlamages, if any, sulfered by amy third party as i result o decisions miade oracoons mken based
an this leter.

Further, we hereby irrevocably consent to the inclusion of rhis Reportin the Pmspccrus in the
form and conrext in which it has been so ncluded.

Yours truly,

7 22... Bzl Cocait o ind T
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

KAL*de
Corr: 5-96
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Mair Russell

o Grant Thornton

Mair Russell Grant Thormton
FKingston

3 Haugivton Averus
Kingston 10

I Montego Bay
May 5, 2 96 Maruet Street
5t James
Jamaica, Wesl indies

The Dircerors T+ 876 926.25%7

Sranomery & Ofice Supplies Limired F +1 876 754 31%
. Ehamaca.com
23 Becehwood Avenue e

kangston 3

Dhear Sirs

Re: Prospectus for Statlonery & Office Supplies Limited

We have pven and have not withdmwn our consent to the inclision of our namc, reports and
all reterence rherero wn the Prospecrus of Stanonery and {ifice Supplics.

Yours sineerely,

o B e ; /
X e Agriie 7 i B a1 P

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

KAL*dy
Corr: 5-96

Kenvats L. Liewss, OO

Morg £ Fraxn

Soto P Coy

Auidhivy C e Chariarsd A ouriarts

Wayer A, Lirwn s o Grant Tharning mlerfafana |1
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Independent auditor’s report on
financial informartion

To the Directors of
Stationery and Office Supplies Limited
On five years financial informaton ended December 31, 2016

Drear Sirs,

We have audited, 1 accordance with Internatonal Standards on Auditing, the sepasate financial
statements of Statonery and Office Supplics Limited as ac and for each of the years December 31,
2012 through to December 31, 2016 und in oue reports dated May 3, 2013, July 3, 2014 and May
12, 2015, May 25, 2016 snd Masch 15, 2017 respecuvely, we expressed unqualified opinion on
these financial statements 1o the effec thar the inancal statements presents a crue and fair view.

In our opiruon, the extracted statements of Enancial position and statements of comprehensive
income of the company set out in the prospecrus are consistent, in all matenal respect, with the
financial statements {where applicable) referred 1o above, from which they were desived.

Fora better understanding of the company's finanetal position at the reportng dates sefecred to
above, the resules of aperauons for each of the years ended on these dates, and the scope of our

audit, the extracted statements of finaneial posinon and-statements of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the financil stitements from which they are derived and our
audit reports therson, where applieable.

Kingston, [amaica /f/ﬁﬂ-/gﬁ /@//{M‘:&_

May 3, 2017 Chartered NAccountants
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Section 12

Risk Factors

7/ Fund Managers Ltd.

Macro-Economic Policies

The Company is subject to the risk presented
by potential shifts in the local and international
macroeconomic environment, as well as
changes in fiscal and monetary policies and
their impact on variables such as business and
consumer confidence, commerce and capital
markets including the Junior Market. Shifts in
the macroeconomic environment are a normal
part of the business cycle and can present both
opportunities as well as challenges for the
Company. Factors such as movements in interest
rates, exchange rates, oil and other commodity
prices, inflation and the general level of
economic activity are all critical to the Company’s
operations. These risks are not unique to the

Company and are borne by all trading businesses.

Operational Risk

The Company is subject to the risk of loss
resulting from disruptions to its business,
inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems, or from external events (including
severe weather, other Acts of God, social unrest
or insurrection). This definition also includes
systemic risk (including the risk of accounting
errors, failure to procure appropriate insurance
coverage, and compliance failures), legal risk
and reputation risk. This catch-all category of
risks also includes employee errors, computer
and manual systems failures, security failures,
fire, floods or other losses to physical assets, and
fraud or other criminal activity or any other risk
that affects the volume of visitor arrivals to the
island. The Company is prudent and therefore, it
insures itself against some (but not all) of these
risks: for instance, the Company is insured in
respect of damage to its business by fire, flood or
other physical damage. It may not be feasible for
the Company to insure itself in respect of all the
risks mentioned, because no coverage may be
available or it may not be economical to do so.

New Accounting Rules or Standards

The Company may become subject to new
accounting rules or standards that differ from
those that are presently applicable. Such new
accounting rules or standards could require
significant changes in the way the Company
currently reports its financial position, operating
results or cash flows. Such changes could be
applied retrospectively. This is a risk that is not
faced by the Company alone but also, by any
trading business.

Admission of the Shares to the Junior
Market

After the Closing Date, and assuming that
the Company is able to raise at least $50,000,000
as per Rule 501(2)(b) of the Junior Market Rules
as a result of the Invitation by the Closing Date,
the Company will make application to the JSE to
admit the Shares to the Junior Market. However,
the Company is not able to guarantee the full
subscription of the Shares in the Invitation or the
admission of the Shares to the Junior Market.

Volatility in Price of Shares

Following their proposed admission to
trading on the Junior Market, the Shares may
experience volatility in their market price which
may extend beyond the short term and which
may be dependent on the Company’s financial
performance, as well as on investors’ confidence
and other factors over which the Company has no
control.

Revocation of Tax Concessions Risk

If the Invitation is successful in raising at
least $50,000,000 as per Rule 501(2)(b) of the
Junior Market Rules by the Closing Date, and
the Company is admitted to the Junior Market, it
must remain listed on the JSE trading platforms
for a period of fifteen (15) years in order to
be eligible for the concessionary tax regime
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described in Section 14.2.

The instrument governing the concessionary
tax regime is the Income Tax Act (Jamaica Stock
Exchange Junior Market) (Remittance) Notice
dated 13 August 2009, which was made by
the Minister of Finance under section 86 of the
Income Tax Act. The instrument provides that
if the Company is de-listed at any time during
the fifteen (15) year period, it will become
retrospectively liable to pay corporate income
tax at the rate that would otherwise have been
applicable to it during the concessionary period.

Key Personnel

It is important that the Company attracts and
retains appropriately skilled personnel, including
the Directors of the Company, who specialize in
distinct areas of the Company’s management.

It is also important for the Company to

replace personnel whose employment may be
terminated for any reason within a reasonable
time. In Jamaica, there are a limited number

of persons with the requisite skills, knowledge
and experience required by the Company. The
Company will need to attract and retain honest
qualified personnel, and failure to do so could
have a material adverse impact on the Company’s
future prospects.

Key Partners

The Company relies on its key and on-going
business relationships with customers and
suppliers. If the Company’s relationship with any
of these parties is disrupted or terminated for any
reason, the Company would have to identify new
customers and suppliers. However, this risk may
be mitigated against by the Company’s policy of
creating and maintaining symbiotic relationships
with its key partners and by seeking to provide
itself with the components of its products by
investing in integrated businesses.

Uninsured Risks

The Company has procured insurance in
respect of certain risks facing its business, as
described in Section 7.11 of this Prospectus. If
the Company suffered loss or damage to its
property or facilities or as a result of a claim by a
third party and was not able to claim successfully
under its policies of insurance for that purpose
its finances could suffer and its operations could
be disrupted temporarily or permanently. The
Company does however have consequential
loss insurance which would allow it to mitigate
against losses occasioned by an interruption of
business.

Fund Managers Ltd.
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Section 13

Professional
Advisors to
the Company

Financial Advisor,

Arranger & Lead Stock Broker
JN Fund Managers Limited

2-4 Constant Spring Road
Kingston 10

Fund Managers Ltd.

Attorneys to the Company

in the Invitation

MH&CO., Attorneys-at-Law

7 Barbados Avenue (Second Floor)

MH & CO.

. ATTORNEYS-AT-LAW
Kingston 5
Marketing Strategist
Janus Strategic Marketing Services Limited
7 Barbados Avenue (Second Floor) Stratepic Marketing Services (M.

Kingston 5

.-Hd'H.r.gmg Tramseliow f?]r'rn.g.'lj _':Tﬁ:n.r.l'.*.'!_p

Auditor and Reporting Accountant
Mair Russell Grant Thornton

3 Haughton Avenue

Kingston 10

GrantThornton = An instinct for growth’

Registrars and Transfer Agents

Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited
40 Harbour Street

Kingston, Jamaica

JAMAICA
CENTRAL
SECURITIES
DEFPOSITORY
LIMITED
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14.1 Statutory Information required

to be set out in this Prospectus by
section 42 and the Third Schedule to the
Companies Act

. The Company has no founders’ or management
or deferred shares.

. The Articles of Incorporation fix no shareholding
qualification for Directors (Article 83) and none
has been otherwise fixed by the Company in
general meeting.

. The Articles of Incorporation contain the
following provisions with respect to the
remuneration of Directors:

The remuneration of the directors shall from
time to time be determined by the Company
in general meeting. Such remuneration
shall be deemed to accrue from day to day.
The directors may also be paid all travelling,
hotel and other expenses properly incurred
by them in attending and returning from
meetings or any committee of the directors
or general meetings of the Company

in connection with the business of the
Company. (Article 82);

A director of the Company may be or
become a director or other officer of, or
otherwise interested in, any company
promoted by the Company or in which the
Company may be interested as shareholder
or otherwise, and no such director shall

be accountable to the Company for any
remuneration or other benefits received by
him as a director or officer of, or from his
interest in, such other company unless the
Company otherwise directs. (Article 84);

A director may hold any other office or
place of profit under the Company (other
than the office of auditor) in conjunction
with his office of director for such period
and on such terms (as to remuneration and
otherwise) as the directors may determine
and no director or intending director shall
be disqualified by his office from contracting
with the Company either with regard to his
tenure of any such other office or place of
profit or as vendor, purchaser or otherwise,

STATIONERY & OFFICE SUPPLIES PROSPECTUS | 113

nor shall any such contract, or any contract
or management entered into by or on behalf
of the Company in which any director is in
any way interested, be liable to be avoided,
nor shall any director so contracting or
being so interested be liable to account to
the Company for any profit realized by any
such contract or arrangement by reason

of such director holding that office or of
the fiduciary relation thereby established.
(Article 94(3));

Any director may act by himself or his firm
in a professional capacity for the Company,
and he or his firm shall be entitled to
remuneration for professional services as

if he were not a director, provided that
nothing herein contained shall authorize a
director or his firm to act as auditor to the
Company. (Article 94(5));

The Directors on behalf of the Company may
pay a gratuity or pension or allowance on
retirement to any Director who has held any
other salaried office or place of profit with
the Company or to his widow or dependants
and may make contributions to any fund
and pay premiums for the purchase or
provision of any such gratuity, pension or
allowance. (Article 99); and

The Managing Director shall receive such
remuneration (whether by way of salary,
commission or participation in profits, or
partly in one way and partly in another) as
the directors may determine. (Article 123)

4. The names and addresses of the Directors appear

in Section 8 of this Prospectus. The residential
addresses of the respective directors are as

follows:

Name of Director

Residential Address

Section 14

Statutory
and General
Information

David McDaniel 10 Ebony Glades, Kingston 8
Marjorie McDaniel 10 Ebony Glades, Kingston 8
Allan McDaniel 5 Farringdon Drive, Kingston 6
Stephen Todd 5 Ebony Glades, Kingston 8

Kerri (McDaniel) Todd

5 Ebony Glades, Kingston 8

Kelli (McDaniel) Muschett

14 Sunset Avenue, Kingston 8

Anthony Bell

43 Graham Heights, Kingston 8

Gary “Butch”Hendrickson

35A Cherry Drive, Kingston 8

Evan Thwaites

20 Widcombe Road, Kingston 6




Statutory
and General
Information

Fund Managers Ltd.

The minimum amount required to be raised out of the proceeds of the Invitation to provide for the
matters set out in paragraph 2 of Part 1 of the Third Schedule to the Companies Act (the “minimum
subscription”) is at least $50,000,000 as per Rule 501(2)(b) of the Junior Market Rules. The Company
estimates that the expenses in the Invitation will not exceed $12,000,000 inclusive of General
Consumption Tax, broken down as follows:

a. Arranger, financial advisory and brokerage fees: $3,495,000;

b. Legalfees: $4,660,000;

¢.  Auditor’s and Accounting fees: $200,000;

d. Statutory fees including initial listing fees: $752,000;

e. Marketing expenses: $2,000,000; and
Registrar and Transfer Agent fees: $250,000

5. The Invitation will open for subscription at 9:00 a.m. on July 19th, 2017 and will close at 4:30 pm on
the Closing Date, July 26th, 2017, subject to the Company’s right to close the application list at any
time after 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date if Applications have been received for an amount in excess
of the Shares offered under this Prospectus, or to extend the Closing Date for any reason whatsoever.

6. All Applicants (including Reserved Share Applicants) will be required to pay in full the Subscription
Price of $2.00 per Share, subject to discounts, where applicable. No further sum will be payable on
allotment.

7. No previous offer of Shares has been made to the public.

8. Save for the entitlement of the Reserved Share Applicants, no person has, or is entitled to be given,
any option to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

10.As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company held no trade investments, quoted investments other
than trade investments nor any unquoted investments other than trade investments.

11.Details of the Company’s trademark, real property and business name are set out in Section 7.8
of this Prospectus. However, there is no amount for goodwill, patent, or trademarks shown in the
financial statements of the Company and there is no contract for sale and purchase which would
involve any goodwill, patent or trademark.

12.As at the date of this Prospectus, the aggregate principal amount of indebtedness of the Company is
approximately J$125M.

13.No amount is currently recommended for distribution by way of dividend. The Company’s dividend
history, and its dividend policy following admission to the Junior Market, is described in Section 7.11.

14.As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company is in negotiations are in-train to purchase the real
property located at 34 Collins Green, Kingston 5 which is duly registered in the Register Book of
Titles at Volume 1359 Folio 203 with the registered proprietor being Mr. Headly Thomas of Lot 133
El Prado Verde, Spanish Town, Saint Catherine. The proposed purchase price for the aforementioned
property is J561M and it is foreseeable that part of the proceeds of the IPO (that is, approximately
J$36,000,000) will be applied toward the acquisition of this property.

15.Within the two (2) preceding years, no commissions have been paid, nor will any be payable to
anyone for subscribing or agreeing to subscribe or procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions for
any Shares or debentures of the Company.

16.The Company expects to pay the expenses of the Invitation out of the proceeds of its fundraising,
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and the Company estimates that the expenses in the Invitation will not exceed $12,000,000 inclusive
of General Consumption Tax, broken down as follows:

a. Arranger, financial advisory and brokerage fees: $3,495,000;

b. Legalfees: $4,660,000;

¢. Auditor’s and Accounting fees: $200,000;

d. Statutory fees including initial listing fees: $752,000;

e. Marketing expenses: $2,000,000; and
f.  Registrar and Transfer Agent fees: $250,000

See paragraph 17 below for further details.

17.Within the last two (2) years preceding the date of this Prospectus, no amount or benefit has been
paid or given or is intended to be paid or given to any promoter, save for JN Fund Managers, for
arrangement, financial advisory and brokerage services associated with the Invitation and listing on
the Junior Market under an agreement dated February 9th, 2017. The agreement provides for JN
Fund Managers to act as arranger and financial adviser to the Invitation, and for JN Fund Managers to
act as lead broker for which they will collectively receive fees equivalent to approximately $3,000,000
+ General Consumption Tax (inclusive of valuation services, lead brokerage, and the development of
a marketing strategy for the purposes of the Invitation).

18.The issue is not underwritten.
19.The material contracts of the Company are set out in Section 7.9.

20.The name and address of the auditors to the Company is Mair Russell Grant Thornton, Chartered
Accountants of 3 Haughton Avenue, Kingston 10.

21.Mair Russell Grant Thornton, Chartered Accountants, have given and have not withdrawn their
consent to the issue of this Prospectus with the inclusion of the Auditor’s Report and Historical
Financial Information, and his name in the form and context in which it is included.

22.The Company was incorporated on Friday, July 23rd, 1965, and it has carried on business since that
date. The Company does not have any subsidiaries.

14.2 Taxation of Junior Market Companies: Concessionary Regime

Companies that successfully apply for admission to the Junior Market of the JSE will benefit from a
concessionary tax regime, details of which are set out below:

« Pursuant to the Minister of Finance’s powers under section 86 of the Income Tax Act, Jamaican Junior
Market companies are not liable to pay corporate income tax in the first five (5) years after listing. In
years six (6) to ten (10) on the Junior Market, the Company will only be liable to pay corporate income
tax at half the usual rate. The aforementioned corporate income tax concession requires Jamaican
Junior Market companies to maintain their listing on the JSE (on either or both of the Main or Junior
Markets) for a period of fifteen (15) years. If such a Company is de-listed at any time during the
fifteen (15) year period, it will become retrospectively liable to pay corporate income tax at the rate
that would otherwise have been applicable to it during the concessionary period.

« Section 17(1)(d) of the Transfer Tax Act provides that transfers of shares made in the ordinary course
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Fund Managers Ltd.

of business on the JSE will not attract transfer tax.

The Schedule to the Stamp Duty Act provides that transfers of shares in the ordinary course of
business on the JSE will not attract Stamp Duty.

Section 12(v) of the Income Tax Act provides that profits or gains from transactions in shares carried
out on the JSE that accrue to an individual that does not hold himself out as a dealer are exempt from
income tax, where such profits or gains do not exceed one half of that person’s statutory income
from all other sources for the year of assessment, or (where the person so elects) those profits or
gains which, taken with profits or gains (or losses) on such transactions by him/her in the two (2)
immediately preceding years of assessment, do not exceed one half of that persons statutory income
from all other sources for the year of assessment and those two (2) preceding years.

Section 34(1) paragraph 6 of the Income Tax Act provides that payments of interest or other
payments made to holders of shares out of the assets of a company that is quoted on a recognized
stock exchange, including the JSE, are exempt from income tax.

Prospective investors should seek advice on the taxation of Junior Market companies and their
prospective investment in the Company from a professional adviser, and should not rely on the
summary set out above.
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Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the offices of Messrs. MH&CO., Attorneys-at-
Law between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday to Friday, up to and including the Closing
Date (or the extended Closing Date, as the case may be):

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The Articles of Incorporation of the Company adopted on March 29th, 2017.
The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation.

Company Status Letter issued by the Companies Office of Jamaica.

The Company’s Tax Compliance Certificate.

The Auditor’s Report and audited financial statements of the Company for the five (5) fiscal years
ended December 31st, 2016. The unaudited financial statements of the Company for the period
January 1st, 2017 to March 31st, 2017.

The consent of the auditors of the Company dated May 5th, 2017, referred to in paragraph 21 of
Section 14.1.

The documents referred to in Section 7.7 (Regulation).

Copy of any documents related to the trademark applications referred to in Section 7.8.
The material contracts referred to in Section 7.9.

Confirmation of the insurance arrangements referred to in Section 7.12.

Letter dated August 5th, 2016 from the Jamaica Customs Agency to the Company confirming
the approval of its Authorized Economic Status.

Letter dated June 1st, 2016 from the National Contracts Commission to the Company
confirming the approval of its Approved Supplier status to supply government agencies with
furniture supplies, office equipment supplies and stationery supplies and books.

Acknowledgement of Reception letters dated May 3rd, 2017 from the Jamaica Intellectual
Property Office confirming the receipt of the Company’s applications to register the SOS, Torch
and Image trademarks, respectively.
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Section 16

Directors’ Signatures

( | .

D NIEL - RJORIE MCDANIEL KERRI TODD ALLAN MCDANIEL

STEPHEN TODD KELLI MUSCHETT GA} HENDRICESPQN,-»———

[3 e

RICHARD THWAITES

Fund Managers Ltd.
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Appendix 1: SUBSCRIPTION FORM

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE COMPLETING THIS FORM

Please note that the Jamaica Central Securities Depository (JCSD) charges an application fee of $163.10 (approximately $140+GCT) in respect of each application
for Shares. All payments made for subscription of shares should include this fee, and same is subject to change at the discretion of the JCSD.

To: Stationery and Office Supplies Limited

Re: Invitation for Subscription for up to 50,

024,100 ordinary shares made pursuant to the Prospectus dated the day of 2017.

1/We confirm that I/We have read and understood and hereby agree to be bound by the terms and conditions contained in the Prospectus, all of which are incorporated in

this Application Form by Reference.

1/We hereby apply for

invitation set out in the Prospectus at the price of J$ each and I/We:

O Attach my/our manager’s cheque for J$ ;or

O Request JN Fund Managers Limited to make payment on my behalf from cleared funds held in my name in account numbered
Hereby instruct JN Fund Managers Limited to debit my/our account with the sum of J$

ordinary shares in Stationery and Office Supplies Limited on and subject to the terms and conditions of the

for the purposes of my/our purchase of

ordinary shares as indicated above; or

O Have transferred the sum of J$

Beneficiary Bank:

BIC: JINBSJIMKN

JN Bank Limited

Beneficiary account #: 2094296874
Beneficiary account name: JN Fund Managers Limited

to JN Fund Managers Limited using the following RTGS details:

I/We agree to accept the same or any smaller number of Shares in respect of which this application may be accepted, subject to the terms and conditions in the Prospectus
and the Articles of Incorporation of Stationery and Office Supplies Limited, by which I/We agree to be bound. I/We request you to sell and transfer to me/us the number of
shares which may be allocated to me/us at the close of the said invitation pursuant to the terms and conditions governing applications, as set forth in the Prospectus. I/We
hereby agree to accept the shares that may be allocated to me/us to be credited to an account in my/our name(s) in the Jamaica Central Securities Depository.

Instructions to completing application form: All fields are relevant and must be completed. If you already have an account with the JCSD, please ensure that you indicate

your JCSD Account number.

Reserved Shares (employees, Family and
JN Fund Managers' Clients)

O Employee and Family Shares O JN Fund Managers’ Clients O General Subscription

PRIMARY HOLDER

PERSONAL/COMPANY INFORMATION

Full Name of Applicant
(Individual or Company)

o L L]

Occupation/
Line of Business

Address | |

Nationality or Incorporation

Telephone
(Home)

Country

Telephone
(Work)

Telephone
(Cellular)

Email
Address

STOCKBROKERAGE INFORMATION

Broker Code Dj Client Type Dj Account Type Dj

JCSD Account
Number

Broker Customer
Number

PERSONAL/COMPANY BANK INFORMATION
(Required where payment method is other than manager’s cheque)

Applicant’s
Bank

Bank Account
Number

Bank
Branch

Bank Account Type O Savings O Chequing

SIGNATURES
Signatures

Date of

Application

(Company)

Signature
(Individual)

DIRECTOR

Insert/Affix Company Seal Here

DIRECTOR/SECRETARY

SECONDARY HOLDERS

Full Name
(First Joint Holder)

TRN |

| | | | Occu pation | | | | | | | |

Signature
(Individual)
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Full Name
(Second Joint Holder)

[ LI PP PP o [ [ PP
LI ]
(Individual) Date

DDMM Y Y Y Y
Full Name
(Third Joint Holder)
oo L L PP o [ PP PP T L]
LI
(Individual) Date

ALL APPLICANTS MUST INPUT THEIR TAXPAYER REGISTRATION NUMBER.
THIS OFFER IS NOT MADE TO PERSONS RESIDENT OUTSIDE JAMAICA

Refund Payment

I/We hereby acknowledge and confirm that any refunds payable to me/us will be refunded to me/us in the same manner and form in which
payment has been made for the Shares.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Applicants who are not applying for Reserved Shares must apply for a minimum of 5,000 Shares with increments in multiples of 1,000.
Applications in other denominations will not be processed or accepted.

2. If you are not a Reserve Share Applicant you must attach your payment for the specified number of Shares you have applied for, in the
form of either:

a. Manager’s cheque made payable to JN Fund Managers Limited (“JN Fund Managers”);

b. A letter of authorization from the Applicant instructing JN Fund Managers to make payment from cleared funds held with JN Fund
Managers in an investment account in the Applicant’s name; or

c. Transfer or deposit of funds to the following account:
Beneficiary Bank: JN Bank Limited
BIC: JNBSJMKN
Beneficiary account#: 2094296874
Beneficiary account name: JN Fund Managers Limited

3. Shares are priced at the invitation prices as follows (see Prospectus for additional information):
Shares Price
General Public $2.00
Employee Shares $1.60
JN Fund Managers' Clients $2.00
4. If you are a Reserve Share Applicant please so specify at the top of the Application Form. You must attach payment for the specified

number of Reserve Shares you are applying for.

5. If you are applying jointly with any other person you must complete the Joint Holder Information and each joint holder must sign the
Application Form at the place indicated.

6. All Applicants must be at least eighteen (18) years old.

7. Share certificates will not be issued unless specifically requested, howevershares allotted to a successful applicant will be credited to his
account at the Jamaica Central Securities Depository. If the applicant does not have a JCSD account, one will be created and the allotted
shares deposited to that account. Applicants may refer to the notice posted on the JSE website (www.jamstockex.com) for the

instructions on confirming Share allottments.

8. Applicants who do not have a broker account must provide valid identification, proof of address, source of funds and satisfy account
opening requirements of the broker.

9. All Applicants are deemed to have accepted the terms and conditions set out in the Prospectus generally.
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